ERAKBRERDBRAT
=k YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED®

(R E AR KM EMALH R AR AF)

(a joint stock limited liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

BB K% Stock Code : 06839

2024

ANNUAL REPORT
TFERS

* EHE7I For identification purposes only



Contents

H ok

Corporate Information 2
NAVER

Definitions 5
B

Financial Highlights 8
Chairman’s Statement 9
E=2RYA

General Manager’s Report 11
BISIBRE

Management Discussion and Analysis 14
ERENwmRDN

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management 27

B EEMRAEEAER

Directors’ Report 37
EEgNnE

Corporate Governance Report 55
PEERWRSE

Independent Auditor’s Report 71
BB RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 80

EHBRERREMESKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 82
& AR &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 85
EEREEHE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 87
AEHEESRER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 89
AP BIRE W T

Five-year Financial Summary 244
hEMBHE

Environmental, Social & Governance Report 245

BRI HEehBERAWSE

Annual Report 2024 £E#|% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EfKKRER N ER A A



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ANCIICE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Guangfeng (Vice-Chairman)
Ms. Wang Rui
Mr. Liu Hui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Richeng
Mr. Xia Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong
Mr. Zhong Wei
Mr. Zhou Beihai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhong Wei
Mr. Zhou Beihai

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhong Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hui
Mr. Zhou Beihai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Beihai
Mr. Zhong Wei

RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhong Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

Mr. Zhou Beihai

Mr. Mo Wenyi (Supervisor)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Bo

2 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EF /K5 #& & &5 AR A7 Annual Report 2024 FEHE

EExg
HTES
MRS (AEFR)
ot
2058 5

FHUTESE
118 kL (EFR)
BAREE

B s

BYFHTES
BT RS
BESLE
Bttt

BT EEE
BRLSE L (ZF)
s
L 5

FMEES
LY LIETD)
s
AL s

REEES
185 ()
B
s

REERERS

BREL(LE)
HEELE
BT
Akt
BEXRELE(EF)

RAME
54



AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zheng Guangfeng
Ms. Wang Rui

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PEOPLE’S
REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Yunnan Water

2089 Haiyuan Bei Road
Gaoxin District
Kunming, Yunnan

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 3110-11

31/F, Tower 1, The Gateway, Harbour City
25 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suite 3203-3207

32/F Edinburgh Tower , The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

DeHeng Law Offices (Kunming)

3/F & 4/F Tower B5, Rongcheng Youjun
Xishan District, Kunming, Yunnan Province
PRC

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NAE M

REAX
WRES S
Egst

HEBRPEARANE
FEE Rt

h @
EHRS
B RITREE
EIRAL B 2089 5%
Rk

ERTEEEME
BE

HE
LRV ERE 255
BEWARKESE 1 E31412
3110-11 %

EBROVBFERIE
BEFHFERLRERAA

&5

BRIE 165

BEReS@MPLI17E

SEERER

BEEREE
BRABEMEHABREIEZESTAE
BE

ERREF 155K
BEESABARNE32E

3203-3207 %

BREPREIEE

I RBE(RR)ZMEBEHKAT
I

EEEEAMALER

b E AT BS 1% 3-4 [

Annual Report 2024 £ E# % YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Ef K KRER N ER A7



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ANCIICE

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

China Development Bank

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Agricultural Development Bank of China

China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
China Everbright Bank Company Limited

AUDITOR

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
42/F, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
6839

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

http://www.yunnanwater.com.cn

4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EF /K5 #& & &5 AR A7 Annual Report 2024 FEHE

FEERRIT
FERITIRMBR A A

B F 3 R TT
PEEZRTRHAER QA
PEREERRT
PEERRITROAERAXE
ZBRITRDBR QA
EEBRRERBITRMNERAT
PERITRODBRAA]
PR TRERTRD AR QA
PEERIRITRODBRAE

B ELED
EEBESHMERMARAR
HMESTE

BB

BT

BEE 185

PIREZ 4212

BRAD A ER

6839

NGBl

http://www.yunnanwater.com.cn




DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

NAFHA - BXESEAEN

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—Z2iTEAL]

"AGM"

[RRBFARE |

“Articles of Association”
[RRIER]

"associate(s)”

(B A

"Beijing OriginWater”

[HERBEKIR]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EE=g]

“Chairman”

[E=K]

“Company”, “our Company” or
“Yunnan Water”

[ARRAE [ Em K]

“connected person(s)”

[BREALI

"

“controlling shareholder(s)

[ R R

“Corporate Governance Code”

[EERTA

“Director(s)”

=

C TOIRERABATEE

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong
BB R E  BEEREEREBRSLLE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held before 30 June
2025
RABER B -_RHENA

THARTZRRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company

KRB ARERR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWRAE TRz

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (Gt RE/KERZRMHBERAF), a joint
stock limited liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300070), a substantial shareholder of the
Company

IRBKBEREROBERAR - RPBKZHROBERRGF - HROERINZFRZ S
£ (p 5% - 300070)

the board of directors of the Company

RRARMERS

the Chairman of the Company
BER

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (ZEF/KEHERMKHBMR AT, a joint stock
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

ERKBERERNERAR - RABGEMAZAROERAF - EHREBZMER L
M (R 5% - 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmRAE TRz

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LRI T % ARz

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

FHARRIER C1 FTE B EEATRI R EEARSE

the director(s) of our Company

ARRES
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DEFINITIONS
“Domestic Share(s)”
[ A& R ]

“ESG”
[ESG]

"ESG Guide”
[ESGiE3|]

“Group” or “our Group”

[REH ]
“H Share(s)”
[HA%]

“HK$"”
[T

“HKFRS”
[BEMBHEER]

“Hong Kong”
[EE]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmHA
“Model Code”
[RAE<F A ]
"PRC" or “China”
[

"Reporting Period”
[ 8

“RMB”
[ARE]

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital
of the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

NAREBESRINEBENARBBR AT ERAMEARE 1.00 THERTERER

environmental, social, and governance
RBRE  Hgkegn

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules
BN g REARMEIES] - I LR RIS 27 Bt

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
ARARETEHHEB AT

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital
of the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EBZAER ETOARBREAG FREEARE1.00 THEHTEER

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BELEEEEET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board
BEVBREER  BEEBGHERNRT RS EAZEQ@RMHNRE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B F BT BIIT R =

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B3 praE s E AR R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
ETRAIM SR C3FREA) EHEITAERETES R HMITLESFA

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARANE - EXHEMs > TREEE PEARANBERMASITRE RS E

the 12-month period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
BT M- —ARE_T-_WF+-_A=+—RHILt+=EAHM

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEMEEEE AR
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“SFO”"
&7 Mg

“Share(s)”

[ B |

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ A% 2R

“Stock Exchange”
5622 FFy |

"

“subsidiary(ies)

[y PNGIE

"

"Supervisor(s)

&%

“Supervisory Committee”

(EFEZEg]

“Undertaking Shareholders”
[ B A A 8RR

"YHTH"

[EFEIREE

“VEP|”

[EEReRFREE]

"oyt

[% ]

* For identification purposes only
S EH#5

DEFINITIONS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIE 571 B(BHFRBAERD)

the ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of the
Company, including the H Share(s) and the Domestic Share(s)
ARNFRRAFEREEARE 1.00 tHEBR - BEHRERNER

the holder(s) of the Share(s)
EEHESTEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERXSMBRAF

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EHRAE TRz

supervisor(s) of the Company

RRRINES

the supervisory committee of the Company

ARAMEEELZRE

namely YHTH, YEPI and Beijing OriginWater
BIEMRIREE  ERgEeRREERIEREKR

Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (EE & BRIEREEER A
Al) (formerly known as Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd.*
(EEAWMERILEEEARAR)), a limited liability company established in the PRC
and is the sole shareholder of YEPI
EHEARKIEREBARAFD(AIBEEEAHTERREEEGFRAA) - RABKLZH
EREERFIREMGEBRREENME KRR

Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (Ef & BRIRE
H¥EBEBRAT) (formerly known as Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Industry
Investment Co., Ltd. *(Ef&AZ ERREEEXIZEBRAT)), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC, and the Company's controlling shareholder
EHEGERREXEERRAANGIBEEHAERREEERZREARLAT)  RPH
EMKINEREERR - BADANERRR

per cent
Batl
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

ESeMAEMTIIHNBRHE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—BLFE

2024 2023 Change
—E-lE —T=F i)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Revenue We s 2,789,209 3,116,539 -10.21%
Gross profit EH 453,733 655,113 -30.74%
(Loss)/profit before income tax FriSFi A (&518), 5 7 (2,138,500) (814,669) -162.50%
EBITDAMN BRAS - BiIE - E
R B S A A ) () (367,468) 878,797 -141.81%
(Loss)/profit for the year FAN(EE),wH (2,166,241) (994,606) -117.80%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) RERE S EHE (%) -19.41% -28.82% 32.65%
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB) FR(EE),BF
(AE®ET) (1.458) (0.577) -152.79%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited loss attributable to ordinary
Shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB1,739 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately RMB688 million).

Loss per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB1.458 per share
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: loss per share approximately RMB0.577
per share), the calculation of such basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
attributable to ordinary Shareholders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of Shares of approximately 1,193,213,457 (2023: 1,193,213,457) shares in
issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023: nil). The Company did
not declare or pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group's annual report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024.

2024 marked an extraordinary year in which the intricate and complicated
international situation exerted a more adverse impact on China’s economic
development. Geopolitical conflicts became more acute, unilateralism and
protectionism were on the rise, the economic environment intensified the trend
of de-globalization and global economic growth lacked steam. Meanwhile, the
domestic economy was at a critical juncture of restructuring and upgrading. Woes
in the transition between old and new growth drivers and lack of effective domestic
demand impeded efforts to economic development. However, headwinds from
negative factors at home and abroad would hardly stop us from marching forward.
China’s economy proved great resilience under the aegis of a package of adopted
policies and new policies. As a result, the development targets were triumphantly
accomplished.

2024 was also a year full of challenges for us to forge ahead. Adhering to the
principle of “protecting the ecological environment and building a beautiful
China (STRE4R/KS 1L, FLELFEGFIRIF)", the Board remained a keen and prospective
awareness of industry dynamics, constantly strengthened self-construction and
improved its level of scientific decision-making, despite the complex and volatile
economic situation and market uncertainties. The Group's strategies played a
leading role in managing funds through a combination of measures to consolidate
the debt optimisation achievements. We actively promoted debt-to-equity
conversion, revitalised construction projects in progress and dispose of assets,
improved asset structure and reinforced financial risk control. The operations
management drove the efforts to accentuate the indicator qualification, facilitate
debt recovery efficiency and gross margin optimisation. During the refined
management process, the Grand Water whole industrial chain covering raw water
supply, wastewater treatment and reclaimed water was further consolidated,
and the solid waste treatment such as industrial waste treatment, medical waste
treatment as well as domestic waste incineration power generation were practically
and finely operated and managed. The utilization of technological innovations,
such as centralized procurement of chemicals, intelligent drug delivery, accurate
aeration and other measures, were competently implemented in cost reduction and
efficiency improvement and significantly improved operational quality. Establishing
the governance system was to strengthen our compliance management, streamline
our internal governance system, practice the sustainability principle and integrate
ESG philosophy into the Company’s strategy, so as to push green and low-carbon
development for the long-term value of the society. As of 31 December 2024,
the Group owns 203 water treatment projects with a total treatment capacity
of approximately 5,746,000 tonnes per day. The Group’s solid waste treatment
business segment had 24 solid waste treatment projects for the year ended 31
December 2024, with a total annual treatment capacity of 4,117,280 tonnes. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange in 2015, the Group has continued to distribute
final dividends to shareholders until the end of 2020 based on its good operating

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
5 SR

FIRIARER

AANERREZTE  MAREAEEBEZ—
TZ-NE+ A=+ —BUBRFEZFR -

—ToNE - BRRAFAN—F - BREM
MBRRBAREREESREZ NN E -
WHERBORERNE - BEXH FEXIEH
EER - RFERRCBBYR - HREEE
PR  IBRFEEECHFROTANZE
MR BAKRECEREEBRE B
MR MEPRERFERERE AX
FERTRAEBEEET - BERAINEEE
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RENBHNESERT  HELEDRR
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ZEZOF HREMHE - bRFT MBI R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
= F R

performance and financial position. Currently, facing the difficult economic
situation and taking into account the Group’s operating conditions, the Board
has not recommended any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024.
Under the leadership of the Board, the Group will strengthen its confidence,
overcome difficulties and make every effort to improve its operating performance,
so as to bring more investment returns to shareholders in the future. We would
like to express our gratitude to our shareholders for their long-term support and

contribution to the Company.

In 2025, the Group will stay tough in the ablution of evolutionary changes, spur
ahead with innovative development and concentrate on its core responsibilities
and main business. We will persistently strengthen our development foundation
by optimising debt structure, rationalising asset allocation, diversifying financing
strategies, and improving organisational and institutional construction to enhance
sustainable development momentum. We will persistently unlock resource potential,
strengthen operational control, drive cost reduction and efficiency improvement,
ensure effective “new investment and new financing”, enhance capital operations,
and leverage resource advantages to improve profitability. We will persistently
refine institutional mechanisms by enhancing refined management, optimising
operational systems, improving incentive mechanisms, strengthening risk control,
and building digital platforms to elevate scientific management capabilities. We
will persistently implement the people-centered development philosophy to build a
responsible state-owned enterprise, service benchmark, and harmonious corporate

that steadfastly fulfills corporate social responsibilities.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the Group's
management and employees for their joint efforts, persistence and dedication,
as well as to all shareholders, board members, investors and partners for their
unwavering support. It is this firm belief that has enabled us to maintain our
confidence and forge ahead in the face of various difficulties and challenges. The
Group will overcome difficulties, create excellent performance, create more value
for shareholders, and contribute to the development of environmental protection
and the construction of ecological civilization.

Mei Wei
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
28 March 2025
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

2024 was an extraordinary year in which the Group consolidated its results and
promoted development. This year, in the face of the complex internal and external
environment as well as the arduous tasks to maintain stable development, the
Group, under the leadership of the board of directors, actively seized the precious
development opportunities, accurately predicted the difficulties and bottlenecks we
encountered and stood firm to cope with challenges with confidence while trying
hard to strengthen its phased work results achieved in preventing debt risks and
reducing cost and enhancing efficiency. With strong sense of responsibilities, we
spared no efforts in promoting the Group to transform and upgrade, to develop
with high quality and in a balanced way, and comprehensively implementing work
at all levels throughout the production and operation management.

Focusing on production and operation. In 2024, the Group recorded a total
operating revenue of RMB2.798 billion, settled outstanding debts instruments of
RMB904 million, representing 102.41% of the target (of which net cash inflow
was RMB762 million, representing 116.13% of the target), and achieved net cash
inflow from disposal of assets of RMB668 million, representing 81.81% of the
total amount recovered by the Group, with investment in R&D expenditure and
operating cash ratio exceeding their respective targets.

Reducing costs and enhancing efficiency. During the year, as compared with same
period last year, agents used in the projects in operation reduced by 7,430 tonnes,
agent costs dropped by RMB12.84 million, representing a decrease of 9.7%.
Electricity cost per ton of water lowered by 9.5% and the bid-winning amount
through chemicals procurement reduced by approximately RMB5.753 million,
saving 14.8% and representing a decrease of approximately 16% in the winning
unit price.

Focusing on completing the price and volume adjustments. Our revenues increased
by more than RMB31 million from the completion of price and volume adjustments
on 12 projects and the addition and renewal of 7 commissioned operating projects.
Among them, the increase of RMB4.8 million was due to the fact that the water
price adjustment in Dali, which had not been completed for 10 years, was finally
completed in August this year and the transshipment of more than 30 agricultural
sewage sub-projects was completed with the high promotion of the Group and the
strong support of Dali Municipal Government.

RSB RS

VN (W
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TER—F -5 F EHBEERERNAI
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BERGLARL - MEFEEHRE - ARUNE
EEBNEESER 2N HEIREEBET
BRNSEEXRESHRARR  2HEELE
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PHIMFLEERL . — T —FE . K&EE
TREEBRA2798EB T FEBHEER
9.04 Bt ER B BEEKM102.41% (H
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116.13%) - EEKREFH 0 N6.6818 -
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
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Resolving legacy issues. The Group has successfully obtained dedicated funding
for Langfang Hyflux NewSpring and resumed its construction. Hyflux NewSpring
(Zunhua) achieved a first-in-five-years breakthrough on the water pipeline
charges in Baozipu. In 2024, a total of RMB39 million of historical receivables
and RMB13.62 million of new receivables were recognised, with cash repayments
secured. Additionally, the Group has successfully obtained dedicated fund of over
RMB48 million for debt restructuring. With the support of the provincial SASAC
and the Group, Harbin Guohuan resolved long-standing issues related to the
confirmation and settlement of waste disposal fees incurred during the COVID-19
pandemic, turning losses into profits and generating an additional RMB29.26
million in earnings. Mengzhou Water (#/117K7%) resumed production during the
year, with plans to accelerate project completion and transition to commercial
operation to ensure investment returns. The Ganquanpu project in Xinjiang
achieved continuous production on its upgraded 10-million-tonne line. At the
same time, the Emin project, after 11 years of construction, has been successfully
completed and is set to commence operations, which is expected to be an
additional growth momentum for the Group's water business.

Overcoming challenges to complete a debt-to-equity swap. Following a comparative
analysis of various debt restructuring proposals, the Group implemented a
“perpetual securities” plan, under which YHTH and YEPI converted their respective
ordinary securities of the Group, totalling RMB9.891 billion, into perpetual
securities. This initiative reduced the Group’s gearing ratio to 74.9%, which is
expected to result in annual finance cost savings of approximately RMB198 million.

Establishing a “trinity” governance framework. The Group has streamlined its
authorisation and delegation procedures and established a comprehensive risk
control and compliance framework. The Group has identified a total of 1,066 items
of management authority across all levels and created a compliance risk database
that covers 557 fourth-level risks across 378 key processes. The Group has revised
the Risk, Internal Control and Compliance Manual ( (EBRAIZEBFM) ) and
issued such three critical reference lists as the Compliance Risk Identification
Checklist, Business Process Control Checklist, and Departmental Compliance
Responsibility Checklist ( (AKEE R ERFHRNEE - EHRRELEE - FPIMAL
ERBMEBE) ).
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GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

Enhancing operational support and technological innovation. A task force of
technical experts was formed to provide on-site support and inspections for
domestic projects. A total of 30 assignments were dispatched to various locations
to guide process control and operations management, with over 400 potential
risks addressed and rectified in parallel with inspections. The Group has newly filed
applications for seven technology patents and two invention patents, all of which
have been accepted by the Patent Office. In addition, five new utility model patents
were granted, bringing the Group's total number of patents to 183.

Ensuring safe production. During the year, the Group invested RMB11.9458 million
in safety-related expenditures and conducted 22 safety inspections, identifying
271 issues and hazards. Three cross-inspections within the Group and one by the
SASAC were carried out, with 51 issues rectified in a timely manner. In East China,
RMB30 million was raised to transport and dispose of 29,688 tonnes of hazardous
waste, all of which posed high safety risks but were fully eliminated.

The year 2025 marks a new chapter for the Group to embark on further
development with renewed momentum. We will further consolidate our
development foundation and continue efforts in debt recovery, asset disposal,
quality and efficiency improvement, and revitalisation of in-progress projects. The
Group will strive to break through financing bottlenecks, expand access to capital,
stabilise existing operations while pursuing incremental growth, and explore
entrusted operations for light assets. We will invest prudently in selected projects
and debts and expand the utilisation of low-temperature carbonisation residues
and coal gasification residues. Furthermore, the Group will strengthen its risk
management and safety oversight to ensure steady progress toward high-quality
and sustainable development.

Zheng Guangfeng
General manager

Kunming, the PRC
28 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm LD

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2024, the promotion of policies related to the water industry continued to
strengthen. In terms of policies on water supply, in March 2024, the State
Council promulgated the Water Conservation Regulations( (&34 B KEHI) ),
which came into effect on 1 May 2024. The Regulations make it clear that it is
necessary to give full play to the role of the market mechanism, establish a water
pricing system that promotes water conservation, stipulate that residential water
use should be subject to a stepped water price, and that non-residents should
be subject to a progressive increase in the price of water use in excess of a fixed
qguota (exceeding the planned price), cultivate and standardize the water rights
market, support the development of various forms of water rights trading, guiding
financial institutions to increase financing support for water conservation projects,
and encouraging the development of socialized, professionalized and standardized
water conservation service industries. In October 2024, the Ministry of Finance,
the State Taxation Administration and the Ministry of Water Resources issued the
Measures for the Implementation of Water Resources Tax Reform Pilot( (K& /&
kB A EMIE) ), which clearly stipulates that from 1 December 2024, the
pilot water resources tax reform will be implemented in full, and provides for the
taxpayers, tax targets, and tax amount standards of the water resources tax. At the
same time, all the revenues from the water resources tax will be vested in the local
government and be included in the management of the general public budget, so
as to increase the local autonomous financial power. At the same time, all revenues
from water resources tax will be vested in localities and included in the general
public budget management, so as to increase local autonomous financial power.
In addition, in March 2024, the National Development and Reform Commission,
the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the Ministry of
Water Resources jointly issued the Three-year Action Plan to Promote the Use of
Reclaimed Water in Key Cities( (HEESMB M BEKFNB=FTBEHESTE) ).
In June 2024, the National Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of
Water Resources, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the Ministry
of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Affairs jointly issued the Guidance on Accelerating the Development of the Water-
saving Industry( (BARINREREKEZEIEEER) ). The implementation of a
series of policies by Chinese government will continue to drive the growth of water
conservation service industries, enhance the capacity for efficient water resource
utilisation, expedite the renovation of aging urban water supply pipelines, and
reduce leakage rates, thereby contributing to the establishment of a water-efficient
society.

In terms of policies related to sewage treatment, in January 2024, the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council issued
guidelines to comprehensively promote the development of a “Beautiful China”,
which proposed deepening the protection and governance of major rivers such
as the Yangtze River and Yellow River, as well as important lakes. It emphasized
implementing performance-based classification for sewage treatment and discharge
levels in key industries and enterprises, accelerating efforts to address deficiencies
in urban sewage collection and treatment facilities, carrying out internal source
pollution control and ecological restoration based on local conditions, and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

establishing a water ecology assessment mechanism. In January 2024, the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment, the Ministry of Water Resources, and the Ministry
of Agriculture and Rural Affairs issued the “Guidelines for the Treatment of Rural
Black and Odorous Water Bodies"( { B BR/KEEAE TIEIRFE)
2024, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment and the Ministry of Agriculture and

). In January

Rural Affairs released the “Guiding Opinions on Further Promoting the Treatment
of Rural Domestic Sewage”( BIRE —FHERNEFFHIORENIEEER) ).
In March 2024, five departments including the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development jointly issued the “Notice on Strengthening the Construction
and Operation Maintenance of Urban Domestic Wastewater Pipe Networks” ( {3
FDNGRI T A E 5K E AR METHERBAM) ) (Jiancheng [2024] No. 18),
emphasising the continuous promotion of professional operation and maintenance
under the “plant-pipe network integration” model, implementing performance-
based payment for the coordinated operation of sewage treatment plants and
pipe networks. In April 2024, two government departments including the Ministry
of Finance issued the “Notice on Carrying out Urban Renewal Demonstration
Work” ( (BARFREMT L3 ~&E TIERBM) )
cities with annual special funds ranging from RMBO0.8 billion to RMB1.2 billion

), providing each of the 15 pilot
for the renovation of “plant-pipe network integration.” In addition, policy-based
funds such as ultra-long-term special government bonds, local government special
bonds, and central budgetary investments (for pollution control and energy
conservation and carbon reduction, etc.) have all been inclined to and supportive
of pipeline network construction. In May 2024, the National Development and
Reform Commission and three other departments issued the “Guiding Opinions on
Deepening the Development of Smart Cities and Promoting Comprehensive Urban
Digital Transformation” ( (BRI B ZW T HERMEENT 2B FHERNE
BER) ), proposing the requirement of “smart city transformation to promote
integrated environmental governance.” A series of policies are continuously
advancing the construction of urban sewage treatment infrastructure, addressing
deficiencies in sewage pipeline networks, strengthening weak links in sewage
treatment facilities, enhancing treatment efficiency, reducing pollution, and
promoting green development.

In terms of water investment and financing, in February 2024, the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council issued the
“Opinions on on Comprehensively Promoting the Key Work of Rural Revitalization
in 2023 (KEBRENME T _=F2EAHEENRESHIFENER) )

proposing measures including strengthening the construction of water conservancy
infrastructure, promoting green agricultural development, solidly advancing the
improvement of rural living environment, and continuously strengthening the
construction of rural infrastructure. In February 2024, the Ministry of Water Resources
issued the “Key Points of Water Conservancy Guarantee Work for Rural Revitalization
in 2024" ((ZZ-MEBHREKFRETIEZE) ),
security level of rural drinking water and implement water ecological environment
protection and governance. In July 2024, the State Council issued the "Five-
Year Action Plan for Deeply Implementing the People-Centered New Urbanization
Strategy”( CGRABMELAA BRI E(L BB AF1TENRTE]) ), proposing the
promotion of green and smart city development, strengthening urban infrastructure
construction, and focusing on underlying urban infrastructure projects like urban

), proposing to enhance the

underground pipe networks. In July 2024, the Central Committee of the Communist
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm LD

Party of China and the State Council issued the “Opinions on Accelerating the
Comprehensive Green Transformation of Economic and Social Development” ( %
RINREEL SRR 2EABCEIANEER) ). In December 2024, the General Office
of the State Council released the “Opinions on Optimising and Improving the
Management Mechanism of Local Government Special Bonds” ( (R Bt it
FHIFEEESEE#SINEER) ), explicitly including 22 industries such as water
conservancy, urban sewage and waste collection and treatment, urban recycled
water recycling, comprehensive utilisation of solid waste and resource recycling, and
water supply and drainage into the “positive list” management scope for projects
eligible for using local government special bonds as capital funds. At the same time,
the proportion of special bonds used as project capital funds has increased. At the
provincial level, the upper limit of special bonds that can be used as project capital
funds has been raised from 25% to 30% of the total special bond quota allocated
for project construction in each province. Driven by these policies, the scale of local
government special bonds used as capital funds for water conservancy projects is
expected to increase. In 2024, the National Development and Reform Commission
issued the “ Notice of Fully Promoting the Regular Issuance of Projects of Real
Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) in the Infrastructure Field” ( { ZEHEEE LG
A THEREETES (REITs) HE FRLEITHMA) ), explicitly stating that
eligible projects across sectors such as municipal infrastructure (urban water supply
projects), eco-environmental protection infrastructure (urban sewage and waste
treatment projects), and water conservancy facilities (water conservancy projects with
functions like water supply) can apply for approval. It should be noted that in the
future, investment and financing channels in the water sector will further expand.
Supported by policies and funding mechanisms such as additional government bond
issuance, ultra-long-term special government bonds, and local government special
bonds, coupled with incentives to attract more social capital participation in water
conservancy infrastructure construction, the scale of related construction investment
and financing is expected to further expand. Notably, the expansion of REITs’
underlying assets holds critical importance for the water sector in revitalising existing
assets and reducing debt levels.

Overall, at the national and various government levels, the newly issued water
industry-related documents primarily promote the healthy and sustainable
development of the water industry through three key aspects: First, implementing
strict water conservation regulations to control total water consumption and
enhance water resource conservation and intensive utilization capabilities. Second,
accelerating urban sewage facility construction, strengthening sewage discharge
monitoring, and reforming sewage treatment fee standards. Third, addressing
funding needs for projects such as sewage treatment, water conservancy facilities
and ecological governance through multiple channels. A series of policies will
have a significant impact on the water industry in terms of improving quality
and efficiency, expanding production capacity, enhancing profitability, and
implementing tax and fee reforms. Looking ahead, the water industry remains one
of the key sectors strongly promoted by national and local government policies
in recent years. With various policy support, the water industry’s development
prospects remain promising.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

2024 was a crucial year for the Company to comprehensively deepen reform.
Throughout the year, under the strong and coherent leadership of the provincial
committee of the CPC, government and the provincial SASAC of Yunnan Province
as well as all shareholders, we joined hands with all employees and closely focused
on the goal of the year, forging ahead with determination and overcoming
difficulties. Our collective efforts were dedicated to accelerating production and
operations, propelling the Company towards a new phase of transformation.

In 2024, while continuing to consolidate the achievements in preventing
and resolving debt risks, the Company remained committed to coordinated
development and fully advancing its production and operations. Efforts persisted
in cost reduction and efficiency improvement, addressing historical issues through
targeted initiatives, and focusing on price and volume adjustments. The Company
coordinated asset disposal and debt recovery, actively promoted debt-to-equity
conversion, strengthened cash flow management, and pragmatically enhanced
operational activities. With a firm commitment to ensuring the timely fulfillment
of all mandatory expenditures, the Company maintained a continuous inflow of
operating net cash, achieved stable growth in operating revenue, and significantly
reduced operating losses (net of impairment provisions) compared to the previous
year.

In 2024, the Company efficiently completed the “three-in-one” construction
initiative by continuously strengthening management and oversight, streamlining its
authorization and delegation system, and establishing a risk control and compliance
framework. The Company also actively advanced special rectification initiatives for
mixed-ownership enterprises, and persistently promoted the resolution of litigation
cases to effectively safeguard its rights and interests. The Company intensified daily
operational support and technology R&D efforts to drive the transformation of
achievements into practical outcomes, while rigorously ensuring production safety.
It firmly shouldered the social responsibilities of a state-owned enterprise and
practiced the core value of “dedicated work.” The Company rigorously advanced
the “Clean Water Affairs” integrity initiative and focused on building talent team.

In 2025, the Company will focus on the goal of high-level transformation and
high-quality development. Guided by its position as a leading “integrated service
provider in the urban environmental protection industry”, it will concentrate on
its core responsibilities and main business, shift its development model, enhance
operational efficiency, expand into emerging sectors, strengthen team building
and cultivate leadership talent, and drive technological innovation to shape core
capabilities. We will persistently strengthen our development foundation by
optimising debt structure, rationalising asset allocation, diversifying financing
strategies, and improving organisational and institutional construction to enhance
sustainable development momentum. We will persistently unlock resource potential,
strengthen operational control, drive cost reduction and efficiency improvement,
ensure effective “new investment and new financing”, enhance capital operations,
and leverage resource advantages to improve profitability. We will persistently
refine institutional mechanisms by enhancing refined management, optimising
operational systems, improving incentive mechanisms, strengthening risk control,
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and building digital platforms to elevate scientific management capabilities. We
will persistently implement the people-centered development philosophy to build a
responsible state-owned enterprise, service benchmark, and harmonious corporate
that steadfastly fulfills corporate social responsibilities. We will foster a clean and
upright political environment within the Company, leveraging high-quality Party
building to drive high-quality development and making every effort to usher in a
new era of transformation and growth.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT"), Build-Own-Operate (“BOO"), Transfer-Operate-
Transfer (“TOT"), Transfer-Own-Operate (“TOO"), Build and Transfer (“BT"),
Engineering-Procurement-Construction (“EPC"), Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer
("ROT"), Operation and Maintenance (“O&M") and licensed operation models to
provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions for water supply, wastewater
treatment and solid waste treatment as well as system integration services of core
technologies to customers. The Group’s businesses are carried out in the PRC
and the Southeast Asian countries, and the Group's principal businesses comprise
five major segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste
treatment, construction and sales of equipment and others.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had a total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 5,746,000 tonnes. As at 31 December 2024, the Group's solid
waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste treatment
projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other business
segments) had a total annual treatment capacity of approximately 4,117,280
tonnes.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 121 concession wastewater
treatment projects, including 7 BOO projects, 60 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects,
23 TOT projects, 1 ROT project and 28 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects, with a total daily treatment capacity of approximately 3,166,250
tonnes, decreased by 5 BOT projects and 1 TOT project year-on-year as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2023, which was due to the disposal of assets.

As at 31 December 2024, 89 concession projects with a total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,276,345 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 7 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with a total
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 305,345 tonnes). During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s average wastewater treatment utilisation rate was
approximately 78.26%, and the average unit charge of wastewater treatment was
approximately RMB1.46 per tonne.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2024, 23 concession projects with a total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 529,910 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 21 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with a total daily treatment capacity of approximately 520,910 tonnes).

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 60 concession water supply
projects with a total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,214,100 tonnes,
including 15 BOO projects, 29 BOT projects, 11 TOT projects and 5 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, decreased by 4 BOT projects and 1
municipal environment comprehensive treatment project year-on-year as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2023, which was due to the disposal of assets.

As at 31 December 2024, 45 concession projects with a total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 1,345,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's average water supply utilisation rate
was approximately 64.53%, and the average unit charge of water supply was
approximately RMB2.34 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2024, 13 concession projects with a total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 749,100 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with a total daily treatment capacity of approximately 429,700 tonnes).

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 24 solid waste treatment projects with
a total annual treatment capacity of approximately 4,117,280 tonnes, 11 of
which with an annual treatment capacity of 2,277,600 tonnes had commenced
commercial operation (including 2 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
projects with an annual treatment capacity of approximately 419,750 tonnes);
8 of which with an annual treatment capacity of 1,618,000 tonnes were under
construction (including 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project
with a total annual treatment capacity of approximately 750,000 tonnes). The
treatment capacity remained generally stable as compared with 31 December 2023.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's average solid waste treatment utilisation
rate was approximately 79.37%.

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a
total of 11 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which revenue of 11 BT projects was recognised during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 13 EPC projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm LD

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment, water supply, and solid waste treatment facilities owned by
third parties as well as provision of technical and consultancy services in relation
to environmental protection. As at 31 December 2024, the Group was providing
relevant operational services for 22 O&M projects, which included 21 wastewater
treatment projects with a total daily treatment capacity of approximately 357,650
tonnes (including the capacity of wastewater treatment projects adopting O&M
model within municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects), and 1
water supply project with daily treatment capacity of approximately 8,000 tonnes,
and there was 1 new wastwater treatment project with a total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 5,000 tonnes as compared to 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB2,798.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group realized a net loss
of approximately RMB2,166.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
117.8% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2023. Loss attributable to
the ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB1,739.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 152.8% as compared with 31 December
2023. Loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately
RMB1.458.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased from approximately RMB3,116.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB2,798.2 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 10.2%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment decreased from approximately RMB1,669.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately RMB1,381.0 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from water supply increased by approximately 4.9% from approximately
RMB738.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB774.8 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from construction and sales
of equipment decreased by approximately 77.5% from approximately RMB131.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB29.6 million
for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid waste treatment increased by
approximately 7.5 % from RMB519.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB558.4 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from other
business decreased from approximately RMB57.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB54.4 million for the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The decrease in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue from construction of the existing
wastewater treatment projects under construction, decrease in interest income
from wastewater treatment projects and disposal of subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly attributable
to the increase in operating revenue from water supply service projects during the
Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue from construction and operation of solid
waste projects during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment segment
was mainly attributable to the decrease in scale of EPC construction and equipment
sales and BT construction services during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales and Services

During the Reporting Period, cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB2,344.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 4.8% as compared
with approximately RMB2,461.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in cost for construction which was
in line with the decrease in construction revenue from the existing wastewater
treatment projects under construction during the construction period.

Gross Profit Margin

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
16.22%, representing a decrease of approximately 4.8% as compared with
approximately 21.02% for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB58.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 67.9% as compared
with approximately RMB182.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
decrease in other income was mainly due to nil income from debt restructuring in
the current year.

Other Gains/(Losses) — Net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net losses of approximately
RMB138.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB198.6 million as
compared with the net gains of approximately RMB60.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The change in other gains/(losses), on the one hand, was due
to the net losses of approximately RMB104.1 million generated from disposal of
investments in subsidiaries in the current year, while the revenue of approximately
RMB36.2 million and RMB55.3 million were generated from the withdrawal of a
water supply project and a wastewater project respectively last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN RO

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group were approximately
RMB33.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMBO0.2 million or
0.7 % as compared with approximately RMB33.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB210.7 million from
approximately RMB422.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB633.5 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 49.8%. The increase in administrative expenses was primarily due
to the increase in the provision for impairment of intangible assets in the current
year of RMB175.9 million compared to last year.

Finance Costs — Net

Net finance costs increased by RMB179.6 million from approximately RMB951.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB1,130.8 million
for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 18.9%. The
increase in net finance costs was primarily because of loan agreement arrangements
(measured at amortized cost) successively entered by the Group and the debtors
such as the bank from the second half of 2022 to the first half of 2023, increase
in amortization amount in the current year compared to last year, and increase in
exchange losses during the Reporting Period.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 3.93% per annum, representing an increase compared to
approximately 3.04% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Loss Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded loss before income tax of
approximately RMB 2,138.5 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 162.5% as compared with the loss before income tax of
approximately RMB814.7 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by RMB152.2 million from approximately RMB179.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB27.7 million
for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 84.6%. The
decrease was mainly due to the increase in the amount of loss before income tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the Reporting Period increased by
approximately RMB1,171.6 million from the loss of approximately RMB994.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to the loss of approximately RMB2,166.2
million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
117.8%.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
approximately RMB433.4 million from approximately RMB7,360.1 million as at 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB7,793.5 million as at 31 December 2024,
representing an increase of approximately 5.9%. The increase was mainly because
two projects have completed their construction and were put into operation during
the Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments decreased by
approximately RMB358.4 million from approximately RMB9,011.2 million as at 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB8,652.8 million as at 31 December 2024,
representing a decrease of approximately 4%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in the amounts due from related parties and the increase in provision for
impairment in the current period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group's cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately RMB108.9
million from approximately RMB899.2 million as at 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB1,008.1 million as at 31 December 2024, representing an
increase of approximately 12.1%. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
cash inflow generated from investing activities and in bank deposits during the
Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group's trade and other payables decreased by approximately RMB256.5
million from approximately RMB9,534.5 million as at 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB9,278.0 million as at 31 December 2024, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.7%. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
the amount due to related parties and other taxes payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm LD

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB21,369.5 million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB30,982.4 million).
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had unsecured borrowings of approximately
RMB7,306.3 million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB18,119.1 million), and
secured borrowings of approximately RMB14,063.2 million (31 December 2023:
approximately RMB12,863.1 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2024, borrowings of approximately RMB14,063.2 million (31
December 2023: approximately RMB12,863.1 million) were secured by the Group's
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the Company's
investments in subsidiaries.

Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital) decreased
from approximately 89.71% as at 31 December 2023 to approximately 64.59%
as at 31 December 2024. The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to the
decrease in borrowings and the increase in perpetual capital instruments during the
Reporting Period.

The Board will closely monitor and improve the gearing ratio of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed 4,982 employees (31 December
2023: 5,586). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately RMB440.9
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMB522.5 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its
employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material
impact on its normal business operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other
than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars (“US$")
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional Currencies”). The
Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
and minimizing its net foreign currency position. Management considers the
fluctuations in exchange rates between the functional currencies of respective
group entities and Non-functional Currencies in which the group entities conduct
business will not have significant effect on the Group’s financial position and
results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 December 2024 and as at the date on which consolidated financial
statements were approved for publication, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

On 14 June 2024, the Company (as vendor) and Li County State-owned Asset
Operation and Management Centre* (2HZBIBEEELZEEP D) (“Li County
State-owned Asset”) (as purchaser) entered into the Lizhou Equity Transaction
Agreement, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to sell and Li County State-
owned Asset agreed to acquire 65% equity interest in Hunan Lizhou Water
Co., Ltd. *(HEEM/KISEER 2 E]) held by the Company, at a consideration of
RMB80,589,416.

For details of the above-mentioned transaction, please refer to the announcement
and the circular published by the Company on 24 June 2024 and 26 July 2024,
respectively.

On 24 June 2024, the Company (as vendor) and Wuxi Pinghu Jingshui Technology
Co., Ltd.* (EHITHFKEHL AR A A]) (“Wuxi Pinghu”) (as purchaser) entered
into (a) the Wuxi Zhongfa Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to sell, and Wuxi Pinghu agreed to acquire, 75% equity interest
in Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd.* (&85 ZKHBIEEFR A ) held by
the Company at a consideration of RMB95,900,625; (b) the Wuxi Yunshui Equity
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm LD

Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to sell, and Wukxi
Pinghu agreed to acquire, 100% equity interest in Wuxi Yunshui Water Investment
Co., Ltd.* (#E$HENKKFEIZEAGMR A7) held by the Company at a consideration of
RMB57,046,016; and (c) the Ehu Yunshui Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant
to which, the Company agreed to sell, and Wuxi Pinghu agreed to acquire, 100%
equity interest in Wuxi Ehu Yunshui Water Investment Co., Ltd.* (Z&5%5#HZE koK
¥R E AR A F]) held by the Company at a consideration of RMB18,440,300.

For details of the above-mentioned transactions, please refer to the announcement
and the circular published by the Company on 24 June 2024 and 26 July 2024,
respectively.

On 12 July 2024, the Company (as vendor) and Gongyi Yuansheng Water Co.,
Ltd.* (EEMREKEERAE

into the Gongyi Equity Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, the Company

) ("“Gongyi Yuansheng”) (as purchaser) entered

agreed to sell and Gongyi Yuansheng agreed to acquire 89.995% equity interest in
Gongyi Water Resources Co., Ltd.* (E&FM/KISER A F) held by the Company, at

a consideration of RMB67,374,000.

For details of the above-mentioned transaction, please refer to the announcement
and the circular published by the Company on 12 July 2024 and 25 October 2024,
respectively.

On 12 November 2024, Hyflux Utility WTP (GY) Limited (3125 R AR =X B K

KOEE)BBRZA A" Hyflux WTP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(as vendor) and Guanyun County Water Group Co., Ltd.* (EZEKBEEBBR A
Fl) ("Guanyun Water") (as purchaser) entered into the Hyflux Guanyun Equity
Transaction Agreement, pursuant to which, Hyflux WTP has agreed to sell, and
Guanyun Water has agreed to acquire 100% equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring
(Guanyun) Co., Ltd.* (8133 R B RKKCEE)BR A A]) indirectly held by the
Company, at a consideration of RMB248,140,000.

For details of the above-mentioned transaction, please refer to the announcement
and the circular published by the Company on 12 November 2024 and 27
November 2024, respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Mr. Chen Yong submitted a resignation letter to the Board due to work adjustment
reasons to resign as a non-executive Director of the Company, with effect from 28
March 2025.

Mr. Xia Lin was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 28
March 2025.

For details of the above-mentioned events, please refer to the announcement
published by the Company on 28 March 2025.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Guangfeng, aged 52, a member of the Chinese Communist Party,
obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in electronic precision machinery from
Nanjing University of Science and Technology in June 1995. Mr. Zheng Guangfeng
served as the human resources and administration manager of Shougang NEC
Electronics Co., Ltd.* (B#lHEEFAR Q) from July 1995 to August 2002, the
human resources and administration manager of Tongfang Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd.* (RFMEFHR AR from August 2002 to August 2005 and the director
of human resources of Tsinghua Tongfang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd.* (B}
ATEREEGR2AR]) from August 2005 to July 2010. Since July 2010, Mr. Zheng
Guangfeng has served as the human resources and administration director, member
of the Party Committee, chairman of the trade union, assistant to the president and
interim member of the Commission for Discipline Inspection of Beijing OriginWater
Technology Co., Ltd.* GEREKIREHXRH AR A F]). Since March 2024, he has
served as the general manager of the Company, as weII as the executive Director
and Vice-Chairman of the Company since June 2024.

Ms. Wang Rui, aged 48, is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics (majoring in money and banking) from
Yunnan Finance and Trade College* (EFEI &2 ) in July 2000 and graduated
from Xiamen University with a master’'s degree in engineering specialising in
software engineering in June 2013. Ms. Wang Rui worked in Senior Sub-branch
(EAMEERITEFZT) from February 2001
to March 2010. From March 2010 to January 2021, She held various positions
at Fudian Bank Co., Ltd., including third-level risk manager of risk management
(BHEZ

% 17), the deputy general manager of risk management headquarter, the office

of Kunming Commercial Bank*

headquarter, the risk supervisor of Kunming Guangfeng Sub-branch*

director of the approval committee, the secretary to branch committee of the Party
ELRAA 1L % 77), the director
of the Transport Finance Innovation Center* (@& @ al#T# 1) and the general

and the president of Kunming Zhongshan Sub-branch*(E

manager of retail banking management department (customer rights protection
department). Ms. Wang Rui served as the general manager of the investment
management center of Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.
from January 2021 to March 2023 and has served as the secretary of the Party
Committee of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (Ef /KR E R BIE Q7))
since March 2023. Since December 2024, she has served as the executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Liu Hui, aged 45, obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical insurance from
Nanjing Railway Medical College in August 1999 and a master’s degree in political
economy from Yunnan University in July 2008. Mr. Liu Hui has over 22 years of
experience in corporate finance management. From August 1999 to September
2005, Mr. Liu Hui served as an assistant economist in the Third People’s Hospital
of Yunnan Province. From July 2008 to November 2010, Mr. Liu Hui worked in
the finance and accounting department of the Rural Credit Cooperative Union
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in Wuhua District, Kunming. From November 2010 to July 2012, Mr. Liu Hui has
successively served as the deputy business head and senior business manager in the
finance management department of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment
Co., Ltd.* (EEAHWMEXIRESEEAERAR]). From July 2012 to November 2020,
Mr. Liu Hui has successively served as senior business manager of the finance
management department, head of the finance management center, and deputy
general manager of the finance management center of Yunnan I\/Ietropolitan
Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (EMAMMERKREELBEBERA

and also served as the chief financial controller of its subsidiary. From November
2020 to February 2023, Mr. Liu Hui was the deputy general manager of the finance
management center of Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.*
(EFmEFIKIEREBEBRAF]). Since March 2023, Mr. Liu Hui has served as the
deputy general manager of the Company. Since June 2023, Mr. Liu Hui has served

as the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Mei Wei, aged 53, was awarded a bachelor’'s degree in water conservancy
and hydropower engineering construction by Gezhouba Hydropower Engineering
College (B /KE TF2EP) in July 1992, and became a senior engineer in water
conservancy engineering in November 2013. Mr. Mei Wei has more than 22 years
of rich management experience in the environmental protection industry. From May
2000 to March 2003, Mr. Mei Weij served as the deputy director of the Yunnan
Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering Investigation, Design and Research
(EmEBKFIKERAIZFHZEET). From March 2003 to May 2008, Mr. Mei Wei
successively served as the deputy dean and dean of the Water Conservancy Branch
of Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering Investigation, Design and
Research (Ef & KFKE 8B %1 72bT K F 9 BT). From May 2008 to June 2009,
Mr. Mei Wei served as the executive deputy dean of Niulanjiang Branch of Yunnan
Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering Investigation, Design and Research
(EFAKFKER AR 48T 2 F2). From June 2009 to January 2022, Mr.
Mei Wei successively served as the deputy dean, executive deputy dean and dean
of Yunnan Institute of Water & Hydropower Engineering Investigation, Design and
Research. From January 2022 to July 2024, Mr. Mei Wei has served as the secretary
of the Party Committee and chairman of Yunnan Green Environmental Protection
Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (EEEHECRREXZEEERARF)
shareholder of the Company. Since January 2023, Mr. Mei Wei has served as the

, a controlling

non-executive Director and Chairman of the Company. Since July 2024, Mr. Mei
Wei served as the deputy general manager of YHTH.

Mr. Dai Richeng, aged 59, obtained a master’'s degree in environmental
engineering from the Department of Chemical Engineering of Nanjing University
of Science and Technology and a doctoral degree in environmental engineering
from the Department of Environmental Engineering at Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai
Richeng has approximately 30 years of extensive experience in the water treatment
industry. He was an engineer at the Water Pollution Research Office of the Quan
Jun Environmental Science Research Centre* (2EIRZERIEBITAH LT LRIAEE)
and later acted as a senior engineer in the China Water Pollution Research Centre*
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(R BI/KI5 29T+ 0). From August 1998 to June 2010, Mr. Dai Richeng acted
as the general manager and senior engineer in a subsidiary principally engaged in
wastewater treatment of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (BZERF KD AR A 7))
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 600100). From July 2010 to
March 2012, Mr. Dai Richeng was the vice-president and senior engineer of Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited (QELiZ/KBFEEBFR R

Stock Exchange, stock code: 371). Since 2012, Mr. Dai Richeng has successively

7)) (its shares listed on the

been the president, deputy secretary of the party committee and executive
president of Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (At REZRERHEZE M BRE A
7)) and served as director and chairman of its subsidiaries.

Mr. Xia Lin, aged 53, is a member of the Chinese Communist Party, with a
doctorate in economics from Peking University. He joined the Group on 28 March
2025 and currently serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. From 1993
to 2008, he has been successively engaged in securities investment, investment
bank underwriting, fund management and other work in Bank of China Head Office
Trust Company (F B#R1T4877{55E 2 &), Changsheng Fund Management CO., LTD.
(RERESEEAF]), China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (FF EISR 77 %2 &) and other
financial institutions, and has accumulated very solid experience in the industry. He
joined China National Petroleum Corporation (FFEIA M AR R EEAF]) in2008
and was responsible for direct investment and equity management matters in CNPC
Assets Management Co., Ltd (FHEEEE Q)
the general manager of Real Estate Business Department, the general manager of

. He has successively served as

Self-operated Business Department and the president of Equity Investment Division
in Kunlun Trust CO., LTD. (E® {55t 7)) after its establishment, during which he
has concurrently served as the first general manager of CNPC Climate Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (FRRIZIZEEE QR F])and has been responsible for the
establishment of OGCI Kunlun Climate Fund (E@®&IREE).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, aged 51, joined the Group in June 2018, and serves as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu Shuen Kong obtained
a bachelor’s degree in accounting and a master’s degree in accounting from RMIT
University of Australia in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He subsequently obtained
a master's degree in business administration from Deakin University of Australia
in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than 23 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and management and is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu Shuen Kong has worked at KPMG
since 1996 as a manager, senior manager and supervisor. In particular, from 1996
to 1999, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong worked in the audit department of the Hong Kong
office of KPMG. From 1999 to 2010, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong worked in the financial
advisory service department of the Guangzhou office and Shenzhen office of
KPMG. From October 2010 to December 2013, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong was the CFO
and company secretary of Leoch International Technology Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 842). From December 2013 to May 2017, Mr.
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Liu Shuen Kong was the executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of Yestock Car Rental Company Limited. From May 2017 to 2021, Mr.
Liu Shuen Kong was the managing director of member companies of Heungkong
Financial Group. Since 2023, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong has been the executive director
of Lim Hoi Holding (S8 H).

Mr. Zhong Wei, aged 55, joined the Group in October 2020, and currently
serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhong Wei
graduated from Nanjing University in 1990 majoring in applied physics and from
Southeast University in 1994 majoring in industrial economics management. Mr.
Zhong Wei received his doctorate’s degree in 1999 from Beijing Normal University
majoring in international economics. Between September 2001 and July 2004, Mr.
Zhong Wei engaged in postdoctoral research in management science at Tongji
University. Mr. Zhong Wei has been a professor of the department of Economics
and Business Management of Beijing Normal University since July 2003. Mr. Zhong
Wei has long been engaged in the field of finance and macroeconomic research.
Mr. Zhong Wei was selected by the PRC Ministry of Education and the Beijing
Supported by Program for New Century Excellent Talents in University* (1t /=3t
L ESTELFRIE AL FTE]). Since April 2017, Mr. Zhong Wei has served as
an independent non-executive director of China Resources Land Limited (Z£H Z i
BBR7AA]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1109). Since August 2020, Mr. Zhong Wei has served as an independent non-
executive director of China Jinmao Holdings Group Limited (F Bl Xz &= A
fRA7]) (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
817).

Mr. Zhou Beihai, aged 61, joined the Group in October 2020, and currently
serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhou Beihai
obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the Department of Environmental
Engineering at Tsinghua University (F2EARZIRIFETIZR) in March 1992. Mr. Zhou
Beihai carried out research on solid waste landfill technology at The University
of Fukuoka in Japan from March 1993 to March 1994, and conducted research
on photocatalysis water treatment technology at Saitama University in Japan
from January 1995 to March 1995. Mr. Zhou Beihai served as the director of
the Registration and Management Centre for the solid waste under the State
Administration of Environmental Protection (BAZKIRRABEEENELEEF
1) from October 1996 to August 2001, and served as the diplomatic officer of
science and technology at the Chinese Embassy in Japan from October 2001 to
December 2004. Mr. Zhou Beihai has been a professor at the School of Energy and
Environmental Engineering of University of Science and Technology Beijing since
January 2005.
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Mr. Long Limin, aged 55, joined the Group in August 2017, and currently serves
as a shareholder representative Supervisor and chairman of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company. Mr. Long Limin obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Chongging University in 1991 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University in 2004. From July 1991 to July 2000, Mr.
Long Limin served as the deputy factory manager of Beijing Plumbing Equipment
Factory 1 (A RTM7KEEE§H — ). From July 2000 to July 2010, Mr. Long Limin
served as the deputy general manager of Tsinghua Tongfang Artificial Environment
Co., Ltd* (BERFT ATIREABRAF]). Since December 2010, Mr. Long Limin has
served as the manager of the planning and procurement department, the chief
operating officer, the chief operating officer, the chief procurement officer, the
assistant to the president, the vice president and the senior vice president of Beijing
OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (b RENRERHZARMD AR A A, during which
he concurrently served as the general manager of its subsidiaries.

Mr. Zhu Zhen, aged 39, joined the Group in August 2017, and currently serves as
a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhu Zhen obtained his
master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University in September 2009. Mr. Zhu Zhen
has nearly 13 years of experience in law, investment, asset management, capital
operation and strategy. Mr. Zhu Zhen served as the deputy general manager of the
audit and legal affairs department of YMCI from October 2013 to September 2016
and was promoted to the general manager of the legal department of YMCI in
September 2016. Mr. Zhu Zhen has served as a director and supervisor in a number
of subsidiaries of YMCI since September 2014. From November 2020 to January
2021, Mr. Zhu Zhen served as the general manager of the legal and compliance
department of Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (£
L BRI EE AR A R]). From January 2021 to April 2022, Mr. Zhu Zhen served
as a member of the party committee, director and general manager of Yunnan
Rongzhi Investment Company Limited* (EF g% 1% & B R A 7). From April 2022 to
July 2023, Mr. Zhu Zhen served as the general manager of the asset management
center of YHTH. Since July 2023, Mr. Zhu Zhen has served as the general manager
of the strategic development department of YHTH. Since April 2022, Mr. Zhu
Zhen has served as the chairman of Yunnan Province Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (EfE RiEREE$EIERABR A F]) and Caiyun International
Investment Limited (K E R % & BR A 7).
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Ms. Tang Shuang, aged 40, joined the Group in January 2015, and currently
serves as the deputy manager of the asset management center (responsible for
daily operations) and an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Tang Shuang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Yunnan
University in July 2007, and she obtained the qualification as an accountant in May
2006 awarded by the Ministry of Finance. Ms. Tang Shuang is mainly responsible
for supervising the directors, managers and other management personnel of
the Company to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang Shuang has
more than 11 years of working experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang
Shuang worked at the accounting department of the Yunnan branch company of
Ping An Life Insurance Limited between July 2007 and June 2008. Ms. Tang Shuang
worked at the accounting department of the Beijing branch company of Ping
An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China Limited from July 2008 to
March 2010. From March 2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang Shuang served as the
director of the business department of Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company
Limited. Ms. Tang Shuang has served as the deputy manager of the bidding
and procurement department, the deputy manager of the business department
(responsible for daily operations) and the deputy manager of the asset management
center (responsible for daily operations) of the Company from February 2015 to July
2024. Ms. Tang Shuang serves as the manager of the asset management center of
the Company since July 2024.

Mr. Mo Wenyi, aged 52, obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial analysis from
the Department of Applied Chemistry by Dalian Railway Institute (RiE&EZFR) in
July 1993 and was awarded the title of engineer in August 2002. From December
1993 to April 2006, Mr. Mo Wenyi worked in the management position of Fifth
Water Plant of Kunming Water Supply Company* (2R & 27K A & F/KE). From
May 2006 to February 2010, Mr. Mo Wenyi served as the legal specialist of the
general manager's office of Kunming CGE Water Supply Co., Ltd (ERFE KK
B 2K A F]). From March 2010 to September 2012, Mr. Mo Wenyi served as the
legal manager of Guangzhou Veolia Consulting Services Co., Ltd* (E/MTHESL
WA ARIS AR A F]). From September 2012 to September 2013, Mr. Mo Wenyi
served as the legal director of Veolia Industrial Water Treatment (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd* (B M T 3KEEIE(L78)A R 2 A]). From September 2013 to November 2016,
Mr. Mo Wenyi served as the technical director of Veolia (China) Environmental
Services Co., Ltd* (B 7 (FE) RIFARFE B R A F]). and the technical manager
of the water plant of Kunming CGE Water Supply Co., Ltd (B 8338 /K7 8 koK
BFRAF]). From January 2017 to September 2018, Mr. Mo Wenyi served as the
department manager of the investment department of Beijing Enterprises Water
Yunnan Rapid Transit Investment Company* (JLiZ/KISEmREEERE R F]). Since
September 2018, Mr. Mo Wenyi has successively served as the deputy manager of
the legal department (responsible for daily operations) and the deputy manager of
the audit and compliance management center (responsible for daily operations) of

the Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui, aged 53, joined the Group in January 2015, and currently
serves as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan Hairui obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now
known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics) in July 1993. Mr. Tan
Hairui obtained the certificate as a registered accountant issued by Accountant
Examination Committee of Ministry of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and
a Lawyer’s License in August 2004. Mr. Tan Hairui has more than 19 years of
working experience in large-scale enterprises, and he is mainly responsible
for supervising the Directors, managers and other management personnel to
ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the
resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan Hairui was the deputy manager
of the financial department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry Company
from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan Hairui joined Yunnan Hengxin Law Firm
as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002 to August 2007. Mr. Tan Hairui
joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer between September 2007 and March
2009. Mr. Tan Hairui worked in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer from March
2009 to January 2018. Since January 2018, Mr. Tan Hairui has been working

in Beijing Yingke (Kunming) Law Firm (Gt RZBRH(EH)ZMEBAT as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling, aged 48, joined the Group in January 2018, and currently serves
as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Zhang Ling is the deputy
professor and Master's tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources law research center
of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang Ling
obtained her law degree in July 1997 at Wuhan University and a master’s degree
in international business law and European Union law at University of Sheffield
in November 2004. Since September 2005, Ms. Zhang Ling has been working at
the law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for
teaching, research and application of law. Ms. Zhang Ling had published dozens
of professional academic papers on law, held discussions on national social topics
and research on provincial laws. She was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of
the State Council* (BBt %H3%), the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (RRIEXEF) and the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs* (9M22#0) to participate in the amendments of two laws
and regulations and legislative consultation. She has received the research award of
Yunnan Philosophical Social Science Society* (Ef & H 24 & R BT 2E) twice.
In addition, Ms. Zhang Ling had over 20 years of solid experience in the legal field.
Since she was qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms. Zhang Ling
had worked in five different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently working
on a part-time basis at Shanghai Zhonglian (Kunming) Law Firm* (/8 E#(E87)72
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Qian Hongsheng, aged 53, graduated from Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics with a major in accounting in January 2016 and was named a senior
accountant in July 2017. From October 2009 to May 2012, Mr. Qian Hongsheng
served as the auditor of the Yunnan branch of China Audit Asia Pacific Certified
Public Accountants LLP (FEEA M EHAAR A E]). From May 2012 to
August 2021, Mr. Qian Hongsheng successively served as the budget supervisor of
the financial management center, deputy manager of the financial management
center, and manager of the financial management center of Yunnan Metropolitan
Real Estate Development Company Limited* (EmMEEERMHBRA
July 2021 to June 2024, Mr. Qian Hongsheng served as the chief financial officer of
Jinghong City Investment Development Co., Ltd* (MM AR ERZEAER A

Since June 2024, Mr. Qian Hongsheng has served as the chief financial officer of

Al). From

the Company.

Mr. Wang Keguang, aged 42, graduated from Hohai University with a major in
water conservancy and hydropower engineering in January 2011 and became a
senior engineer in August 2017. From June 2002 to June 2012, Mr. Wang Keguang
worked in Xiaowan Hydropower Station Supervision Center (/)N 7K & ik ESFE h
1) of China Northwest Water Conservancy & Hydropower Engineering Consulting
Co., Ltd. From June 2012 to March 2013, Mr. Wang Keguang served as the deputy
director of civil construction department of Huangdeng Dam Supervision Center
(HBKE

Engineering Consulting Co., Ltd. From June 2013 to June 2024, Mr. Wang Keguang

VHESIEAL) of China Northwest Water Conservancy & Hydropower

successively served as the engineer and deputy chief engineer, as well as the deputy
director, deputy director (responsible for daily operations), director and manager of
the engineering department of Yunnan New Century Dianchi International Cultural
Tourism Convention Investment Co., Ltd. Since June 2024, Mr. Wang Keguang has
served as the deputy general manager of the Company.
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Mr. Huang Yi, aged 48, joined the Company in August 2011, and currently serves
as the deputy general manager and an employee representative Supervisor of the
Company. Mr. Huang Yi obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Business School of Nanjing Normal University in July 2001. Mr. Huang Yi
has over 21 years of extensive experience in business management and strategic
investment. From July 2001 to July 2002, Mr. Huang Yi worked at the Kunming
Resident Office of the National Audit Office. From July 2002 to November 2003,
Mr. Huang Yi served as senior staff member of the Kunming Resident Office of the
National Audit Office. From November 2003 to June 2009, Mr. Huang Yi served
successively as assistant to the director of the audit department, deputy director
of the discipline inspection office of Yunnan Malong Industry Group Company
Limited* (EFaHREXEERMNHEMR AT and member of the Commission for
Discipline Inspection of Malong Industry*(§§8Z2£). From August 2009 to June
2010, Mr. Huang Yi worked at Yunnan Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd (&
MEKGEEKREERAF). From June 2010 to August 2011, Mr. Huang Yi
served as deputy manager of the investment development department of Yunnan
Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd (EF&/KEEXIZEBRAA). Since August
2011, Mr. Huang Yi has served successively as deputy manager of the investment
development department, deputy manager of the investment development
department Il, manager of the investment development department, deputy
general manager of the market and investment centre, the general manager of the
southwest region and deputy general manager of the Company. In addition, since
August 2017, Mr. Huang Yi has served as chairman, executive director or senior
management of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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Ms. Luo Shujie, aged 39, joined the Company in January 2021 and currently
serves as the deputy general manager of the Company. Ms. Luo Shujie obtained
a bachelor’s degree in finance (risk management and insurance) from Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics in July 2006 and a master’s degree in software
engineering from Xiamen University in June 2011. Ms. Luo Shujie has over 11 years
of management experience in the financial sector. From July 2006 to September
2007, Ms. Luo Shujie served as the customer manager in Nanjiang Sub-branch of
Kunming Commercial Bank. From September 2007 to July 2008, Ms. Luo Shujie
worked at Baita Sub-branch of Kunming Commercial Bank. From July 2008 to
August 2012, Ms. Luo Shujie worked at Kunming Baita Sub-branch of Fudian
Bank Co., Ltd. From August 2012 to November 2016, Ms. Luo Shujie served as the
president of Kunming Baida Sub-branch of Fudian Bank Co., Ltd. From November
2016 to September 2019, Ms. Luo Shujie successively served as the director of
the Wealth Center, the assistant to the president and the director of Wealth
Management Center of Kunming Chajie Sub-branch of Fudian Bank Co., Ltd. From
September 2019 to November 2020, Ms. Luo Shujie served as the assistant to the
president of Kunming economic development district Sub-branch of Fudian Bank
Co., Ltd. From November 2020 to January 2021, Ms. Luo Shujie worked in Fudian
Bank Co., Ltd. Since January 2021, Ms. Luo Shujie successively served as deputy
director of financing and deputy general manager of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, aged 45, joined the Company in May 2013 as company secretary and
has served as the secretary to the Board of the Company since August 2013. Mr.
Li Bo graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business in Beijing with
a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001 and obtained a master’s degree
in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in April 2006. Mr. Li Bo is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He is mainly responsible
for assisting with the operation of our Company and the operation of the Board.
Mr. Li Bo has more than 10 years of experience in finance related senior positions.
Mr. Li Bo was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales as an auditor since
August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor. From March 2011 to June
2013, Mr. Li Bo served as the financial controller and the company secretary of
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2024 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2024, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 27
to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not
subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its existing
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and

raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in
order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
80 to 81. The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 is set out
in the consolidated Balance Sheet on pages 82 to 84. The consolidated cash flow
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 87 to 88.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from page 14 to 26.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

Considering the actual situation of the Group, the Board has decided not to
recommend the payment of final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of approximately

RMBO0.00 million (contract value) (excluding personal donations from employees).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2024 are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEQHE

EE - EERSHREEE

MANAGEMENT
Certain information concerning the Directors, the Supervisors and senior TRENEARADNRBREHARBERFRA
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as of the date of HESE ESNaREEENIMEIR -
this annual report is set out below.
Directors =
Name Title in the Company Date of Appointment for the Current Term
A AR B BB AT RITEPNEERH
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng Executive Director, Vice-Chairman appointed as the executive Director,
Vice-Chairman on 5 June 2024
EEEEE BITES  BESK RZZZNFESAABEZERNITES -
BEER
Ms. Wang Rui Executive Director appointed as the executive Director on
27 December 2024
Tt BWITES RZZEZMNE+ AT EABZERNTES
Mr. Liu Hui Executive Director 29 December 2023
IS AE HITES —E-=F+=-A=+AhH
Mr. Liu Jianjun (resigned as Executive Director, Vice-Chairman 29 December 2023
the executive Director and
Vice Chairman on 5 June 2024)
BEBEAE(R_Z_WMEXAEA BITEE BEEER —E_=F+ZAZtNB
BERNTES BIEER)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (resigned as Executive Director 29 December 2023
the executive Director
on 27 December 2024)
AEEEE(R-Z-MmF HITES —E=F+ZRA=+AH
FTZAZ T EABARITES)
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Name

R

Title in the Company
RA D B BB A

Date of Appointment for the Current Term
RITEHNEEAH

Non-executive Directors
FETES

Mr. Mei Wei

BEEE

Mr. Dai Richeng
BAEKEE

Mr. Xia Lin

BEMEE
Mr. Chen Yong (resigned as
the non-executive Director
on 28 March 2025)
BRELAE(R_T-_AF=A=+N\R
BHEFENITES)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYkHTES
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong
BT R E

Mr. Zhong Wei
ER L

Mr. Zhou Beihai
Al gkt

40

Non-executive Director, Chairman
FMITES - EEER
Non-executive Director
EMITES

Non-executive Director

FEMITES

Non-executive Director

FEMITEE

Independent Non-executive Director
BUIFRITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BAUIFRITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BYFRITES
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29 December 2023
—E-=F+=ZRA=+AhH
29 December 2023
—E_=F+-A=Z+ANH
appointed as the non-executive Director on
28 March 2025
R —RAF=A-+\BEZERIFNITES
29 December 2023

—E-=F+=-A=1+ANH

29 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZRA=TANH
29 December 2023
—E_=F+ZA=tNB
29 December 2023
—E=F+ZA=+1A



Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EERRE
EERSREERESSR

Date of Appointment for the Current Term

BATEHNEERHY

Name Title in the Company

HE R A B BT

Supervisors

=

Mr. Long Limin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee,

shareholder representative Supervisor

BEAMEEE EFEEEF  BRRARES

Mr. Zhu Zhen Shareholder representative Supervisor

KR & 4 BRERR KBS

Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor

EEHEE B EE

Ms. Zhang Ling Independent Supervisor

R+t B EE

Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor

ERZ+ BIRRES

Mr. Mo Wenyi Employee representative Supervisor

BEX#Hxk BIRKKRES

Mr. Huang Yi (resigned on Employee representative Supervisor
31 January 2024)

BRAEE(RZT_NF BIRKES
—A=+—HED)

Senior management

EREEE

Mr. Zheng Guangfeng President

BEEEE kS

Mr. Liu Hui Vice President

2B %k & Bl

Mr. Qian Hongsheng Chief financial officer

BRBEEE MisEE

Mr. Wang Keguang Vice President

TERBERE Bl

Mr. Huang Yi Vice President

mEEE Bl

Ms. Luo Shujie Vice President

ERAT 2 Bl

Mr. Li Bo Company Secretary, Secretary to the Board

FEELE NRAME EEFWE

During the period from the Listing Date to the end of the Reporting Period,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

29 December 2023

—EZ=F+ZRA=+NH
29 December 2023
—E-=F+ZA=+ANH
29 December 2023

R =f+ZA=-+NH8
29 December 2023
—E_=F+ZRA=tNH
29 December 2023
—E-=F+ZA=+ANH
31 January 2024
—EZ_ME-A=+—H
29 December 2023

—E-_=F+=-A=+hH

27 March 2024
ZE-_MFE=A=++tH
29 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZA=Z+NH
5 June 2024
ZE_MEXNARHA

5 June 2024
—TWFEANARA

29 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZA=+NH
29 December 2023

TR =F+ZA=+NH
29 December 2023
—EB=F+ZRA=+NH

RETHHABEREMLINE EFE &
FaetmRNEBERERES =R BILIENT
EX(HEFGABN =D 2 ) METAE—
BBUPTEETAEAABEERERXE
ARAEMBERERAMBIAE
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The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
from the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 27 to 36 of this annual report. There are no
relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as
defined in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with
the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with the
Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year nor
may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management is subject
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to the Board with reference to,
among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are set
out in note 41 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group's business in which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any Director or
Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract
of significance been entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Board, none of the
Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates has any business or
interest that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or have or
may have any conflict of interest with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

EE EERBSTHRAEHR
R - HERGORES 2R

158293

R-ZE_ME+_-_RA=+—H AQAH=HE
E EERESTRABRARABREEM
HEEE(EERER LB EGMEXVED)
R - HERODREST  BEREES
REE GBI FE 352 R AE A 7 LAFHAR
ARARBEZGEXAFENETLRMOES
AR IRARME ST QA F & AR R A R B 32 A O
& RERHENARREERIAT ¢

Percentage
of the Percentage
respective  of the total
type of  number of
Name of Director, Shares in Shares in
Supervisor and chief issue (%) issue (%)
executive Type of Number of HERT HE#T
B EERES Capacity Shares Shares held 5 R 5 B D
THABHS &4 R 45 %8 5l BEROHE HIEE Bl (%)  HIEE B (%)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 325,000(L) 0.04 0.03
AETRE EnlA A NE KR
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
BRHLE EmEE A NER
Note: BT -
(L) refers to long position (L) REGFA

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2024, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company's best knowledge, as of 31 December 2024, the following persons
(other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the section
headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which
were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the respective type of
share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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%E&i%&ﬁ$%%§&%
B

BARARARFMAM RZT-_MNF+=A
=t—B " THAL(RRAFNESEKESR
I BEZEEREXES EER&EST
HBABERD. BEARNDRESZES A
Bl—EHEZF)RARABRN. HERKRGRE
FHRBEARB(EFRBEKRGIDEXVIBE?2
RE3IDEAERANARWEERSRA R RIRE
BHELRPEKNEIB6KRATEERDAE
M REMESSKAE  BAEGAQRE

BB BTIRA 5% A L eomR AR -

Percentage
of the Percentage
respective  of the total
type of  number of
Shares in Shares in
issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of LB BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares R R 5 B 17
REREBE B8RS 5 R 43 5 ROEE Y LE Bl (%) HIEE B (%)
YEPI' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
ETEEACRREE" EnEBA EHE—F NE I
AT HRAFEER
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
EEREE EREBEA BHE—HF NE R
AT HEFEER
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
BIBESLAE" BEnAAN HE—H NE K&
AT HFAFEER
Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
FH! EnEBA EHE—F NE IR
AT HRAFEER
YHTH' Interests in controlled Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests held Shares
jointly with another person
ErERIREE" R EE R NER
HE—ZATHRAFEER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
Shares
b RE KR BEnlEBA NE K&
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Percentage
of the Percentage
respective  of the total
type of  number of
Shares in Shares in
issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of HE 1T HE 1T
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares 5 5I R 15 FEY S
RREBE R 5 5 R 43 %8 5 ROEE 9 LE 651 (%) HI LBl (%)
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled corporation Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Corporation? Shares
PEARRARER MREEEE R NE R
BRAAE?
CNPC Capital Company Interests in controlled corporation Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Limited? Shares
P EA RS BB ARG R EE R R NE I
BRAR?
CNPC Assets Management  Interests in controlled corporation Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Co., Ltd.? Shares
PHEEBRAERAR? REEEE N R NE KR
Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.? Interests in controlled corporation Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Shares
BRiETXTEREETARF? AR PEEE AR NE I
Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Interests in controlled corporation Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Equity Investment Shares
Management Partnership?
ERERETRERE REFEENER NER
ERARBME:?
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Beneficial owner Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Equity Investment Center Shares
(Limited Partnership)?
BREARBREREPD BEREBA NE KR
(BRAR)?
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited’
PEBRBRIRERRAGF E=EEA H A%
YHTH' Interests in controlled corporation H Shares 8,449,000(L) 2.32 0.71
EHRREE" REEEER R H A%
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refers to long position

YEPI is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares.
Caiyun International Investment Limited is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner
of 8,449,000 H Shares. YHTH is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by
YEPI and H Shares held by Caiyun International Investment Limited pursuant to the SFO which
representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares.

Mr. Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the
acting in concert agreement dated 24 July 2014 (the “Acting in Concert Agreement”) entered
into between YEPI, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong, each of Liu Xujun, Huang
Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with YEPI in exercising their voting rights
at the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Each of YEPI, Liu Xujun and Wang Yong is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by them in aggregate
pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, each of YEPI, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by them in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting
in Concert Agreement, each of YEPI, Huang Yunjian and Liu Xujun is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by them in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan”) is a general partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment
Center (Limited Partnership) (“Xinzhen Tianying”), holds 3.85% equity interests in Xinzhen
Tianying and is the beneficial owner of 124,754,169 Domestic Shares; Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan
is owned as to 99% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as to 82.18%
by CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly owned by CNPC Capital
Limited; CNPC Capital Limited is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Company Limited, which in
turn is owned as to 77.35% by China National Petroleum Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2024, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief

executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or

more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts of the Group, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company'’s business were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted various non-exempt connected
transactions.

Purchase of membrane ancillary materials from Beijing
OriginWater

During the period from April 2024 to August 2024, four subsidiaries of the
Company (as purchasers) each entered into a separate procurement agreement with
Beijing OriginWater, one of the shareholders of the Company (as vendor), pursuant
to which, the relevant subsidiaries of the Company purchased and the Vendor
sold membrane ancillary materials for a total consideration of RMB8,588,596.45.
For details of the above transactions, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 March 2025.

Several related-party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert Parties
has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its associates
(except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent,
either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business of
the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”). Each of the Acting
in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new
business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period
of time refer such new business opportunity to the Company on a pre-emptive
basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual
report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed all the necessary
information provided by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert
Parties have fully complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition
Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new
business opportunity to the Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this annual
report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed all the necessary
information provided by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders
have fully complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements
during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 6.57% of the total amount of procurement
for the year ended 31 December 2024, and the procurement from the largest
supplier accounted for 1.97% of the total amount of procurement for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales to the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for 18.24% of the total amount of revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2024, and the total amount of sales to the largest customer
accounted for 4.76% of the total amount of revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in the top

five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 2.26 to the financial statements for detailed information on
the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year and material factors relating to its results and financial
conditions are set out in the chapter headed “General Manager's Report” from
page 11 to 13 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 14 to 26 in
this annual report respectively. Such discussions constitute an integral part of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance with the
relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to the long term
development and success of the Group's businesses. In order to maintain a high
standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations, the Company
offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the various water
treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result of the Company’s
commitment to environmental protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and environmentally-friendly
production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange, the
Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects could be affected
by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed “General
Manager’s Report” from page 11 to 13 in this annual report for detail analysis of
the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated companies” (as
defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
and Supervisor or their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
with a view to safeguarding the interests of shareholders and enhancing corporate
value. The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the factors
leading to the success of the Company and balancing the interests of Shareholders,
customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 55 to 70 in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had not been involved
in any material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are not aware of any
litigation or claims of material importance pending or threatened against the
Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 26 in this annual
report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the
subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

— the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial
performance and positioning of the Company; and

— Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles of
Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

AUDITOR

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company for the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year ended 31
December 2024. The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been audited by Forvis
Mazars CPA Limited. The Company has engaged Forvis Mazars CPA Limited for
audit service after the conclusion of extraordinary general meeting on 27 December
2024.

Moore CPA Limited retired as auditor of the Company at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company convened on 28 June 2024 and the
Company extended the service agreement with Moore CPA Limited to provide

interim financial information review services for 2024.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 244 in this annual
report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Mei Wei
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
30 April 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
from the listing date to 31 December 2024.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasise the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
with a view of safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and enhancing
corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the interests of the
Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made specific
enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and Supervisors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng ((Vice-Chairman)
(appointed as the executive Director, Vice-Chairman on 5 June 2024)
Ms. Wang Rui
(appointed as the executive Director on 27 December 2024)
Mr. Liu Hui
Mr. Liu Jianjun (resigned as the executive Director and Vice
Chairman on 5 June 2024)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (resigned as the executive Director on 27 December 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman)

Mr. Dai Richeng

Mr. Xia Lin (appointed as the non-executive Director
on 28 March 2025)

Mr. Chen Yong (resigned as the non-executive Director
on 28 March 2025)
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

Mr. Zhong Wei

Mr. Zhou Beihai

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the general
manager. The roles of Chairman and the general manager are assumed by Mr. Mei
Wei and Mr. Zheng Guangfeng, respectively. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors (at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board's fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to

act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees

management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an

effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall

business strategy and monitors management’s execution of such strategy.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and

governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved

for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to

ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and

to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,

the following duties:

(N

to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the general
meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

to decide on the Company'’s business plans and investment plans;

to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial
budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;

to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of
corporate form of the Company;

to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company’s staff;

to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and to
appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

/-\-\A

iE%% ﬂim

EESNRE
EFRNEARERTEAREH N RIUAL
DEAREBRRNBERSTE - EEREN
ARRARAFABENAREEEREY
ﬂﬁuﬁ@$%lwwo§$ﬁﬁﬂﬂm
AMBEREGRERENEEEY LSRR
BHAT «

BABTHEME EEZGCRATHEAREN
EBREREL MAEFTSRBNEARSE
HEEEBREREEMEN  UERARQ
T%Hﬂﬂ*$%¢%am'ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ¥

AREEN - RMTE  BEEEOTEMT
Hﬁdﬁ¢@%%

(1) BEBREXRSSH REREASAEB
BREE YHMBRBEASHRE TERH
TR R E MR

(2) REQAFMKLEFTEFIRERE

(3) HIFRBAMFEMBRESTERMAET
ERMHEDESD RMBHEBELT R

(4) HMEAIRAEREEWEMEE  OBEAER
RABEHAH - D BEAREER

bz 0
(5) AERFABINIE  BMRERT
(6) ATEFSHEMZBENRENERE

MZEE®8EA:

(7) RARRRGRFRE BRI AR
REBEAEBOGAMELR R

(8) MIRERQAAEETEIZREERTE
FHEABERER -

Annual Report 2024 FE#H% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K2 E KRB B R A 7 57



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R EARE

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations to the
Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration officers,
the general manager and deputy general manager. The senior management
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and make
recommendations to the Board. The senior management administers, enforces,
interprets and supervises compliance with the internal rules and operational
procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and conducts regular reviews,
recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and procedures.
The senior management reports to the Board on a regular basis and communicates
with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5)  to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.

Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for such meetings
shall be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 10 days before the meeting is held.
The Chairman, any Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting rights,
more than one-third of the Directors, the Supervisory Committee or more than one-
half independent non-executive Directors or the general manager of the Company
may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting of the Board. The Chairman
shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten
days upon receipt of the proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors
and Supervisors five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting Period,
the Board held 26 Board meetings, 1 annual general meeting and 3 extraordinary

general meetings.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval by
the Chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out in the
Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to Directors,
Supervisors and the general manager.
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Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee and
then recommended to the Board for consideration. All nominees of new directors
must be approved by the Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain approval of the Shareholders

at the general meeting of the Company.

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 26 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings

BEEg
HERE,
Name of Director EEHE BITRHE
Mr. Mei Wei BERE 26/26
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng Y 323 18/18
Mr. Dai Richeng BAEKEE 26/26
Mr. Chen Yong BRE LA 26/26
Ms. Wang Rui Tt 1/1
Mr. Liu Hui 20E % 4 26/26
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BrTIEE 26/26
Mr. Zhou Beihai AdEE L E 26/26
Mr. Zhong Wei EREE 26/26
Mr. Liu Jianjun (resigned as the executive Director BT LE 8/8
and Vice Chairman on 5 June 2024) (nyflmi/\ﬁﬁa%ﬂfiﬂfli$ BlEER)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (resigned as the executive Director BAEELE
on 27 December 2024) (EAf?lefliTL A+ tRABEHITES) 25/25

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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TEERHRSE

During the Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important

proposals, mainly including:

—  Proposal in respect of the 2023 annual results

—  Proposal in respect of provision for credit and asset impairment in 2023

—  Proposal in respect of amendment of Articles of Association

—  Proposal in respect of the appointment of the PRC auditor and the

international auditor of the Company for 2024

—  Proposal in respect of the review of the interim results of the Company for

the six months ended 30 June 2024

—  The resolution on nomination of candidates for executive Director of the

fourth session of the Board of the Company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general

meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are

held once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous

financial year. During the Reporting Period, one annual general meeting and

three extraordinary general meetings were held. The attendance of Directors is as

follows:
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Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of

Annual Extraordinary

General Meeting  General Meetings

BRRBAFRE HRRRAS

HERE R

Name of Director EEpE BRAH BRRH
Mr. Mei Wei BEEE 11 3/3
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng BN E iR S 1/1 3/3
Mr. Dai Richeng BAEKEE 11 3/3
Mr. Chen Yong BRESEAE 11 3/3
Ms. Wang Rui Fiit 0/0 1/1
Mr. Liu Hui 208 A 171 3/3
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BT AE 11 3/3
Mr. Zhou Beihai itk 1”1 3/3
Mr. Zhong Wei BREE 171 3/3
Mr. Liu Jianjun (resigned as the executive BlEEAE(R_Z_WMEXAEA 0/0 0/0

Director and Vice Chairman on 5 June 2024) %‘?’E%ﬂ”%% N EEED

Mr. Zhou Zhimi (resigned as the executive muEE(RZTZMF 1/1 3/3

Director on 27 December 2024)

+_H “tERBERTES)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of
the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that newly
appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,
and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the general manager of the Company are
separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles
of Association. The Chairman is elected by a majority vote of all Directors, and the

general manager is nominated and appointed by the Board.

The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The Chairman holds meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development strategy,
corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive Director is

present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant
decision making at the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The
Company had established four Board committees, being the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management, Internal Control
and Compliance Committee and the Audit Committee.
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(1).

Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity of
members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying suitably
qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board to be new
Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on individuals nominated to be Directors by the Shareholders to ensure
that all nominations are fair and transparent; assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; reviewing and monitoring the
implementation of diversity policy of Board members of the Company. Terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee have been published on the
website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the fourth
session of the Board consists of one non-executive Director, Mr. Mei Wei (as
chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Beihai
and Mr. Zhong Wei.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Company
had held three meetings, to discuss the nomination and appointment matters
of Directors of the fourth session of the Board of the Company, and review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. At such meeting, Mr. Zheng
Guangfeng and Ms. Wang Rui were nominated as executive Directors of

(1). REEES
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the fourth session of the Board. The attendance record of the committee ZESZRBHEREOT ¢
members is as follows:

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE
Name of Director EENA BRXE
Mr. Mei Wei BEEE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Beihai BitgkE 3/3
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE 3/3

62

The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to achieving
the diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of remuneration
for all Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; reviewing
and approving the remuneration proposals from the management; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management; and advising Shareholders
with respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee of the fourth
session of the Board consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai and one executive
Director, Mr. Liu Hui.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company
had held six meetings, to discuss the payout of the annual performance salary
of senior management in 2022 and 2023, the advance payment of salary of
senior management of the Company in 2024, and the distribution of salary of
the Company in 2024. The attendance record of the committee members is as

follows:

(2).
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

HERE,

Name of Director BEEER BERE
Mr. Zhong Wei EREE 6/6
Mr. Zhou Beihai AitEEE 6/6
Mr. Liu Hui 2InE A4 6/6
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64

Risk Management, Internal Control and Compliance
Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Risk Management, Internal Control and
Compliance Committee include being responsible for the organization,
leadership and coordination of the Company’s work relating to risk
management, internal control and compliance management, as well as
studying and advising on its overall objectives, system construction and basic
systems; evaluating the compliance of major decisions authorized by the
Board and solutions to major risks; supervising and evaluating the Company’s
work in relation to the risk management, internal control and compliance
management. Terms of reference of the Risk Management, Internal Control
and Compliance Committee have been published on the website of the

Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Risk Management, Internal Control and
Compliance Committee of the fourth session of the Board consists of one
executive Director, Mr. Zheng Guangfeng, three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman), Mr. Liu Shuen Kong and Mr. Zhou

Beihai and one employee representative Supervisor, Mr. Mo Wenyi.

During the Reporting Period, the Risk Management, Internal Control
and Compliance Committee of the Company had held third meetings,
to discuss matters regarding the revision of the internal audit working
system, the formulation of the management system of internal risk control
and compliance, change in the name of the Compliance Committee and
the amendments to the Rules of Procedures of the Risk Management,
Internal Control and Compliance Committee. The attendance record of the
committee members is as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE,
Name of Director EEnR BRRH
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE 3/3
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng B fE 58 5 A 3/3
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong EMTEE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Beihai AlgkE 3/3
Mr. Mo Wenyi (appointed as a member of the EXREE(RZT_MF
Risk Management, Internal Control and MA+—BEZERRIZEAHEESEE)
Compliance Committee on 11 April 2024) 3/3
Mr. Huang Yi (resigned as a member of the mEHAELE(R_TE-F
Risk Management, Internal Control and MA+—HEEREEREEEEE)
Compliance Committee on 11 April 2024) 0/0

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Ef /K2 & B AR A7 Annual Report 2024 F &



(4).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence and audit process
objectively; monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts and half-year report; overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control system;
and other matters that the Board has authorised it to deal with. Terms of
reference of the Audit Committee have been published on the website of the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (as chairman), Mr
Zhou Beihai and Mr. Zhong Wei.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the Company had held
seven meetings, to discuss the Company’s risk assessment report for 2023,
the Company’s annual performance for the year ended 31 December 2023,
provision for credit and asset impairment in 2023, and not recommending
the payment of the final dividend in 2023, the special audit report of the
Company'’s procurement, the internal control evaluation report for 2023, the
interim result for the six months ended 30 June 2024 and not recommending
the payment of the interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
the appointment of Mazars Certified Public Accountants LLP (FERIRE
STERSE S FT (kL B A %)) and Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (E&I5E& T
=5 ATA R A F]) as the PRC and international auditors of the Company,
respectively, and the work summary of internal audit for 2024 and the work
plan report for 2025 of the Company. During the Reporting Period, the
attendance record of the committee members is as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE,

Name of Director BEEnR BRI
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRI EE 717
Mr. Zhou Beihai LBk E 7/7
Mr. Zhong Wei EREE 717
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management of the Company (excluding the Directors) by bands
for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

EENEREEABNHH

ARBERGIFTAEE SR EEASNFHM
BEREILEARAEAENREF BE_FT
THET A=t - HUEFEREEHFHY
HIEER A BmKRME 4 -

RBEEXERTREBISE  TREIEE
CECNE+ A=+ —RLEFEREME
DXNTFTEREBAB(TREESR)NFHMH

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARKE) AE
Nil to 500,000 FZE500,0007T 2
500,001 to 800,000 500,001 £ 800,000 7T 10

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going
concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company'’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
(ESG) management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group’s business.
As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the latest laws
and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the PRC, which
are relevant to the Group's business, as well as its management approach and
management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is also committed
and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social standards.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business,
including but not limited to health and safety, labour standards, employment and
the environment, which would have a significant impact on the Group, such as the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (F#EARFAMELEHE
%) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety ( {fhZE AR
MBI%Z 2 £ E%) ), the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (FFZEARHEFBEIRBEREL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes
( (FREARFLMBIE 8 RE Y5 RIRFAE)
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ( {#ZE A R £
MBI RRSABAE) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution ( {##E ARKEMBIKFEFE%) ), the Standard
for Pollution Control on the Landfill Site of Municipal Solid Waste ( {4£)& 573 E

55 RIEHIZEAE) ) (GB16889-2008), the Standard for Pollution Control on the
I\/Iun|C|paI Solid Waste Incineration ( A &R TG 5 LI HIZAE) ) (GB18485-
2014), the Technical Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator ( { B BEEE Y L&
FArZEsk) ) (GB19218-2003), the Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste
Incineration ( /&R EEMICEES 2= HITRLE) ) (GB18484-2014) and the applicable
pollutant emission standards formulated by local governments. The Group believes

), the Law of the People’s Republic

that a better future depends on everyone's participation and contribution. To
this end, the Group has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities which benefit
the community as a whole. The Group also maintains strong relationships with
its employees, has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

An ESG report has been prepared with reference to ESG Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions
to sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers the major
environmental and social policies, environmental indicators of our Group, measures
adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the relevant achievements of the
Group. The ESG Report is set out on pages 245 to 309 in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and internal
control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments and the Company’s
assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis with the
support of the Audit Committee.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training
programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from
page 71 to 79 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to Forvis Mazars as the
auditor of the Company is set out below:

EXZQRBERZEERIARARENE
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ERMMEE BRARAELARSRRES
AR RRBETEHMNER BETERER

KBREDARH  AKRBIME
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NEREHRRN EZTSRERITRBB/AR
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BB R AT &=

EYNGL S L By s ey Lt
BB R BRAAFRETI E79HR
[B B RE P -

TERBINAREPAIN A FARE R
AR BIHENFH

Amount

o]

RMB’000

ARBT T

— Audit services — &R 4,700

— Non-audit services —IEEETIRTS

Preliminary announcement of annual results FEXEVISNE 10

Attendance at annual general meeting HERRBEFRE 10

Total fees BRAHE 4,720
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and REBRBEHANIES 7 H iz EA Rt

non-audit services during the Reporting Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders
is essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enable Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The
general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the
following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be
calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

(2)  If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the
notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3)  If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal, the
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4)  If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original
request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

TERERMS
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(5) I the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716
Company website: www.yunnanwater.com.cn
E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by the law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo is the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li provided his training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional development
by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting system and

Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

forvss
mazars

To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment
Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 80 to 243 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

8 S 1% BAD R

FORVIS MAZARS CPA LIMITED
EER EenaEnHaRAR

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEEFBEE18%

HIR 54218

Tel E3E: (852) 2909 5555

Fax fH: (852) 2810 0032

Email EES: info@forvismazars.com

Website #81F: www.forvismazars.com
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As described in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB2,166,241,000 for the year ended 31 December
2024 and the Group’ s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,767,846,000 as at 31 December 2024. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB21,369,470,000, of which current borrowings
amounted to RMB2,922,052,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB1,008,079,000 only. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB7,199,319,000, which were mainly related to
various concession projects and construction projects of the Group.

These conditions, together with other matters described in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter
described in the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BEESHEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV R TR e

BREETEEA)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

B ET M
BEFEEESSEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession

arrangements under financial asset model

Refer to note 2.11.1(i) for the
accounting policy of service concession
arrangements under financial asset
note 4(b) for the critical
accounting estimates and judgements
and note 20 for the
receivables under service concession

model,

involved,

arrangements.
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With respect to valuation and
revaluation for the service concession
arrangements under financial asset
model undertaken during the year,
we assessed the methodologies used
by management of the Group and/
or the external valuers, and evaluated
the independence, competence and
capabilities of the external valuers and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and other
inherent risk factors.

We selected samples of service
concession arrangements under
financial asset model for testing. The
key procedures included:

1. Examining the agreements
between the Group and the
Grantors.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BEESHEE

BRRETEEA)

How our audit addressed

the key audit matter

B ET M
BEFEEESSEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession

arrangements under financial asset model (continued)

The Group has entered into a number
of service concession arrangements
with certain governmental authorities
or their designators (the “Grantors”)
under Build-Operate-Transfer
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-
Transfer arrangements in respect of its
wastewater treatment, water supply
and solid waste treatment services.
Certain of these service concession
arrangements are accounted for using
“financial asset” model while others
are accounted for using “intangible
asset” model. For the Group's service
concession arrangements under
financial asset model, the fair value
of receivables and revenue recognised
are derived from valuation in which a
number of critical assumptions were
used. As at 31 December 2024, the
carrying amount of receivables under
service concession arrangements
amounted to RMB7,793,456,000,
which accounted for 18% of the

Group's total assets.
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2.

Testing the reasonableness

and appropriateness of critical

assumptions adopted in the cash

flow forecasts, mainly in relation

to:

assessing and analysing
the reasonableness of the
operating costs by comparing
to the actual costs of other
existing service concession

arrangements of the Group;

assessing and analysing the
profit margins of the operating
services by comparing with
the average profit margin of
the operating services of the
industry; and

assessing the effective interest
rate by reference to our
knowledge of the industry
and independent research on

external evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

BEESHEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV R TR e

BREETEEA)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

B ET M
BEFEEESSEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession

arrangements under financial asset model (continued)

Management has mostly engaged
external valuers to perform the
valuation for those service concession
arrangements under financial asset
model at initial recognition, and to
perform revaluation when there were
indicators that the critical assumptions
in the initial valuation have been
significantly affected and deviated
subsequent to initial recognition.
Such valuation and revaluation were
determined based on the forecasted
cash flows to be derived from the
related projects which involved critical
judgements and assumptions including
but not limited to the effective
interest rate, forecasted unit price of
service fee, operating costs and profit
margins of the operating services.
The judgements and estimations are
subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty and leading to relatively
higher inherent risk. With reference to
the valuation and revaluation performed
by the external valuers, management
determined the amount of receivables
and revenue to be recognised for
service concession arrangements under
financial asset model during the year,
and the subsequent measurement of

receivables and revenue.

We paid significant attention to
this area due to the significance of
receivables and revenue recognised
for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model and critical
judgement involved in determining
the critical assumptions used in the
valuation and revaluation.
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We also challenged management's
assessment of whether the subsequent
measurement of receivables and
revenue recognised for the service
concession arrangements under
financial asset model should be subject
to revaluation by comparing the actual
outcome, if available, with the critical
assumptions applied in the valuation
in previous years and assessing the
potential impact of reasonably possible

changes in the critical assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREETEEA)

How our audit addressed RPN FET0M
Key audit matters BREETSEE the key audit matter REREENSE
Recoverability of trade receivables & U B R R AT [ U
Refer to note 4(c) for the critical MHBEEZE&{H5F We obtained an understanding of  F{FIEH ¥ B 12 /B ¥ E UL

accounting estimates and judgements
and note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements for

involved,

trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying
amount of trade receivables amounted
to RMB5,452,395,000, which
accounted for 12% of the Group's total
assets.

The identification of impairment
events and the determination of
the impairment provision of trade
receivables require the application of

critical judgement by management.

Management recognised the
impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses rather than
only incurred credit losses, which is
subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty and leading to relatively
higher inherent risk. These evaluations
focused on the customers’ settlement
history and current ability to pay, and
took into account information specific
to the customers as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which

the customers operated.

We paid significant attention to this
area because management made
critical judgements over both timing
of recognition of impairment and the
estimation of the amount of any such
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management’s processes and controls
over credit risk management and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and other
inherent risk factors. This included
the identification of which receivables
were impaired and estimation of the
impairment provisions.

In addition, we selected samples to
inquire management for the details
of their recoverability assessment and
challenged the underlying information
referenced by management, which
included comparing with external evidence
obtained from our independent research
on public available information of
the customers, performing aging
analysis, examining the historical
transactions and settlement records
of the customers and testing of the

subsequent settlements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors of the
Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

13

312 BAM R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

78

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is:

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: PO4793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTH/ER COI\/IPREHEN§[VE INCOME
afBERAHEHMES AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—F_mMFEf—_A=+—HILFF

2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR TR ARETIT
Revenue Iz 2,798,209 3,116,539
Cost and expense of sales HEMARFZ (2,344,476) (2,461,426)
Gross profit EF 453,733 655,113
Other income E A 6 58,537 182,394
Other gains/(losses) - net Hib ez, (B518 ) F 58 7 (138,327) 60,258
Selling expenses HEMX 9 (33,264) (33,511)
Administrative expenses TERF X 9 (633,507) (422,827)
Net impairment losses on financial assets and TREERGHNEERE
contract assets J=i=bEs: ) 8 (751,619) (335,073)
Operating profit R A (1,044,447) 106,354
Finance income L& YA 11 11,086 4,375
Finance expenses BERX 11 (1,141,923) (955,614)
Finance costs - net A& AR E R (1,130,837) (951,239)
Share of result of investments accounted for LAz A AR E(RIRE A
using the equity method 16 36,784 30,216
Loss before income tax BB AEE (2,138,500) (814,669)
Income tax expenses Frisiim sz 12 (27,741) (179,937)
Loss for the year FRER (2,166,241) (994,606)
Other comprehensive income/expense Hittir & W Bx
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to R g 72 B EE
profit or loss —HRE G FE TS E A ERE
— Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 62,663 (67,569)
Total comprehensive income for the year, BB RFAGREREEE
net of tax (2,103,578) (1,062,175)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHERVCOI\\/I/PREHENSIVE INC(\)/I\/IE
eEFEmMEMEGEE Ra

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE—E - FE A= —HIFFE

2024 2023
—E-E —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5E AR TR AREET T
Loss attributable to: AT ATEMLESE :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company — AR REERARER (1,739,385) (688,068)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 15 (426,856) (306,538)
(2,166,241) (994,606)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AT ALEMGGE(BX)/
income attributable to: Wzt 458 ¢
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company — AR ERRRR (1,676,682) (757,582)
— Non-controlling interests — PR 15 (426,896) (304,593)
(2,103,578) (1,062,175)
Loss per share for loss attributable to ARAEEBRRRELEBEN
ordinary shareholders of the Company BRER
— Basic and diluted —HARREE AR AR
13 (1.458) (0.577)
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive L& priE s R E A AR & U e 7% 8 £ AR R BT
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. T —PFBIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& Gt AR &
31 December 2024
—FEomFEF—HA=+—H

2024 2023
—E-E —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5E AR TR ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 17 3,978,548 4,257,167
Investment properties KEME 18 15,436 22,182
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 19 301,783 319,577
Receivables under service concession PR 75 1 BT 48 8 T BE T B FE MUK IR
arrangements 20 7,531,465 7,169,526
Contract assets BHEE 5(v) 11,032,606 12,374,538
Intangible assets B EE 21 9,975,490 10,836,425
Investments accounted for using the LARERREABRMIRE
equity method 16 1,082,841 1,103,091
Financial asset at fair value through other LAAFEF=Z2BEZEFTA
comprehensive income HEimA s emEE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 kA M EKFRIE 23 185,382 285,516
Prepayments TR RIE 23 1,193,712 1,119,352
Deferred tax assets REBIEEAE 33 189,714 217,656
35,491,652 37,709,705
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service concession BRAG AR A & 2 B T B FEUGRIE
arrangements 20 261,991 190,597
Inventories FE 22 113,775 126,295
Contract assets BHEE 5(v) 160,602 177,188
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E h fE KGRI 23 7,041,477 7,295,341
Prepayments TR FRIE 23 232,199 310,990
Restricted cash RRHRS 24 108,959 135,107
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 25 1,008,079 899,244
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss AR F{EFHE B HEFH A
BanemEE 26 50,000 —
8,977,082 9,134,762
Total assets BmEE 44,468,734 46,844,467
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& b B B AR R

31 December 2024
—EopFEF—HA=+—H

2024 2023
—ENEFE —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5E AR®T T ARETIT
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 72 7&K KRR ELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 27 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves H i 28 2,640,358 2,546,012
Retained earnings IR & (3,523,854) (1,753,051)
309,717 1,986,174
Perpetual securities interests KB EEER 29 9,891,670 —
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR M = 15 959,935 1,465,281
Total equity HRER 11,161,322 3,451,455
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 42,670 43,125
Borrowings f&m 30 18,447,418 29,184,590
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E A e~ IR 31 139,557 44,641
Deferred income JRFE U A 32 683,739 834,346
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIA B E 33 732,981 768,547
Provision ] 34 516,119 475,917
20,562,484 31,351,166
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& B B AR R

31 December 2024
—FEomFEF—HA=+—H

2024 2023
“E-QNEF —T_=f
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR¥T T AREET T
Current liabilities nREBEE
Contract liabilities BREE 5(v) 123,959 126,081
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,485 7,301
Borrowings & 30 2,922,052 1,797,851
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H M0 FE 5K IE 31 9,138,488 9,489,813
Current taxation BVER# 18 558,944 620,800
12,744,928 12,041,846
Total liabilities waeE 33,307,412 43,393,012
Total equity and liabilities ERNEERE 44,468,734 46,844,467
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the FiE M EEBBEREREEEN T —OBIE -
accompanying notes.
The financial statements on pages 80 to 243 were approved by the Board of FBOE243EMMBBRER T _RF=
Directors of the Company on 28 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf. AZ+N\BEARRIEESHME  WHTI

ALTHERE -

Director Director

EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SOHENBDE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
AN E)E A AR AR R A

Perpetual Non-
Share Other Retained securities controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests interests equity
A Hit REBEH &5t fm  FERER Fl £

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARBTR ARKTT AR%Tn ARETT ARETR

(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(Fi=E27) (Fi=E28) (Fi=E29)
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-B==%
—B—-BWEe 1,193,213 2,560,971 (1,010,428) 2,743,756 = 1,744,560 4,488,316
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRGE (X)) KEEHE
for the year
Loss for the year FRER = = (688,068) (688,068) = (306,538) (994,606)
Currency translation differences ERBEER — (69,514) — (69,514) 1,945 (67,569)
= (69,514) (688,068) (757,582) (304,593)  (1,062,175)
Transactions with owners BEFAUEEEASH
in their capacity as owners ETHRS
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests BRI B — — — — — 15,486 15,486
Transfer to statutory reserve EBRRTRE — 54,555 (54,555) — — — —
Reversal of distribution to non-controlling interests DR TFIEERERER — — — — — 9,828 9,828
= 54,555 (54,555) — = 25,314 25,314
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=%
TZA=+-BH&ESS 1,193,213 2,546,012  (1,753,051) 1,986,174 — 1,465,281 3,451,455
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AGHERB DR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

D REERRRE
Perpetual Non-
Share Other Retained securities  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests interests equity
K
&N HifE R REEF agt BE  FERES El

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE AR®TR AR®TR ARETT AR®TR ARMTRT AR¥TR

(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(HaE27) (Hi=E 28) (H=E29)
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-B-DmF
—B—AMEe 1,193,213 2,546,012 (1,753,051) 1,986,174 = 1,465,281 3,451,455
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRGE (X)) KEEHE
for the year
Loss for the year FNEE — — (1,739,385  (1,739,385) — (426,856)  (2,166,241)
Currency translation differences ERRE RS — 62,703 — 62,703 - (40) 62,663
= 62,703 (1,739,385)  (1,676,682) = (426,896)  (2,103,578)
Transactions with owners in their BEFAUEEEASH
capacity as owners ETHRS
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests gD LB - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Controlling shareholder’s debts RRRR EREKE
converted into perpetual securities interests (note 29) & (HizE 29) — — - — 9,891,670 — 9,891,670
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) BEMHBAE(HIF38) — — — — — (79,953) (79,953)
Transfer to statutory reserve HBERTRE = 31,643 (31,418) — - — —
Distribution to non-controlling interests DT IR — = = = = (548) (548)
Others Hit = = = 225 = 51 276
= 31,643 (31,418) 225 9,891,670 (78,450) 9,813,445
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-ZB-mF
+TZRA=1+-BH&e 1,193,213 2,640,358 (3,523,854) 309,717 9,891,670 959,935 11,161,322
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in S Of e B 3R PR BELAR BT 5 — OB E o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHETRER
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2024 2023
—E-E —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5E AR TR ARETIT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHNEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEmERe 35(a) 607,838 543,919
Income tax paid BERFEE (179,860) (146,569)
Interest paid BEARFE (445,682) (448,671)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities L& EEE L RA G ) F5E (17,704) (51,321)
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHHNRESRE
Payments for property, plant and equipment, W - BERKE - i

land use rights and other intangible assets {55 PR} ELAth 2 B EE 5 3R (155,085) (134,161)
Deposit from disposal of subsidiaries HENRBARIMBIRS — 255,361
Deposit from construction activities BETEIMEES — 35,000
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, EEERTEE  EBFREEMEM

intangible assets and other long-term assets RAZEMKREIMNIREFRE 52,863 —
Disposal of subsidiaries S T A A 375,683 66,733
Cash received from investment income BEEERGZKEINE S 5,632 —
Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries and ST B2 A R B fth & 3£ B8 L

other business units XTI & FEE (34,551) —
Amount from restructuring equity EARER 124,972 —
Investment deposit received KRR EHE S 5,000 —
Others — net Hth— 58 4,493 2,247
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities #®REEEEERA G ) F5E 379,007 225,180
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRETMER
For the year ended 31 December 2024

P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

2024 2023
—E-E —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR TR AREET T
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings CEGIEEE /e 130,033 1,941,225
Repayments of borrowings BEER (385,120) (1,825,663)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests R R ITE 2,000 15,486
Others — net Hith— F58 438 (5,526)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities EEEZR S RHA Ol ) F 58 (252,649) 125,522
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBESESEYEINFE 108,654 299,381
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUReRBREED
the year 899,244 602,150
Exchange gains/(losses) on RERREEEY
cash and cash equivalents & 5z (E518) 181 (2,287)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, FXRIRENMIREEEY
representing cash at bank and on hand (BRITEFEFEFHEES) 1,008,079 899,244

The above consoliated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.

Major non-cash transaction: Repaying loans by issuing perpetual securities.
On 31 December 2024, the Company entered into the Perpetual Securities
Agreement with the controlling shareholders of the Company (namely, Yunnan
Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co. Ltd. (“YHTH") and Yunnan Green
Environmental Protection Industry Group Co. Ltd. (“YEPI")), pursuant to which
YHTH and YEPI agreed to convert their respective ordinary debts of the Company
into perpetual securities interests. As of 30 June 2024, YHTH held ordinary debts
of the Company with principal and interest totaling RMB9,202,490,000, and
YEPI held ordinary debts of the Company with principal and interest totaling
RMB689,180,000. Therefore, a total of RMB9,891,670,000 of debts will be
converted into perpetual securities interests. For details, please refer to note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company's H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 and the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities. The address of its registered office is Yunnan
Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial assets measured at fair value.

1.

2.

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

—RERRENEE

1.1. —RER
EMABRERMNDBR A AR
RANRZE——F A=+ —
BEFEAREME(THRR])E
MEFMKY - R=ZF—NF+
A=-—+=HB ' ARAHEREME
NAEER ARNERAR -
B AR AAR¥787,880,000 7T °
RAABHBRER -_Z—HEHA
—t+tHRERAEABARIAR
NAIERLET @ REBRADIE
= AR%1,193,213,000 7T °

RARB—REEZRDRF - &
RAlREKBAAGE A E
mOEEHEHMALK 5K
EEREEEERENRAE R
BT B BERME o HiEff
MERMUIEPEEEEEAT
= #5759 3% & 8 R 4k 35 2089
SRER KT o

ZERBHRRAARETAR
BD27 BRIESEHAUNZE

Rt -

EXSTHRBE

B R R R ZE A G B RER TR
MHBREFTRERINEK - BREHA
Sy ZEBRIIRM2MAEFEE
BER - ¥BHRERDBAEE(BEAR
REREKBAR) NI BHRE

2.1 REEE

AEENE Gt B IwKRIIREH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& O 15 R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

90

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to
HK Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Presentation of Financial Statements—
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements are depicted in

note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern basis

The Group reported a net loss of RMB2,166,241,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB3,767,846,000
as at 31 December 2024. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB21,369,470,000, of which
current borrowings amounted to RMB2,922,052,000, while its
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,008,079,000
only. The Group had capital commitments of approximately
RMB7,199,319,000, which were mainly related to various
concession projects and construction projects of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
21 IFHEEEERE(F)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at
31 December 2024 and subsequently thereto up to the date
when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to mitigate the liquidity pressure, to improve its
financial position, and to sustain the Group as a going concern,
certain plans and measures have been and will be taken by the
Group which include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i) The Group has plans to divest certain of the Group's
concession projects and construction projects. In the
meantime, the Group is also actively looking for strategic
investors to invest in certain existing projects of the Group
so as to enhance the capital structure and reduce overall
financing expenses of the Group;

Lt PR BN E BIR
BRATHEEEREHAE
BREERLERNEKRER
SR o

BER_Z-_MNFE+=A
=t+t—AREBEEAH
WIS R R T 3 B AR
EALE EER - &6
s RERMBEANEE
BEURSBEEEEESE
MEE - REFRRBDE R
BAH REHBHMRR -
W HE AN ER AL
% AEED RN HIR
BE T8l kg 2iF
(BRBRR) FHEIA :

iy AEEEFBIHES
TAKERFFEE
HE REERERE [/
B REETRESR S
BB REEREAR
SEMETHRAR
B - Ansg & AR
RN k=S
MEER

Annual Report 2024 FE#4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED 2 @7k 3% & i85 5 1R 2 7 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

92

A E U = = — [ EE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The Directors are of the view that they have the ability to
manage the progress of the projects from time to time and
defer the payment schedule of the borrowings in these
projects, if necessary. The Group has unutilised project
loan facilities from banks to provide financing of up to
RMB3,207,884,000 to satisfy part of the construction cost
payable and committed capital expenditure in the next
twelve months from 31 December 2024. The Group has
also initiated the process to obtain new project loans to
fund the Group's existing and new concession projects
and construction projects. The Directors believe that these
unutilised facilities will continue to be available to the
Group and they are confident that they will be able to
obtain such project loans from banks and other financial
institutions as and when needed;

The Group will actively obtain additional new sources of

financing as and when needed;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
2115 BEEHE(F)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have reviewed the
Group's cash flow projections prepared by management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2024. On the basis of the successful
implementation of the plans and measures described above in
the foreseeable future and after assessing the Group’s current
and forecasted cash positions, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated

financial statements.

2.1.2 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHEME (&
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)

2.1.2 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily 2.1.2REFEBF LN ZAE

effective for the current year (Continued) 155 & B B EER
(%)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BB GEEAE 158 (BETA) BESBERRDIIERH
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
BEGETERE 1 R(EFIA) MSRONFERBEE
Amendments to HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BBMBEERS RRFBHRER -—ERAHEERFERGETOTHERN D
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
BEGFERE 75 R BB KRS LR HERERE 2
F7HUERTR)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
BEP B REELFE 165 (BATA) EREENESEEE

¥THKAS 1H{85] : BEH
HAE R IEE R

Amendments to HKAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

ZEEREEBBEIR
A7 B 75 AR 0 3R P T E
75 H B EI T T E B B 7 A
HtEEEAEIBAE
H(B Ak AT REE — FF A48
H)HIFEEH - RITEER
ERE M BEEE
&K BERE—ER R A
3B IB R RS A R R R
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The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the
requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an
uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or
potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. The
amendments include clarifying the classification requirements for
debt a company might settle by converting it into equity.

EBERNBBE S HUB
BREBEEMNERZE -

The adoption of the amendments does not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

¥ HKAS 1MBIER : HF
RAOMIERBAE

Amendments to HKAS 1: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Az = =, 0 A /
The amendments specify that the covenants that required BERME  EREAR

EETHAE N EER
=B BEBS A E R
MBER - HR - BER
EXR-RRBEARFHB
WRMERRERRMEL
ZHWEA -

to comply with after the reporting date do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, an entity is required to disclose
information about these covenants in the notes of consolidated
financial statements.

94 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K% 1& & D AR XA Annual Report 2024 FE#HE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHEREBMEE
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.2 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily 21 2REFEBFELZE

effective for the current year (Continued)

The adoption of the amendments does not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HK Interpretation 5: Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

According to the above amendments to HKAS 1, the
interpretation has been amended to align with the wordings and
the conclusions remained unchanged.

The adoption of the amendments to the interpretation does not
have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7: Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments introduce new disclosure requirements to
enhance transparency of supplier finance arrangements and
their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to
liquidity risk.

The adoption of the amendments does not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently
determine lease payments arising from a sale and leaseback in
a way that it does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements
do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a
lease.

The adoption of the amendments does not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

EXRSTBRUEAE

2.1 RBEEEE)
2.1.3 EF i #F12 E L

2.1.3 The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

REBM1E /KR EHE
Fra] RAE 15T & B %

Amendments to HKAS 21
HKAS 21 BEET
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and IFRS 7

$f HKFRS 9 A IFRS 7 KI{E EZ

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
HKFRS &) £ & 2iUE

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
¥ HKFRS 9 A HKFRS 7 BB IE 2
HKFRS 18

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKAS 21

HKAS 21 8J{& 5]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

#HKFRS 10 F1HKAS 28 Hyf& IE 22

£Ef

H ==

Lack of Exchangeability @

TR = Al S

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments @

SRTADBAMA BB

Volume 11 @

ERRE-E

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity @

SR REBEEANE N

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements ©

FEBA TS ¥Rk @ Fp O BR AL AN 4R B8

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosure ©

REAKBENFAR - KRE®

Lack of Exchangeability @

= BN

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture @

REEEEBENAHEECEZHANHERLEEE

(1) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 (1) H202551 A1 H A&
REOFESBRAR

() Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 (2) H202651A1H A&
REOFESBRAR

(3) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 (3) H2027F1 1B A&

(4) Effective for a date to be determined

EHFEHRAR

(4 FEEHEREH

The management of the Group anticipate that the application
of the new/amended HKFRSs accounting standards in the future
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

2.1.4 Perpetual securities interests

Perpetual securities interests with no contractual obligation
to repay its principal or to pay any distribution are generally
classified as part of equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2. 1818 2 7

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.3.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and consolidated balance sheet respectively.

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised

at cost.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHEME (&
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
2.2.4 Equity method (Continued) 224w E5E ()

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.13.

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred,;

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

iii.  equity interests issued by the Group;

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement; and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity;
and

iii.  acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a net basis within other gains or
losses.

2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. EXRETHEMEA)

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
2.6.3 Group companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss accounts during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction,
which is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained

earnings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years

2.9 Intangible assets
2.9.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.13. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

2.9.2 Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent as a
project progresses into the development stage the costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are capitalised as intangible assets
when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests for impairment
are performed annually. Other development expenditures
that do not meet those criteria are recognised as expenses as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as expenses
are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised
development costs are transferred to technical know-how when
the assets are ready for use.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9

2.10

106  YUNNA

Intangible assets (Continued)

2.9.3 Operating concession rights

The detailed accounting policy of operating concession rights is
depicted in note 2.11.

2.9.4 Unfulfilled contract rights

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.

2.9.5 Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of the operating permits of
solid waste treatment plants and water supply facilities acquired

through business combination.

2.9.6 Technical know-how and software

Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire or through business
combination.

2.9.7 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life

using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Operating concession rights 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years
Licenses 5-54 years
Technical know-how and software 5-20 years

Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for land
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the prepaid
operating lease payments for land over the remaining lease term or the
operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHEME (&
(Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements

2.1 IRISASRF A& 2 B

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build -Operate - Transfer (the “BOT") arrangements and
Transfer - Operate - Transfer (the “TOT") arrangements. Under the
BOT arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of the
facilities of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water supply or
solid waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a right to
operate the facilities of service project concerned for a specified period
of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in accordance with the pre-
established conditions set by the Grantors, the service project should
be transferred to the Grantors with nil consideration at the end of the
operation period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT arrangement,
except that the Group pays consideration for the right to operate the
facilities of the wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste
treatment that has been built.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered by
the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore the
facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the Service
Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

2.11.1 Consideration given by the Grantor

(1)

Service concession arrangements under financial asset
model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees to
pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users
of the public service and the specified or determinable
amounts. The financial asset (receivable under a service
concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance
with the policy set out for financial assets measured at
amortised cost under note 2.14.

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.12) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a
service concession arrangement accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

2.11.1 Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Service concession arrangements under financial asset
model (Continued)

When the Group receives a payment during the concession
period, it will apportion such payment between (i) a
repayment of the financial asset (if any), which will be
used to reduce the carrying amount of financial receivables
on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii) interest income, will
be recognised as revenue in profit or loss and (iii) revenue
from operating service in the profit or loss. Revenue from
operating service is calculated based on cost plus a profit

margin.

Service concession arrangements under intangible asset
mode/

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.29 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2.

110

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
2.11.1 Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(i)~ Service concession arrangements under hybrid model

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of
the consideration.

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide
the operator’s contract asset during the construction
period into two components, a financial asset component
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset
for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset
would be classified and measured as a financial asset and

an intangible asset accordingly.

2.11.2 Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered
in similar location at date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are

accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

2.11.3Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii) to
restore the plants to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangements. These contractual obligations to maintain or
restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment and water
distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with the policy set out for note 2.27
“provisions” below.

2.11.4 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS
15"), a receivable is recognised only if the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. If the Group recognises the related revenue
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration and
the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the related
revenue. For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2.

112

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and
disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.14.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover
those costs.

Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.14 Other investments in equity securities

2.14.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI") or through
profit or loss), and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

214 AR FNEMIRE
(#&)
2.14.1 Classification (Continued) 2.14.1 738 (4&)

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.14.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

2.14.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

114

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

2.14.3 Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

(@)  Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_mFE+_H=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHEREBMEE

(Continued) 21ARBEARFHEAMRE
2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued) (%)
2.14.3 518 (#)
2.14.3 Measurement (Continued) () BEETAE)

(a)  Debt instruments (Continued) o AAFEGE 2
e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of HE AE)ET A
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial Hfh 4 & K
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely - REEdE
payments of principal and interest, are measured EHRRERE
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are EHESHE
taken through OCI, except for the recognition EZEAE
of impairment gains or losses, interest income ZEEER®
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are MEE R
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial re RHE -
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss H'J A FAE 5
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from BEHZFE
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other )\Eﬂﬁ?u?/m\%l
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial mEtEc° RE
assets is included in finance income using the BEEat AR

effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange ftb 4R & W =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

2.14.3 Measurement (Continued)
(@)  Debt instruments (Continued)

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

(b)  Equity investments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’'s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEHME(E
(Continued)

2.14 Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

214RRABSHHMIRE
(&)

2.14.3 Measurement (Continued) 2143512 (&)

(b)  Equity investments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in

fair value.

2.14.4Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) simplified approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for receivables under service concession
arrangements, trade receivables, amounts due from customers
for contract work and contract assets. Impairment on other
receivables is measured as either 12-month ECL or lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.17 Inventories 217 %FE

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 2.14 for

further information about the Group's accounting for trade receivables.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flows statement, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with
financial institutions. Bank deposits which are restricted to use are
classified as “restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash
and cash equivalents in the cash flow statements.

2.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

120 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & 7K # 1% & ix

Perpetual securities interests

Perpetual securities interests with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders of
perpetual securities interests are classified as equity instruments.
They are initially recorded at the proceeds received within equity.
Discretionary interest declared by the Group to the holders of
perpetual securities interests is treated as dividend.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_mFE+_H=1—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.24 Borrowing costs

2.24 fBERE AR

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and at the
time of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR IR R M L

For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

2.

122

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

2.26 Employee benefits
2.26.1 Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
based employees of the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the PRC based employees are required to make
monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans described
above. Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

2.26.2 Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR IR R M L

For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAEHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.26EEERI(E)
2.26.2 Defined benefit plan (Continued) 2262 EEEEF a1 B (4B)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)
2.26.2 Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management'’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This may be

at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:

o when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

o when the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

. when the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternate use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises revenue
at a single point in time at which the performance obligation is
satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been
passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

2.29.1Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally
coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.29RAFERR (&)

2.29.2 Rendering of construction and upgrade services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract.

2.29.3 Rendering of other services

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and
other services is recognised over the period by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.

2.30 Leases

The Group leases land use rights on long-term contracts and offices

and warehouses on both short-term and long-term contracts.

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for land
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the prepaid
operating lease payments for land over the remaining lease term or the
operating period, whichever is shorter.

Rental contracts for offices and warehouses are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

U the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet based on
their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.32 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that
does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEHME(E
(Continued)

2.33 Earnings per share 2338/REF
2.33.1Basic earnings per share 2331 ERELXZF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BRERBFIZENAT AR
FTE

. the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

2.33.2 Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares;
and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.34 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.
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132

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.34 Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint
venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS
9 which continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in respective sections.

2.35 Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAESHBEME(E)
(Continued)

2.35 Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

235K IEHER BREeRmE s

(Continued)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform in which the
Group applies the practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assess whether the revised
terms result in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of
the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification
is considered as non-substantial modification when such difference is
less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities" original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted
to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value interest rate risk

and cash flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities.

The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group's foreign operations is managed
primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies. The group entities are exposed
to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other than
their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the
US dollars (“US$"), Thai Baht (“THB”) and Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional Currencies”).
The Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring and minimizing its net foreign

currency position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed
and floating interest rate borrowings in order to manage
its interest rate risk. The Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents
are stated at amortised cost and not revalued on a
periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and expenses
are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/incurred.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB17,727,741,000 (2023:
RMB17,882,332,000). If there would be a general
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100
basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss would have increased/decreased by
approximately RMB141,230,850 for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB142,462,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that the
change in market interest rates had occurred as at the 31
December 2024 and 2023 and had applied the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk to those financial instruments
in existence at those dates. The estimated 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’s estimate of
a reasonably possible change in market interest rates over

the period until the next annual year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets is the
carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, amounts due from customers for contract work
and contract assets.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's
expected credit loss model is as follows:

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

BEREREEE

3.1 MREABREEAE)

(b)

el

ERRARREEREEET
B - NEEME YA
EREENKAERRR
RERHRE  RE KR
EEEYD BHRHEME
WkIE - RBBAFRE R
BFTHMERRE . 8T
BREEEFPFERANE
ERREE -

XEAEEEBEEEBR
BAHRRENT

Basis for recognition of

Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision

LVl AEEHEERNRE BRARCEBERBRENESE

Performing Financial assets for which credit risk has 12 months expected losses. Where the
not increased significantly since initial expected lifetime of an asset is less
recognition than 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime
EE B ERANREARRIY EBEZENN 12@ANEHER - HREHERFHE
SREE RMERZANEE  FREEBEEELAERE
RFEHE
Underperforming Financial assets for which credit risk Lifetime expected losses

has increased significantly since initial
recognition, but are not credit-impaired

F2bas B Yia R ARG BAREBEEINER
HRESERENSREE
Non-performing Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date
TR RBERBREREERENSREE

FHIRHIE R

Lifetime expected losses

FHIRHIE R

(i) Cash deposits at banks and restricted cash

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss
on such assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. Future
cash flows for each group of receivables are estimated on
the basis of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the
effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual payments. Trade
receivables without known insolvencies are assessed on a

collective basis based on shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. Trade receivables are categorised as follows

for assessment purpose:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREKEREE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) AR (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B ZEWRIEE)

Group 1: Trade receivables due from local governments; F—4H: REHFH
R 5 EUGRIE

Group 2: Trade receivables due from related parties which FM KRB

included mainly state-owned enterprises; (XZREBRABRE)
BE 5 EWIE

Group 3: Trade receivables due from other state-owned F=#H: REEMEH

enterprises; BRENE S E WK
18 ;

Group 4: Trade receivables due from other third parties FH4AE - REEME
=R E 5 BRI

On that basis, as at 31 December 2024, the loss allowance ERERE RZF

provision for the trade receivables was determined —ME+=ZA=+—

as follows. The expected credit losses below also H B S5EYGRIEE

incorporated forward looking information. BRESROAT - T
X B {EEEE T
BEREEER -

Group 1 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over

At 31 December 2024 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

£

R-B-MmE+=A=+-A 1£0R 122F 2E3%F 3Z4F AFLE ot

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) rEAB(ARETT) 917,139 573,017 296,007 308,102 313,364 2,407,629

Expected loss rate HEHEEE 0.24% 0.50% 0.92% 3.00% 4.92%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) E5#E#&E(ARE L) 2,237 2,892 2,716 9,240 15,422 32,507

Group 2 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over

At 31 December 2024 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

#-4

R-B-ME+=A=+-H 1550A 122F 2E3% 3Z4F A5 E B

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAB(ARETT) 72,154 100,901 8,238 12,924 1,960,797 2,155,014

Expected loss rate HEHEER 13.58% 18.08% 20.25% 24.16% 38.79%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) [EiE#E(ARET ) 9,800 18,241 1,668 3,122 760,626 793,457
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

3. REKREEE)
3.1 MKREKEZEE)

(b) fErRERE (&)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B ZEWRIEE)

Group 3 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over

At 31 December 2024 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

%£=M

R-B-ME+ZA=+-H 150K 122F 2E3%F 3ZAF AFEHE ot

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ERETAAZE(ARETT) 75,601 21,692 16,723 22,739 1,548,629 1,685,384

Expected loss rate BEEEX 5.47% 7.43% 14.72% 15.34% 20.86%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) [EEEBARETT) 4,134 1,612 2,462 3,488 323,009 334,705

Group 4 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over

At 31 December 2024 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

Eubl

RZB-ME+=A=+-H 1E5R 1228 2Z3F 3Z4F 4ENE am

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ BREAE(ARETT) 128,972 224,183 9,054 12,430 571,031 945,670

Expected loss rate HEHBEE 16.16% 30.47% 38.80% 70.51% 83.92%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  E5E#&E(ARE L) 20,843 68,308 3,513 8,765 479,204 580,633

As at 31 December 2023, the loss allowance provision RZE_=F+=A

for the trade receivables was determined as follows. The =+—H BSEK

expected credit losses below also incorporated forward HRIEBBEBE B RO

looking information. T o FXHIBEZE
BETBSAELEE
* o

Group 1

At 31 December 2023 Less than 1to 2 to 3to Qver

#-4 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

R-B-=f+-A=+-H 1EHUR 1224 223F 3E4AF 4FPE ot

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ FREAE(ARETT) 965,889 464,776 312,223 145,759 168,420 2,057,067

Expected loss rate BEEEX 0.07% 0.14% 0.26% 0.39% 4.81%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) [EiE#E(ARETT) 722 658 798 568 8,096 10,842

Group 2

At 31 December 2023 Less than 1to 2 to 3to Over

-t : | 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total

RZBZ=f+-A=1+-H 1 LR 1225 2E3F 3Z4AF 4EME it

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  SREAB(ARETT) 106,118 220,551 13,564 260,131 1,704,735 2,305,099

Expected loss rate BEEEx 0.08% 0.23% 0.28% 0.32% 28.30%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) BB E(ARE L) 83 504 38 827 482,468 433,920
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(1)

(iif)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

- e
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBREREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MKREKEZEE)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =/HEE(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B ZEWRIEE)
Group 3
At 31 December 2023 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
H=4 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
RZZBZ=§+ZA=+-8 TR 1224 223F 3245 4FLE ekl
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ERETAAZE(ARETT) 47,760 23,698 24,639 1,085,635 481,131 1,662,863
Expected loss rate BEEEX 2.17% 2.36% 3.00% 3.36% 31.19%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) [EEEBARETT) 1,037 559 740 36,486 150,053 188,875
Group 4
At 31 December 2023 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
EMmA 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
RZBZ=f+ZA=1+-H 1R 122% 2E3F 3B4F 4FENE k)
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREZE(ARETT) 252,417 41,619 24,845 229,682 362,600 911,163
Expected loss rate HEHBEE 5.98% 17.36% 54.39% 57.80% 86.98%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  E5E#&E(ARE L) 15,085 7,227 13,514 132,754 315,403 483,983
Other receivables (ii)) B M EHRE
The Group expects that the credit risk associated with RNEETEE - BEE
other receivables due from local governments and related b 75 BT R B S 5 #Y

parties is considered to be low, since they have a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. The Group has assessed that the ECL rate
for the amounts due from local governments and related
parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method and
considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the loss

allowance is immaterial.

Hfth fE W R IE B B A
FERBRRE  RE
ENEHREHEEEN
AIERBEREEEDN
RERMEBER - A5
EEE - BiK12
BRABEBHEEBES
% 0 W 5 BT &
R T RIBM TE A {E
BEBEBERIGTEK -
BEREZSHRELE
REMNEERR - B
B EEEY T E
X o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3.

142

A E U = = — [ EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other receivables (Continued)

For other receivables other than those from local
governments and related parties, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based

on historical settlement records and past experience.

The Group considers the probability of default and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. internal credit rating

o external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.1 Financdial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MR EEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) /HEE (&)
(ifi)  Other receivables (Continued) (iii) AL EW I E ()

e significant changes in the expected performance s BRAEHE

and behaviour of the borrowers, including changes WRATR/BE

in the payment status of borrowers and changes in NEE - BIF

the operating results of the borrowers. EEUN:SE0)

RO B R 18

FON S

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2024,
the probability of default applied for performing other
receivables ranged from 0.10% to 32.26% (2023:0.10%
to 7.86%), and the loss given default was estimated to
75% (2023:58.83%). The expected loss rate of the non-
performing other receivables was estimated to 100%. The
movement of the Group's provision for impairment of

other receivables are set out in note 23(b).

RNEREDH - A&
{55 2 OB =R 2K
HEEHEEER -
LAEEITRE DT © 2
HREBRBEEME
FEET SR W
AIETTIEET o ZETE
f= BB R N 4 R IA
kA e B ERTE S
MEBBEEMH - B
AR 7 R B BE 1 (= A
[E\fg & L & A 2
BEE R
F+—-_A=+—8 "
IE % H fib f& Y 5K 18
FTAKELOHEEN
F0.10% £ 32.26%
(Z 2 = = &
0.10%%£7.86%) *
BEHBXME A
75% (T —_=%F:
58.83%)° T~ R H
ftb, FEE U5 FR I8 A 7B EA S
BERMEFTA100% °
7N 5 [ L b pE U 3R OE
BERENEHBER
BN KIFE23(b) °

Annual Report 2024 FEH4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EF KSR ERHERAT 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

3.

144

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

3. MKEKREREE
3.1 BRRRERZE&)
(b) /HEE (&)

(ifi)  Other receivables (Continued) (i) E M EY 5 TE ()
Performing  Underperforming  Non-Performing Total
iy )3 R k]
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-mE+=A=+-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ RELH(ARETT) 1,890,554 — 57,351 1,947,905
Expected loss rate BHEER 6.14% 100%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) EEEE(ARETT) 116,090 - 57,351 173,441
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZA=+-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  RELH(ARETT) 1,828,249 — 148,240 1,976,489
Expected loss rate BHEER 0.87% — 100%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) EEEE(ARETT) 15,964 — 148,240 164,204
As of 31 December 2024, the Group recognised loss HE_ZT - /@&
allowance on other receivables of RMB173,441,000 (2023: —A=+—8 "
RMB164,204,000). Movements of the loss allowance on N & B 7EH M RE IR

other receivables are summarized as follows:

RKEBERT AR
173,441,000 (=
TZ=F: AR®
164,204,0007C) £
BiEEEGS - HihE
U SR A A
BT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-RLFE

2024 2023
—E-MF =
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARKET T
At the beginning of RERD

the reporting period 164,204 171,388
Provision for impairment VERERE ] 21,981 4,431
Transferred to disposal group RS EEEM — 7
Disposal of subsidiaries LERE A A (12,744) —
Reversal due to collection A W [2] 1 % 2] = (11,622)

Closing balance at 31 December R+T=-ZA=+—HB®
HAR &5 BR 173,441 164,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FRE SRR AR MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Prepayments

Treatment in normal transaction: When the goods or
services to which the prepayment relates are timely
received in accordance with the contract, the enterprise is
required to transfer the prepayment to the corresponding
cost or expense item.

Adjustment in case of contract modification: If contract
modification occurs during the transaction, resulting
in adjustments to the amount of the prepayment, the
enterprise should make timely accounting adjustments.

Impairment assessment and treatment: In the event that
prepayments are not recoverable or partially recoverable
due to special circumstances such as cancellation of the
transaction, default of the supplier or significant changes
in the market environment, the enterprise is required to
perform impairment assessment of the prepayments based
on the actual situation. Impairment assessment requires
comprehensive consideration of various factors, such as
the supplier’s credit rating (if available), whether there is
any default in the past transaction records, and the impact
of changes in market supply and demand on the supplier’s
operational stability. For prepayments for which exist
an indication of impairment, enterprises should make a
provision for impairment in a reasonable manner.

3. FM%RER

EE(E)

MEERERE)
(b) ERAmEEEE)

(iv)

FRITHE
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& A 49 5 g0 5 2 BX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_mFEF_H=1—HIFFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) B LB R 3 (4F)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) /HEE (&)
(iv)  Prepayments (Continued) (iv) FEITE (&)
Performing  Underperforming  Non-Performing Total

Prepayments ARNE ER 2):3 TR By
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-mE+=A=+-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  SRAAE(ARET L) 1,483,915 - - 1,483,915
Expected loss rate RHERE 3.91% — —
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) E#E#E(ARET L) 58,004 — — 58,004
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=4+tZA=1+—H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ RELHE(ARETL) 1,472,303 — — 1,472,303
Expected loss rate BHERE 2.85% — —
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) EBEABE(ARETT) 41,961 — — 41,961
As of 31 December 2024, the Group recognised loss HE-TZ _NE+—
allowance on prepayments of RMB58,004,000 (2023: B Za=18 - %II—T:
RMB41,961,000). Movements of the loss allowance on TET AR KRR

other receivables are summarized as follows:

R MS8,004,0007E
(ZZBE-=F: AR
# 41,961,000 7T ) B
BIEEES - HibE

WHH EEEHS S
BT
2024 2023
“E-QNE —ETo=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR TR ARKET T
Opening balance at 1 January R—A— BN & 41,961 41,961
Provision for impairment B E R R 21,188 —
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A (5,145) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+=-A=+—HBWHREE 58,004 41,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

Receivables under service concession arrangements and
contract assets

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit losses for
its receivables under service concession arrangements and
contract assets which were mainly attributable to provision
for construction and upgrade services and operating of the
concession facilities. As the customers are primarily local
governments and PRC state-owned entities, the Directors
considers the credit risk is low. An impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date using the probability
of default approach to measure expected credit losses.
The probabilities of default rates are estimated based on
comparable companies with published credit ratings. The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forward- looking credit risk information. As
at 31 December 2024, the probability of default applied
ranged from 0.00% to 2.85% (2023: 0.00% to 5.04%),
and the loss given default was estimated to 75% (2023:
57.62%). There has been no significant increase in credit
risk in the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements with gross amount of RMB7,950,970,000
at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB7,469,014,000) and
contract assets of gross amount of RMB11,328,317,000
at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB12,598,131,000), since
their initial recognition.

3. REKREEE)
3.1 BIXEKREEE)
(b) =/ (&)

(v)
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HIIEWHIBR & I E
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NEEE 8 RS FR
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4 Y 1B T L)
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155 FA 28 498 R A R 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

(vi)  Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors have
performed impairment assessment, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, any loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount
equal to 12m ECL. No loss allowance was recognised as
at 31 December 2024 in accordance with HKFRS 9 as the
amount is immaterial. Details of the financial guarantee

contracts are set out in note 37.

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet funding
requirement for operations and monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's cash on the basis of expected cash flow. The Directors
have prepared cash flow projections for the year ending 31
December 2024 and are of the opinion that, taking into account
the plans and measures as depicted in note 2.1, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
twelve months from 31 December 2024.

The Group will assess the relevant future costs and benefits and
pursue such options as are appropriate. The Directors consider
that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its operation needs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

3. REKREEE)
3.1 BIXEKREEE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) R"EBELEREE)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TEAMAKENEREA
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & + It 75 1% AR AH B 0 2 1A
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. As the Al REEEBESN
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted MR MR SRR ET D
cash flows after consideration of overdue borrowings and e RAMBRENEER
borrowings considered as default and cross-default, including RERBUABRRERE
interest payments computed using contractual rates, or, if BN R XE K fE &
floating, based on current rates. MENARBRASRE
BIERE S KM =E (KA
FENAIE - B RBI AR =)
ST EE A BT o
2024
—E-mE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHRERRERY
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years
year or within within After Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
R1ELA BB1F Bg2F
FRER BR2ER BR5ER 5F% st REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FT
Borrowings &k 2,991,029 648,339 12,220,298 6,519,903 22,379,569 21,369,470
Trade and other payables (*) B 5 REAMEMTIE ) 8,904,645 142,018 — — 9,046,663 9,044,202
Lease liabilities HESRE 5,906 7,218 21,035 13,598 41,757 44,155
11,901,580 797,575 12,241,333 6,533,501 31,473,989 30,457,827

Maximum exposure of financial ~ HERARHSARR
guarantee contracts (note 37) i (i 37) 85,260 —

= 85,260 85,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fEA 75 R R B o

For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

3.

150

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.

Bt %5 FEL B

EE(E)

3.1 B¥EMEE(E)

2023
=

—5F_=

(C) ///bgﬁfﬁﬁ"’%({g)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AHNRERR LR
Within 1 More than More than
year or 1 year but 2 years After Carrying
ondemand  within 2 years  within 5 years 5 years Total amount
R 1ELAR HBiB1F B2 5
HIREK BR2ER BR5ER 5E% it REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Borrowings fER 1,994,287 9,240,018 18,191,635 8,219,614 37,645,554 30,982,441
Trade and other payables (*) B 5 REMER FIE () 9,105,321 46,502 — — 9,151,823 9,149,961
Lease liabilities HESRE 8,300 7,597 15,279 29,243 60,419 50,426
11,107,908 9,294,117 18,206,914 8,248,857 46,857,796 40,182,828
Maximum exposure of financial ~ BIEERARHSA
guarantee contracts (note 37) BB O (i E37) 191,345 = = = 191,345 191,345
(*) Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable. *) TRERMNETRANRHE
foFERTTRIA ©
The Group also provides guarantees to borrowings of a joint AEETREERA R
venture and an associate, which will have contractual cash flows BN T R ER . B
only if the joint venture and associate default the repayment EEaEARARBEED
(Note 39(0)). AIEXRERBERATAE
EXEEaHNRERE(MTE
39(0)) °
. 3 =g
3.2 Capital management 32 EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Z’“‘E EEREARNENRRER
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide BEEHARRLE  URRRE
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to ﬁi@i&&ﬁfﬁﬁf@ﬁ =5 1H &

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital

to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through

capital markets as necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings”
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as shown in
the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

P B 1% R 2% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —FE_mESf_H=1—HIFE

3. REKREEE)
3.2 EXEH(E)

AEERBEEEAGBL XGRS
AR o B R IFEBERABE AR
A8 BERREREE(BES
HEEBBERMRRBIHRIERD
HEFDRAES LA EEBYMT
8o BERRAFHBRERMAT
B[ HE 2R AR EE I INME BT RERT & -

2024 2023

—ENEFE =

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T AR®ETTT

Total borrowings (note 30) B (ME30) 21,369,470 30,982,441
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) i : B& RIBLEEW (M7 25) (1,008,079) (899,244)
Net borrowings &R F 58 20,361,391 30,083,197
Total equity L 11,161,322 3,451,455

Total capital B4R %E 31,522,713 33,534,652
Gearing ratio BEAMBLEE 65% 90%
The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly because during the year BEABHIIBREEZERBNRZ

ended 31 December 2024, the Company entered into the perpetual
securities agreement with the controlling shareholders of the Company
(namely YHTH and YEPI), pursuant to which YHTH and YEPI agreed
to convert their respective ordinary securities of the Company into
perpetual securities.

T_MEF+=—_A=+—H &R
AIEAR RZERR R (EMEIRS

EREM&AECRIRER)FIZK
BEERS EEREEERE
HHAERREERESESE=E
BARRME BEES BKER
¥ o

Annual Report 2024 FE#H% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K E KRB HR A 7 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

152

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. HMKREKRERE)
3.3 Financial instruments by category 3.3 REMNESASHNEMTA
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ETT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATENCREE
- Trade and other receivables — B 5 kHE b EUFKIE 7,226,859 7,580,857
— Receivables under service concession — RIS EE L TR B IE
arrangements 7,793,456 7,360,123
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERBAEEEY 1,008,079 899,244
— Restricted cash — ZR#IEE 108,959 135,107
16,137,353 15,975,331
Financial assets at fair value EBEATEFENERHEE
— Financial asset at fair value —UAFEFEBEZEFTA
through profit or loss BEaemEE 50,000 —
— Financial asset at fair value through —UAFEFEBEESTA
other comprehensive income HEira e mEE 4,675 4,675
16,192,028 15,980,006
Financial liabilities A 8=R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKATENCRAE
— Borrowings — &R 21,369,470 30,982,441
— Trade and other payables (*) — B 5 & E A FE A FIE (%) 9,044,202 9,149,961
— Lease liabilities —HEARE 44,155 50,426
30,457,827 40,182,828
@ Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable. * TRERMNE TEH RE iR
a 0 q N\ =
3.4 Fair value estimation 3.4 AFEMERE

The Group’s financial instruments recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are

evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. The assessment of
the going concern assumption involves making a judgement by the
Directors, at a particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The Directors
consider that the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern and the major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

BRRREE(E)

3.4 AFEME(E)
BEAFEHNRA S T E IR
TATEN B ERETRE -

s MHRAEEXRGEEEED
LRRECRERE)(F—
&) -

s BRE-—HMEBENERE
S REEHRENAE
SR(EE(NER)KEE
(VR B ER)) & ARE
(B=#%) -

o WIHKERFBEDSEE
BHHEEXEBENHA
2045 (BD A AT 81 52 4 A 2K
B (E=) -

4. TESFAETRHE

R BLE 5 B 75 Rk B P A RO fh BT e R
TREBELREAEMCEAR(BERE
REBRAAARREMFELNRRERE
VTR ER) T ¢ 3 & 1T AT A o

A BRI 5 REBR - RIE
% - BT R 0B EHEEHE D 8
BERERAR o R LEBY T AN
BEEMAERBROREAFLEX
BRI RERBLOT -

(a) FEAKENZERE
RERBASEZ @ HRER
B R RMAETCEB BR
BimEia W BEmERE IR
SEPRIRF R A RFF B L E A
BELSE HWIHPBHRERAE
BRATEBRRBEATE LR
HE - S EFELERRE &
EERFERFRRANE LT HEE
ZEMHHIER 2 RKAERIEL H
- EFERBR - AEEHENF
B - AT R fE Bl Sk H R
BIREBRRBRERRMB - B
S| HEBRARZEANEMHRE
MEN & HH B IRRME2.1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F B 7% i 3% B 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

?

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Service concession arrangements under financial

154

(9]

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & 7K # 1% & ix

asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
forecasted unit price of service fee, operating costs and profit margins
of the operating services, will result in change in the carrying value of
the financial asset and the revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted to
compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs, material
costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still subject to
regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is required
in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated through
unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service concession
arrangements, the extent of development of the project and status of
negotiation with the government authorities.

Impairment provision of trade and other receivables

The Group records impairment provision of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment made by management on the ECL of trade
receivables. The evaluations focused on the customers’ settlement
history and current ability to pay, and took into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operated. Provisions are made
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. Impairment assessment requires the use of
judgement and estimates. The Group would revisit and evaluate those
assumptions related with ECL model periodically.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

4. TEGTHARTRHEE)

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination

is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwiill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to disposal
calculations, taking into account latest market information and past
experience. These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (other
than goodwiill)

The carrying amounts of items of intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy as disclosed in note 2.9 to the financial statements.
The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, and calculations of which involve the use of
estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in an

adjustment to the estimated impairment provision.

(d)

(e)

(f)

PSP RIEL FRSHIR
AEMIBASHTE BB
FEREVRATR o B AT (S Bt
BBEAFHEAHN - RE%
EBHBRE  TORPREN
BRETHTHRE - ML SEE
MREB RN S RENS
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[k JCAEER
BERGAEARRAMRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

156

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-
maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments
based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product
and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments
as below:

(a)  Wastewater treatment project construction and operation;
(b)  Water supply project construction and operation;

(c) Construction and sales of equipment;

(d)  Solid waste treatment project construction and operation;

(e)  Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of
each operating segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is
impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(0]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31

December 2024 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2024:

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

5. oHER(E)
() #HE-ZFZ-_HW&E+=-_A=+—H
IEFEMNSBEEREART HM
™

BE-Z-_NE+=-A=1+—H

IEFRE
Wastewater Water Solid waste
treatment supply treatment
project project project
construction  construction  Construction  construction
and and  and sales of and
operation operation equipment operation Others Total
FKEE B
BHEE ftkigR BEM REER
REE BEREE REHE BEREE Hith @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARBT R ARBT R ARBTR
Revenue from external customers RESMBEFEHBA 1,381,031 774,809 29,575 558,406 54,388 2,798,209
Revenue from contracts with HEPEHZWA
customers
~ Recognised at a point in time —RE-FHER - 648,207 11,651 - — 659,858
- Recognised over time -RE-KEER 1,122,781 104,428 17,924 516,719 54,388 1,816,240
Revenue from other sources Hi ATOR
- Finance income —BEKA 258,250 22,174 — 41,687 — 322,111
Gross profit £ 387,212 46,948 3,641 6,133 9,799 453,733
Other income HtA 58,537
Other gains - net Hiplhas 38 (138,327)
Selling expenses HERX (33,264)
Administrative expenses THRAX (633,507)
Net impairment losses on financial and SRRANEERERBFE
contract assets (751,619)
Finance costs - net BERNFE (1,130,837)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments AENEREARL
accounted for using the equity RE&MN,/ (B518)FE
method - net 564 = = (106) 36,326 36,784
Loss before income tax FEHAIEE (2,138,500)
Income tax expenses FEHAX (27,741)
Loss for the year FREE (2,166,241)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (125,083) (305,903) (7,076) (198,689) (3,443) (640,194)
Segment assets AHEE 16,856,251 14,238,220 4,700,610 6,895,555 1,778,098 44,468,734
Segment assets include: AEHEERE
Investments accounted for using EREANRNERE
the equity method 58,824 = = 26,902 997,115 1,082,841
Segment liabilities AHEE 10,349,680 13,484,654 4,828,578 3,851,875 792,625 33,307,412
Additions to non-current assets (other FRBEENAE(GRIAMN
than financial instruments and BIEFEHREAERIN)
deferred income tax assets) 451,596 38,860 2,355 32,513 = 525,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

AW
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DERER(E)
()  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 () BHEZZ-_=F+=-A=+—H
December 2023 are as follows (continued): IEFEMSBEEREATE N
(&)
Year ended 31 December 2023: BE-_Z-_=%+=-A=+—H
IEFRE
Wastewater Water Solid waste
treatment supply treatment
project project project
construction  construction  Construction  construction
and and  and sales of and
operation operation equipment operation Others  Unallocated Total
K BB
REHA #KIER fe il REHA
BENEZR BEREER REHE  REREER Hith AAE @5t
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:
Revenue from external customers REsBRFEHBA 1,668,987 738,660 131,531 519,542 57,819 — 3,116,539
Revenue from contracts with HEPEHZIA
customers
~ Recognised at a point in time —RE—FHRER 635,241 11,448 — 646,689
- Recognised over time - RE-BEER 1,202,097 65,294 120,083 449,597 57,819 = 1,894,890
Revenue from other sources H i ATR
- Finance income LN 466,890 38,125 = 69,945 - 574,960
Gross profit EH 546,179 55,051 28,472 15,806 9,605 = 655,113
Other income Hip A 182,394
Other gains - net Hipas 558 60,258
Selling expenses HERX (33,511)
Administrative expenses AR (422,827)
Net impairment losses on financial and &8t k& KB E R ERFEFE
contract assets (335,073)
Finance costs - net BERNFE (951,239)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments A ELAEZEABRE
accounted for using the equity &R/ (BR)FE
method - net 296 = = (68) 29,988 = 30,216
Loss before income tax FrisBiasiE (814,669)
Income tax expenses FEBRX (179,937)
Loss for the year FRER (994,606)
Depreciation and amortisation HEaEs (113,727) (339,917) (18,677) (265,338) (4,568) — (742,227)
Segment assets FHEE 18,268,626 15,261,882 5,147,152 7,367,225 792,171 7411 46,844,467
Segment assets include: AHEERE
Investments accounted for using BaENRNRE
the equity method 58,260 = = 27,008 1,017,823 = 1,103,091
Segment liabilities AHEE 11,911,088 17,694,390 5,950,390 5,093,309 1,704,207 1,039,628 43,393,012
Additions to non-current assets (other  3ERBEEMNARE (SR TEM
than financial instruments and BEFEHRAERIN)
deferred income tax assets) 608,106 172,174 7,535 143,259 29,357 — 960,431
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DERER(E)
(i)  Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the (i) HEEERBEAER T EH
financial statements. The table below sets forth segment assets and BHRERP = o TR IR

oMo HEERARE

liabilities by region:

2024 2023
—E_NF R =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Segment assets DMEE
— Mainland China — B K 42,816,420 45,184,248
— Indonesia —HIfE 781,275 793,543
— Thailand — = H 422,828 417,427
— Hong Kong — BB 443,353 394,286
— Singapore — AN 4,858 47,552
Total segment assets DEPE E AR 44,468,734 46,837,056
— Unallocated —RADE — 7,411
Total assets BB E 44,468,734 46,844,467
Segment liabilities PHEE
— Mainland China — BB K B 32,017,891 40,962,248
- Indonesia — e 153,952 196,667
— Thailand — R 32,747 30,179
— Hong Kong — BB 1,102,822 1,125,501
— Singapore — AN 38,789
Total segment liabilities HEPEEETE 33,307,412 42,353,384
— Unallocated —RoHEL — 1,039,628
Total liabilities wmaE 33,307,412 43,393,012

HBiB90% HWIERBEETIENE
B H) B R 4 B s R B 3 B 2E
EWEH(ZZT—=F : fR) -

Over 90% non-current assets based on the physical location of the
assets or the location of the operations are in the Mainland China
(2023: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. DERER(E)
(i)  The revenue of group entities from external customers by location of (i) EEEEBREINBEFHMEE
the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the table below. R E G ok iR 75 & 3 B &l 5 B R
HEF T o
2024 2023
—E-NE —To=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
— Mainland China — R B K e 2,616,457 2,936,558
— Indonesia —HIfE 118,533 109,151
— Thailand — R 59,955 67,007
— Hong Kong — BB 3,264 3,823
2,798,209 3,116,539
(iv)  Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as (iv), BE2EHREEEESEMEENK
follows: @ Z RAREHSN AT
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARKETF T
Operating services BRI 2,021,712 1,804,244
Construction services iR 370,423 556,569
Finance income B WA 322,111 574,960
Engineering - Procurement — Construction ;& &t — 508 — s T
("EPC") and sales of equipment ([EPC) RFZMEHE 29,575 122,947
Others Hib 54,388 57,819
2,798,209 3,116,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(iv)

(Continued)

No revenue from any single customer accounted for 10% or more of
the Group's total revenue during the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related to

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

7 EREF ()

(iv)

(%)

MEAWE TP EHAER
BHE_Z_NEFRER_ZT_=%F
+Z A=+ BHLEFEEHAKIH
10% 3 BA E

B

EPAIVamBcEERA

T

T
i

AEERBERBIATERTFETL

contracts with customers: AHRBZEERARE
2024 2023
—E-NE —Eo=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Contract assets - Non-current (note a) BHEE—ERB(FzEa)
— Related to wastewater treatment services — — B35 /KGR I8 IR75 A B8 8,954,549 9,611,671
— Related to construction services —BEERE A S 977,862 923,034
— Related to solid waste treatment services — B EEEEERTS A 513,929 1,187,519
— Related to water supply services — BEMHK RS A B 704,052 698,085
Less: provision for impairment losses W OREEBEE (117,786) (45,771)
11,032,606 12,374,538
Contract assets - Current (note a) AHEE—- B (MEa)
— Related to wastewater treatment services — — E5/KERI2 IR 75 A B8 12,046 40,994
— Related to construction services —HEEREER 161,948 136,828
— Related to solid waste treatment services —HEERE RS @ 3,931 =
Less: provision for impairment losses B OREEBEE (17,323) (634)
160,602 177,188
11,193,208 12,551,726
Contract liabilities - Current (note b) AHBE-RE(MED)
— Related to wastewater treatment services — — B3 7K G2 32 AR 75 & 33,038 7,255
— Related to construction services —EEE RS A B 64,830 73,880
— Related to water supply services — KRS B 7 2,531 13,392
— Related to solid waste treatment services — HE R IE AR A 23,560 31,554
123,959 126,081
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
WEAF = HA=+—HIFFEF

2PoF

5.

162

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(v)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (Continued)

Contract assets arose from the Group's revenue from
construction under BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements and bear
interest at rates ranging from 0% to 6.65% (2023: 0% to
9.94%) per annum.

Pursuant to the BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements, the Group
receives no payment from the Grantors during the construction
period and receives service fees when relevant services are
rendered during the operating periods. The service concession
assets are not yet due for payment and will be settled by service
fees to be received during the operating periods of the service
concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be transferred to
debtors.

The movements in customer contracts under IFRS 15 (excluding
those arising from increases and decreases both occurred within
the same year) are RMB335,365,000 recognised as revenue in
2024.

As at 31 December 2024, contract assets of RMB11,032,606,000
(2023: RMB12,374,538,000) are expected to be recovered after
more than 12 months.
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(a)

EHNEEREARAEER
BOT  BOO X TOT% HE T
mEENE  TEREF0%
£6.65%(ZF = = F:
0% %9.94%) B #] & 7
B o

£ #BOT - BOO K TOTZ
B AEEEREHBY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(v)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

All of the current portion of service concession assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
—EAFEFA=F—HIFE

B=E

5. ZHRPEFR(HF)
REFTTANEBZEERE

(v)

&(&)

(a)

(&)
B RIS SIS A
T B S R — F 7
Y -

ERGAEBIBERE R
AEISHNBEFANNA

HDEENEH(TEERE
F RN KRR D E R
BT :

2024 2023

—E-F —E=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AREFT

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥4 Hi1]] 126,081 101,162
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHBRAR (10,164) (6)
Recognised as revenue R AR = (139,119) (129,536)
Receipts in advance TEMRIE 147,161 154,461
At the end of the reporting period RS EIR 123,959 126,081

Unsatisfied or partially unsatistied performance obligations

All (2023: all) of the performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied as at 31 December 2024 are part of
contracts that have an original expected duration of one year
or less. Given that the Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these performance obligations is not disclosed.

15 K JETT 2 BE 72 15 K B 7T
ZIERIEE

FRBE(ZE = =%:
BIR=ZFT-_MFE+=A
=t+—HEKRBETHIS
MABITZRBAOEEIHE
REANBEHERE—F
FLAAMELH—ZD o B
R E B ER BB R
EERE 1555 121(a) ]
Pt @ Rl fTREE 75 %+ |
PEEZSFEHNEMLHR
SERTTHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_mFEF_H=1—HIFFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HUWA
2024 2023
—E-F —E o=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Government grants B B 39,055 44,240
Value-added tax refunds HERRF 8,102 2,494
Gains on substantial modification upon REREERELHERAE 2
loan restructuring (note 30(i)) llﬂlm(ﬁﬁ? 30(i)) — 53,615
Gains on non-substantial modification of ERIEE RN FHEE Y= (M5 30(h))
borrowings (note 30(h)) — 77,256
Miscellaneous income MIF W A 11,380 4,789
58,537 182,394
7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 7. Hi(BE) Wi FE
2024 2023
—E-NF —ET o=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Penalty expenditure S X (34,499) (29,308)
Net loss on disposal of investments HERBEARIKREELENERFHE
in an associate (note 16 (b-2)) (I 16(b-2)) (18,224) —
Net loss on disposal of investments in Rk N NG
subsidiaries (note 38) EEENEEFE(HE38) (85,839) —
Net loss on disposal of fe B EREFTAIIE B M E R F 58
a solid waste license project — (560)
Net gain on disposal of BMHKFFAIIER B F
a water supply license project = 36,236
Net gain on disposal of BB 5/KET A8 B M i F5E
a wastewater license project = 55,301
Others HAh 235 (1,411)
(138,327) 60,258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

8. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 8.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

ERHEERSHNEERE

AND CONTRACT ASSETS BEFEHE
2024 2023
—EB-F SEo=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Impairment losses on W EEE
— Trade receivables (note 23(a)) — B S REWRIE (KR 23(a)) 576,270 258,743
— Other receivables (note 23(b)) — H B Y 5k 38 (B 5% 23(b)) 21,981 4,431
— Contract assets (note 5(v)) —EHEE(MFESW) 88,704 9,282
— Receivables under service — R L TR e IR
concession arrangements (note 20) (K5 20) 64,664 62,617
751,619 335,073
9. EXPENSES BY NATURE 9. RMEHBTHX
2024 2023
—E-NF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Employee benefit expenses (note 10) EERFMAZ(ME10) 440,925 522,497
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BEREZBETE(ME17)
equipment (note 17) 356,048 254,363
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 19)  {FREEEIE(HE19) 28,682 11,268
Depreciation of investment properties (note 18) % & ¥ 7 E (KM 18) 891 845
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) mEESH(ME21) 254,573 475,751
Impairment losses on intangible assets (note 21) £ 2 & E i E &5 B (M7 21) 192,883 16,893
Impairment losses on prepayments (note 23)  F&{ R IEMEEE (MizE23) 21,188 —
Impairment losses on property, plant and M - BE RFREREEE(EE17)
equipment (note 17) 1,960 =
Impairment losses on TEYFEREEE (FIFE18)
investment properties (note 18) — 2,258
Legal and professional fee EREREEER 24,500 18,860
Auditor’s remuneration % S5 5 B 4,720 10,793
- Audit services —Bi R 4,700 8,150
— Non-audit services — B RS 20 2,643
Electricity, raw materials consumptions BEERENEN - BRMEDEREK
and other costs for operating services EH MK AR 1,055,919 408,286
Costs of construction services B E RS A A 392,482 950,399
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC R HE R R A 25,641 85,861
Miscellaneous HEIE 210,835 159,690
3,011,247 2,917,764
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& O 15 R MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2PoF

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING

10. EERFAX - EBREES

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS REEME
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Wages and salaries IE&ERFS 294,065 358,702
Pension costs of defined contribution plans E 7 At G B R IR & K AR 49,600 56,701
Housing funds, medical insurances FEAES - BEARRREMESRE
and other social insurances 64,279 64,049
Other welfare and allowance H ) 8L KB A 32,981 43,045
440,925 522,497
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EBBEHFEAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include one director (2023: one, whose emoluments in
2023 are reflected in the analysis shown in note 41). The emoluments
payable to the remaining five (2023: four) individuals during the year

are as follows:

AEBRAFENRAEZRS A
TEE—RES(ZE=_=F: —

REZR T

—FREFFT

REEKHE41) - RAFE RH
THEZ(ZZE-=F: OZ) AL

FER MBS 0 R ATR -
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
Basic salaries, housing allowances EARF® FE2  HOEYEF
other benefits in kind 2,659 2,058

The number of highest paid employees (including the directors and
supervisors) whose emoluments fell within the following band:

HeEATHEEANEEHES
(BREERES) ABWOTH

e

2024 2023
—E_ME ==
Emolument band P & &0 [
HKDnil to HKD 1,000,000 T 7L % 1,000,000 77T 5 5

Ms. Wang Rui has been an executive director of the Group since
27 December 2024 and her emoluments for the year 2024 is
RMB595,000.
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

11. MEWRARBEX

2024 2023
—EME =%
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Finance income mE WA
— Interest income —FEWA 11,086 4,375
Finance costs 592N
— Borrowing costs — R A (1,028,365) (928,433)
— Net exchange gain/(loss) on financing —REFEEHEN W ()
activities (note) F5E (M5 (31,459) 6,132
— Unwinding of provision (note 34) — BRI (BT RE 34) (82,099) (33,313)
(1,141,923) (955,614)
Finance costs — net B & R AN F R (1,130,837) (951,239)

Note: Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains or losses of translating financial assets
and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

M RRAERERE R ENR
BRENAEMELERS -

12. FIBRiAAX

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT

Current income tax BUHAFT1S %1
— Corporate income tax — T EAMSH 35,365 110,592
Deferred income tax EIEFTISHL (7,624) 69,345
27,741 179,937

(@) PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income tax
rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main operating
activities accounted for more than 60% of their total revenues of the
period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating
revenue.

(a) FEIEERSEH
R B AR EEES T1T
XWETHBARAIZR 15% &)
BERCEMSHHE  AIiREH
FTEREBEKWEAEINHEEH
I ES4AEBRI60% LA £ ©

FE AP B K B AR 205 7K I [E] R e 2
HEMETHEBARBELLE
WEEFRAIZA=F2HAR
ER=ZFELEMESHRFEN5F
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

168

(@) PRC corporate income tax (Continued)
Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%
(2023: 25%).

(b) Thailand corporate income tax
The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 20% (2023:
20%).

(c) Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: same).

(d) Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 22% (2023:
22%).

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
loss of the group entities as follows:

12. FREHRAX (&)

(a) HEICERESH(E)
B EXFTMETHEBARAIZS
BEFBI - NEER R ARE
By H B B A B B R A E R
5% BMBEMBR(ZT ==
£ :25%) e

(b) REIEEME
EREQEEEREIZAER B
NEAER20% WEEREBHE
RFTEH(ZF==4 : 20%) ©

() BERNEH
HRAMNBBFERHTEAR16.5%
(B - =4:165%)° AR
AEEBRBEE_ZT_WE+_A
=+ HALEFEYEERBEL
ERBEF - WY EFIRBSF
SHBEEHB(ZZE-=4%F: R) -

(d) ENE#¥AE
FEENEELEEREHEBNNB
R AEEIE 22 % KSR TE B R BN
EABR(ZE=F:22%) °

REBERRPTIS T BTEROR AR IR E
PR P 0 6k B 2 48 0 5 98 B DA 19 ¢
R ENIERERE - ARUT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETIT
Loss before taxation B 7% Al 5 18 (2,138,500) (814,669)
Less: Share of profits of investments A DR AR E AR
accounted for using the &&= T
equity method (36,784) (30,216)
(2,175,284) (844,885)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable &7 B2 Rl A E A /Y
to profits in the respective companies MEGFTEOTIE (332,215) (171,794)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets RERELERIBEE E 243,620 328,136
Effect of expenses not deductible A HB A2
for tax purpose 116,336 23,595
Income tax expense s X 27,741 179,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)
(d) Indonesia corporate income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB762,747,000 (2023:
RMB750,478,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable income,
which will expire in the fifth year of the tax losses occurred.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

12

13.

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

. FTSBiBZ (&)

(d) ENEEFBH(E)
HEENRIEEEMER ZELEHIEE
EERNE BRI 2= 0] 5 B R R ER
BHAEFERNERL R _MF+=
A=+—H ' RNEE I ER A EEEH
RIRFERBUWA BT IBEIBRERET
HEEEARY762,747,000 (==
—=%: ANR¥750,478,0007t) ' A
HENBEBBEENSEAFEE -

FRER

(a) Basic (a) E&X
The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable BRERABEERAQFEHERE
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average EEEERUNEBEZE T _MF
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December TZA=T—HLEFESETH
2024. AR E -
2024 2023
—E-NEF —T=-=
Loss &8
Loss attributable to the ordinary ZANYNGIR= S g
shareholders of the Company (RMB'000) (AREFT) (1,739,385) (688,068)
Number of shares
RH & E
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=
Shares i 15
Weighted average number of ordinary B BATHYE B AR N fE T &
shares in issue (thousands) (FB) 1,193,213 1,193,213
(b) Diluted (b) &

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there were
no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

HREBEE T _NFR_ZT_=
F+ZA=+—BIEHTEIN
B T ER - WEREE
BRETREREEER -

Annual Report 2024 FE#H% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K E KRB HR A 7 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

14.

15.

170

DIVIDENDS

At the board of directors meeting held on 28 March 2025, the Directors did
not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 out of retained earnings of the Company.

At the board of directors meeting held on 28 March 2024, the Directors did
not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 out of retained earnings of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024, all
of which are private limited liability companies:

14.

15.

=|

R-Z-—RAF=A-+N\BETHNESE
ee%E EFTEEHEE=-ZT-N
F+—A=+—HLLFEBALRARRE
BF| R B RS -

’

R-T-_mME=A -+ \BETHES
eeHEt ERFTEENBE=-T_=
F+-—A=+—BHILEFEBEBARAARE
B A R HE ] R AR S -

B /B 2 =
NWTAEZ—_ZTE_NFE+_A=+—H
MNEZMBARRE  ZERRHAIE

EHAERRAF :

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation by the non-
and operation, Issued and Ownership controlling
kind of fully paid-up interests held by interests (%)

Name (note a) legal entity capital the Group (%) (note ¢) Principal activities

s FERES L
EEMBER BRAIR AEEEM BEZA DL (%)

ZB(Mza) FERERER EYHRRA ERA D (%) (MieEe) FEEK

Dali Water Industry The PRC, RMB 45 (2023: 45) 55 (2023: 55) Wastewater treatment and
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability 188,554,000 water supply
("Dali Water") (note b) company** (2023:

RMB
165,051,000)

REBKBEFXREERAF HE ARE 45 55 J57KERIE RAHtK
(REKH) BREMERAA** 188,554,000 (ZT==%F:45) (ZTZ=%:55)

(B&Eb) (Z2Z=%F:
AR¥E
165,051,0007C)

Yunnan Yun Shui Construction & The PRC, RMB 57 (2023: 57) 43 (2023: 43) Environmental protection
Engineering Co., Ltd limited liability 913,405,000 equipment sales and
("Yun Shui Construction”) company** construction

ERHEKERIEARAF R AR 57 43 RRBBEHENER
(BXER) BABREMEARF** 913,405,000 (ZT==%F:57) (ZT==%:43)

Yunnan OriginWater Membrane The PRC, RMB 57 (2023: 57) 43(2023: 43) Environmental protection
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability 55,614,800 equipment sales

company**

EFRMBEKRER I AR# 57 43 RRRBHEE
BREMEAT AREMERAA** 55614800 (ZFT-=F:57) (ZT-=%:43)

Jinghong Water Supply The PRC, RMB 51(2023: 51) 49 (2023: 49) Wastewater treatment and
and Drainage Co., Ltd limited liability 80,000,000 water supply
("Jinghong Water") company**

R HEK HE AR¥E 51 49 J5KEEER R K
AREEAR BREMERAF** 80,000,000 (ZTZ=F:51) (ZTZ=%:49)

(T=HtmsasK])
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. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

15. B QT (&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation by the non-
and operation, Issued and Ownership controlling
kind of fully paid-up interests held by interests (%)
Name (note a) legal entity capital the Group (%) (note ¢) Principal activities
s FERESENL
ERMER BRTR FEBEM BHEA DL (%)
HHE(MizEa) FEERER EHH R R E D (%) (Mise) FEEK
Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental The PRC, RMB 100 (2023: 100) — (2023: —) Solid waste treatment
Investment Co., Ltd limited liability 30,500,000
company**
EHEBRRRREBRAA HE AR 100 —(ZFZ=F: —) EBERE
BREMAF** 30,500,000t (ZT==% :100)
Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, HKD 100 (2023: 100) —(2023: —) Investment in wastewater
Company Limited limited liability 1,735,147,000 treatment and water
company* supply
ERKB(EE) B 1,735,147,000 100 — RERKERERHEK
BHER R E R BRAF * BT (ZEZ=F:100) (ZT==%F:-)
Huize Water (Qingzhou) The PRC, RMB 100 (2023: 100) — (2023: —) Water supply
Company Limited limited liability 53,152,000
company*
2K (FM) R - ARKE 100 — itk
BRAA BEREFERA* 53,152,000t (ZZ==%:100) (ZZT=Z=%F:—)
PT Sumber Organik Indonesia Indonesia, limited IDR 95 (2023: 95) 5(2023: 5) Solid waste treatment
liability company 10,250,000,000
ENfE - 10,250,000,000 95 5 ERERE
BEREEQA HEE (ZZ==%:95) (ZZE=Z=%:5)
Shandong Tengyue Dangerous  The PRC, RMB 97 (2023: 97) 3(2023: 3) Solid waste treatment
Chemical Wastes research and limited liability 108,571,429
treatment Co., Ltd. company**
(“Shandong Tengyue”)
IR R 2ERERY HE AR 97 3 EERE
HEREFRAF AREMERAR** 108,571,429t (ZT-=%F:97) (ZFT-=%F:3)
(MLERREER])
Tai’an Tengyue Environmental The PRC, RMB 97 (2023: 97) 3(2023: 3) Solid waste treatment
Protection Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability 10,000,000
company**
FRTEERAR HE AR 97 3 EERE
ARAF AREMEAR** 10,000,000t (ZF-=%F:97) (ZFT-=%F:3)
Jinan Yunshui Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2023: 97) 3(2023: 3) Solid waste treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability 50,000,000
Co., Ltd. company**
("Jinan Yunshui Tengyue”)
BREEKERRRRR HE AR 97 3 EERE
ARAF AREMEAR** 50,000,000t (ZF-=%F:97) (ZFT-=%F:3)
(MEREKEE])
Xinjiang Qinggeda Yunshui The PRC, RMB 100 (2023: 100) — (2023: —) Wastewater treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability 300,000,000
Investment and Development — company**
Co., Ltd.
MBEBETKRR e ARK 100 —
REERAH BAREAMEAF**  300,000,0007t (ZFE==%F:100) (ZB=Z=F:—) FKEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

172

15. B QT (&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation by the non-
and operation, Issued and Ownership controlling
kind of fully paid-up interests held by interests (%)
Name (note a) legal entity capital the Group (%) (note ¢) Principal activities
oA it B FERESENS
EEWBT ERTR REEENL EHEB DL (%)
B (KiEa) FEERER BEH R ERE D (%) (fisFc) FEEK
Langfang Hyflux NewSpring The PRC,limited us$ 100 (2023: 100) — (2023: —) Wastewater treatment
Co., Ltd liability company* 12,400,000
JER 37 )L B 3 SR KBS R 12,400,000 7T 100 — EKERE
BRAA BREMERRA* TZ=%:100) (ZT==%F:—)
Xinjiang Yunshui Environmental ~ The PRC,limited RMB 100 (2023: 100) — (2023: —) Wastewater treatment
Industry Investment liability company** 500,000,000
and Development Co., Ltd.
MEEKRRIZE HE - ARE 100 —(ZT==%F:—) FKEE
BRRA BERELAR**  500,000,0007t (ZFE==%:100)
Guizhou Renhuai Yunshui The PRC,limited RMB 90 (2023: 90) 10 (2023:10) Wastewater treatment
Environmental Industry liability company** 522,839,000
Co., Ltd
EMCEEKIRE HE AR¥E 90 10 J5KEE
BRAR BREMERA** 522,839,000t (ZT==%:90) (ZF==%F:10)
Yunnan Solid Waste The PRC,limited RMB 100 (2023: 100) —(2023: —) Solid waste treatment
Investment Co., Ltd. liability company** 535,710,000
(note e)
EHEEREERAA HE - AR 100 — EEERE
BREMERA** 535,710,000t (ZF==%F:100) (ZT=_=%F:—)
(FizEe)
Da Li Yun Shui Environmental The PRC,limited RMB 70 (2023:70) 30 (2023:30) Wastewater treatment
Protection Co., Ltd liability company** 185,000,000
(“Dali Yun Shui")
ABEEKREFREAR AR HE - ARE 70 30 EKEE
(TREEXK]) BREMEAR** 185,000,000t (ZT==%:70) (=ZZF==%F:30)
Xinjiang Yun Tai Environmental ~ The PRC,limited RMB 51(2023:51) 49 Wastewater treatment
Investment Co., Ltd liability company** 392,770,996 (2023:49)
("Xinjiang Yun Tai")
FEERRRREGRAF FE AR¥ 51 49 HKEE
([#BER]) BREMERQA** 392,770,996t (ZEZ=%:51) (ZTZ=%:49)
Bazhou Keda Haorui The PRC,limited RMB 60 (2023:60) 40 Wastewater treatment
Environmental Investment liability company** 94,000,000 (2023:40)
Co., Ltd. ("Bazhou Keda")
EMEBEERRRREERAA HE - ARE 60 40 FKEE
(TEMEE]) BREMERA** 94,000,000t (ZT==%F:60) (ZFZ=%F:40)
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law G BIERPBEEEFMAINEBERE
e Registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC law o0 BIERREVEEFMARARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this note
represent management’s best effort at translating the Chinese names
of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014,
the Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55%
equity interests of Dali Water, respectively. Since 2014, the Group has
controlled Dali Water through an agreement entered into with one of
minority shareholders of Dali Water, who hold 25% equity interest in
Dali Water, pursuant to which the minority shareholder confirmed to
act in accordance with the Group in decision on relevant activities of
Dali Water.

The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2024 are RMB959,935,000 (2023: RMB1,465,281,000),
and are considered individually immaterial to the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the net asset value of subsidiaries belong
to solid waste treatment segment pledged as security for borrowings
from a related party named Yunnan Investment Group were
RMB535,710,000 (2023: RMB535,710,000).

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

15. B QT (&)

(a)

AR 35 FTHR AL 40 3% 5 2 A
EXEBNEEREALP XA
BEHNDE RERZZATK
B MEME XA -

REBHA-ZT—NFWNANR
W EERHE  AEEEDEH
AR & 2 Rl FE B RIEKHS 45% F
55% HIR%HE - B =T —PUF AR -
AREEBB—HEHEP —FKE
KIS LR (R IFH KREKBEH
25% A% ) BT 5T 3 B 1 % 1 42
RIBKISEIRHE - UL - D ER
RER - EIEHBRBAREKER
HE B E B R SR A AR SR B — BT
& o

RZZE_WME+=-—A=+—H"
EBWBARMIEERERETE
B A R #959,935,000c(= &
Z=%: AR#%1,465,281,000
TC) AR A A 5 B 4 B 3
SN

RZZE-_ME+=-A=+—8H"
BERAEREENEN G
FEARMEE A R®S535,710,000
T(Z B = =F: AR
535,710,000 7T ) K9 74 & B 2 12 55
HHBARMNEEFEERER
#ﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-F-mFEF ==+ —AIFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. B QT (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests g NGRS
The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the TREHAREE R E AR EERERD
Group that has material non-controlling interests: 2 EWBRRINFERE
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests and Profit/(loss) allocated to
incorporation voting rights held by non-controlling interests Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business  as at 31 December 31 December as at 31 December
R+=A=+—~H BE+t-A=t—BHLFE
MR iR FERERFMISHES 2T I ER RT=ZA=+—HB#H
MEAR R FTEEEME Rz R IRERELL A B HER(EE) R FERER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

“EoNE —Zo=F ZBINFE —To=F ZFB-NE —T-=4F
(%) (%) RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETRE ARETT AR¥TRT AREBTT

Dali Water PRC 55% 55% (126,574) (156,016) (411,064) (284,490)
RIBIKTE s
Yun Shui Construction PRC 43% 43% (200,878) (152,301) 135,190 336,068
EKER H
Jinghong Water PRC 49% 49% (21,284) (1,461) 217,678 238,962
SOt miaHEK i
Dali Yunshui PRC 30% 30% (8,586) 1,608 68,237 76,823
REEK H
Xinjiang Yuntai PRC 49% 49% 823 3,381 189,222 188,399
MEESR H
Bazhou Keda PRC 40% 40% 1,183 (37) 60,100 58,917
B Rtz s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. B AT (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) g PNCIES A P

REBER B AR &5 KT E 2 7Y
MEHBEREINMT o LT HEMH
BERAREHEBANER Z 2N SHE °

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts before elimination of intra-

group transactions.

Dali Water 2024 2023
KREBKHE —E-MEF —TE-=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFTT
Non-current assets SEmENEE 2,722,401 3,162,646
Current assets mEN & E 773,635 425,484
Current liabilities mEaE (3,178,611) (3,044,555)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,066,342) (1,061,054)
Equity %
— Equity attributable to owners of —RAREE ABGER
the Company 337,853 232,989
— Non-controlling interests — FEIE R 411,064 284,490
748,917 517,479
Revenue g 196,695 144,899
Loss for the year FNEE
- Attributable to owners of the Company —ARRAHEE AL (104,864) (128,501)
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests — — JF 12 AR #E 25 FE 1 (126,574) (156,016)
(231,438) (284,517)
Dividend paid to NCI AT 3R AR A 2 O AR B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETEENIR S R AR 27,163 39,379
Net cash outflow from investing activities ®EEEIHR & m L FRE (14,320) (19,490)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEESR ML FHE (20,253) (11,122)
Net increase/(decrease) in SRITRBRIRS NG )FE
bank balances and cash (7,410) 8,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

) PNCINE ),

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) MiE A RS (E)
Yun Shui Construction 2024 2023
EXRER —EIF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARKET T
Non-current assets EMENE E 58,780 96,500
Current assets mEBEE 3,638,330 4,099,204
Current liabilities mENa & (2,735,310) (2,027,535)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (649,798) (1,392,627)
Equity e
— Equity attributable to —ARRRER ANELER
owners of the Company (176,811) (439,474)
— Non-controlling interests — JEfE R R S (135,190) (336,068)
(312,001) (775,542)
Revenue & 19,394 15,558
Loss for the year FREBE
— Attributable to owners of the Company S YNGIE XD N ) (262,663) (199,163)
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests  — JE{E AR HE 25 FE 1 (200,878) (152,301)
(463,541) (351,464)
Dividend paid to NCI AT FE 22 AR e 2 O R B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities LEEEIR©MAFE (3,268) (419)
Net cash outflow from investing activities FEFEBIR SR FE = =
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEE R SR FE 2,886 (1,472)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances IRITAEBRRIB M Ol ) F8E
and cash (382) (1,891)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. B AT (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) MiE A RS (E)
Jinghong Water 2024 2023
SORTHRBEK —EIF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBNE E 1,016,074 1,075,446
Current assets MENE E 213,457 700,383
Current liabilities mEBAE (270,080) (803,602)
Non-current liabilities EREBE (515,209) (484,549)
Equity e
— Equity attributable to —ARRRER ANELER
owners of the Company (226,563) (248,716)
— Non-controlling interests — JEfE R R S (217,678) (238,962)
(444,241) (487,678)
Revenue U =5 149,242 131,913
Loss for the year FREBE
— Attributable to owners of the Company S YNGIE XD N ) (22,153) (1,521)
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests  — JE{E AR HE 25 FE 1 (21,284) (1,461)
(43,437) (2,982)
Dividend paid to NCI AT FE 22 AR e 2 O R B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities LETEENIR S R AR 83,119 62,030
Net cash outflow from investing activities FEFEBIR SR FE (20,621) (26,930)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEHRE SR FE (10,618) (4,883)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances SBITEBR RSN O ) FE
and cash 51,880 30,217
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. B QT (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) g PNCIES A P
Dali Yunshui 2024 2023
REBEK —E-NF —EB-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Non-current assets EMENE E 534,758 569,292
Current assets MENEE 172,683 148,340
Current liabilities mENa & (83,158) (85,512)
Non-current liabilities EmMEBE (396,826) (376,045)
Equity e
— Equity attributable to —ARRRER ANELER
owners of the Company (159,220) (179,252)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (68,237) (76,823)
(227,457) (256,075)
Revenue & 11,528 22,026
Loss for the year FREBE
— Attributable to owners of the Company S YNGIE XD N ) (20,032) 3,752
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ — JE{E AR HE 25 FE 1 (8.586) 1,608
(28,618) 5,360
Dividend paid to NCI AT FE 22 AR e 2 B R B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETEENIR S R AR 686 (419)
Net cash outflow from investing activities TEEEIR S ML FE (688) —
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEE R SR FE 5 (1,472)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances IRITAEBRRIB M Ol ) F8E
and cash 3 (1,891)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

) PNCINE ),

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) MiE A RS (E)
Xinjiang Yuntai 2024 2023
HEESR —ENE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBNE E 322,798 338,213
Current assets MENEE 101,471 91,792
Current liabilities mEBAE (31,463) (39,357)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (6,639) (6,161)
Equity e
— Equity attributable to —ARRRER ANELER
owners of the Company (196,945) (196,088)
— Non-controlling interests — JEfE R R S (189,222) (188,399)
(386,167) (384,487)
Revenue U =5 41,593 43,821
Profit for the year F N Al
— Attributable to owners of the Company S YNGIE XD N ) 857 3,519
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ — JE{E AR HE 25 FE 1 823 3,381
1,680 6,900
Dividend paid to NCI AT FE 22 AR e 2 B R B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETEENIR S R AR 3,405 8,781
Net cash outflow from investing activities FEFEBIR SR FE (1,054) (1,475)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEHR SR FE (13,500) 2,500
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances SBITEBR RSN O ) FE
and cash (11,149) 9,806
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

) PNCINE ),

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZNFERE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) g PNCIES A P
Bazhou Keda 2024 2023
B EE —E-lmEFE —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Non-current assets EMENE E 103,107 104,285
Current assets MENEE 83,414 78,182
Current liabilities mENa & (36,277) (34,188)
Non-current liabilities EmMEBE 6 (985)
Equity e
— Equity attributable to —ARRRER ANELER
owners of the Company (90,150) (88,377)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (60,100) (58,917)
(150,250) (147,294)
Revenue & 12,341 13,200
Profit for the year F N Al
— Attributable to owners of the Company S YNGIE XD N ) 1,773 (55)
— Attributable to the non-controlling interests ~ — JE{E AR HE 25 FE 1 1,183 (37)
2,956 (92)
Dividend paid to NCI AT FE 22 AR e 2 B R B = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities KETEENIR S R AR 1,498 (187)
Net cash outflow from investing activities FEFEBIR SR FE = =
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEER SR L FE (1,470) 27
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances IRITAEBRRIB M Ol ) FE
and cash 28 (160)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-FE-—mE+—A=4—HAIFE
16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UERZEARMNIKRE
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

REHEEABRBINESHENT :

2024 2023
—E-MF —EB-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Investments accounted for using DREZEAERENRE
the equity method
- A joint venture (note a) ——xagraHEa) 26,902 27,008
- Associates (note b) — BB AR (MaED) 1,055,939 1,076,083
1,082,841 1,103,091
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows: REZEINSENOT :
2024 2023
—E-MFE —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Joint ventures NN
— Share of loss for the year —DhENEE (106) (68)
Associates /NG
— Share of profit for the year — 2 F A& F 36,890 30,284
36,784 30,216
(a) Investments in joint ventures (a) REEQTNKRE
2024 2023
—E-mF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARKET T
Opening balance at 1 January R—AB—BWE &R 27,008 27,076
Share of loss for the period DIhEAREE (106) (68)
Closing balance at 31 December Rt-—A=1+—BWHIREE 26,902 27,008

Annual Report 2024 FE#H% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K E KRB HR A 7 181
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

16.

182

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

(a-1) The Group has interests in a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method.

Place of business/country

Name of entity of incorporation

16. AESEARNIRE (&)
(a) REELAWKRE(H)

-1) AEBER —FKARRZEA
RS2 ABREA L

Percentage of ownership

F 301
ERER &E i B S Bl =R FiEfkERA DL
2024 2023
—E__NEF T =
Beijing Bailigerui Resources Technology ~ PRC
Company Limited (“Beijing Bailigerui”) 40% 40%
I REMNRIHERBRER QA il
(MERAEREIH])
The Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Beijing Liandong ARAEHIERBBREREROERAD

Tianyi Technology Co., Ltd.* (At REGE) R ERHZAR D AR A &) and Shi Xuegian
(BZ2%), in relation to the joint establishment of Beijing Bailigerui Resources
Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Bailigerui”), in which the Company
contributed 40% of the capital (capital contribution: RMB40,000,000),
and each of Beijing Liandong Tianyi Technology Co., Ltd. and Shi Xuegian
contributed 30% (capital contribution: RMB 60,000,000). According to the
joint venture agreement, all parties shall be entitled to the voting rights in
proportion to their amount of paid-up capital. As of 31 December 2024, the
Company had paid RMB40,000,000 and Beijing Liandong Tianyi Technology
Co., Ltd. had paid RMB30,000,000, without any paid-up capital contribution
made by Shi Xuegian. Despite the fact that the Company’s proportion of the
voting right has already exceeded 50%, the business resources of Beijing
Bailigerui are shared by the shareholders. Therefore, Beijing Bailigeru, which
the Company and Beijing Liandong Tianyi Technology Co., Ltd. have joint
control over it, was accounted for as a joint venture.

RIEAERFTTAEHELRZL
REMEREERBEAR AR ([ERE
M) - NAREE LG A 40% (R
B EE: AR¥40,000,0007T)
T REHRERBRODERARER
B HEL R 30% (RGEEE: A
R #60,000,0007T) - @ & W T 4
EREBEBERLELOZERRE &
ZE_NMFE+ZA=+—H ' A&A
Al BB A R¥40,000,0007T @ 1k R HE
BRENBEBRNDERAAEHAARE
30,000,0007t ' AERAEREE -
BARNRABRRELFIEBB50% -
BERIEFRENEREFERAKRREE
% $“ﬂ@ﬁ§%@i 2R GD B
HREZESIEREFER - WIEE

M“Tﬁ;o

(b) Investments in associates (b) REEZEQATHPRE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Balance at 1 January R—B—BH&s 1,076,083 1,063,693
Share of profit for the year DG E R 36,890 30,284
Disposal & (51,596) —
Dividend received B Y% & (5,438) (17,894)
Balance at 31 December R+t-RA=+—HAW&t 1,055,939 1,076,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —FE_mESf_H=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UERZEARNIKRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued) (b) E’\‘Hﬁ“&" AANKRE (&)
(b-1) The Group has interests in associates that is accounted for using ) AEERUEREAR®
the equity method B AR P EEES
Place of business/country Percentage of ownership
Name of entity of incorporation as at 31 December
MY R+=HA=+—8H
BEREE = it BY 32 B =R FEEEZRAS L
2024 2023
—EMF —F-=
Zhejiang Qianjiang Biochemical Co., Ltd.* PRC 19.31% 20.24%
(“Qianjiang Biochemical”) (note b-2)
AT T EMEEROERAF A B
(T A ] (iRt b-2)
Langfang Yunxin Environmental PRC 49.00% 49.00%

Protection Company Limited
(“Langfang Yunxin")

B mERRTEAERRAA ER1E
([T = 1)
Beijing collihigh sensing technology PRC 20.29% 20.29%

co., LTD (“Beijing collihigh”)
(formerly known as Beijing Kunlun
Coastal Sensing Technology Co., Ltd.)
EREmEEMERHERAF ER1E
(MEmEm D (ARt RE®
BEERRMERAR)
Henan Liwei Biological Pharmaceutical PRC = 40.00%
Co., Ltd Yellow River New Energy
Branch (“Henan Liwei”) (note b-3)
AANEEYEXRNBRARENR ER1E
#eelRn AR (DA EAlE D (Mt b-3)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UHEZEZAERNKRE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued) (b) REZEQNTINRE(E)

(b-2) On 6 June 2021, the Company entered into an equity acquisition
and share issuance agreement with Qianjiang Biochemical
which was listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to dispose of its 49%
equity interests in Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection
Company Limited (“Haiyun Environmental Protection”) to
Qianjiang Biochemical at a consideration of RMB777,140,000 to
be settled by issuance of new shares of Qianjiang Biochemical
to the Company which represented approximately 20.24%
equity interest in Qianjiang Biochemical. On the same date,
the Company entered into a profit guarantee agreement
with Qianjiang Biochemical, pursuant to which the Company
undertook that in the event that Haiyun Environmental
Protection fails to achieve any of the accumulated minimum net
profit as agreed for each of years ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023, the Company shall compensate Qianjiang
Biochemical of certain number of Qianjiang Biochemical’s shares
held by the Company calculated according to the proportion
of actual shortfall in net profit out of the agreed minimum net
profit. The shares will be transferred at their par value of RMB1
each and will be cancelled after they are return to Qianjiang
Biochemical. In the event that the actual shortfall of net profit
exceeds the agreed minimum net profit, the compensation
exceeding shortfall should be made up by cash. On 23 December
2021, the aforesaid equity transaction has been completed and
the Group recognised the investment in Qianjiang Biochemical
of RMB947,304,000 according to the fair value of the 20.24%
equity interest of Qianjiang Biochemical as of 23 December
2021 and a fair value gain of RMB170,164,000. During the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, Haiyun Environmental
Protection has achieved the accumulated minimum net profit
and there was no compensation paid to Qiaojiang Biochemical
by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —FE_mESf_H=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued)

(b-

2) (Continued)

In December 2021 and January 2022,
overdue borrowings had taken judicial measures for property

lenders of certain

preservation, which froze the Group's 18.42% equity interests
in Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying value of investment
in associates of RMB862,121,000 as at 31 December 2021.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reached
a settlement with the lenders in respect of the overdue
borrowings, part of the equity interests in Qianjiang Biochemical
was released from the property preservation by judicatory
upon the withdrawal of the property preservation action by
the lenders. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's 0.70%
(2022: 7.27%) equity interests in Qianjiang Biochemical with
carrying value of investment in associates of RMB34,329,000
(2022: RMB348,856,000) has not yet been released from the
property preservation. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group's 7.07% (2023: 0.7%) equity interests in Qianjiang
Biochemical with carrying value of investment in associates
of RMB69,187,000 (2023: RMB34,329,000) has not yet been
released from the property preservation.

16. LEREARNKRE (&)

(b) REEEQTNRE(HE)

(%)
RZEZ—F+_AKR=
T-—=—F—F 5T@EH
ERHNEZXALD BB A
EFRFEDMEREE
M R=ZFT=_—F+=A
=+ —HBREASERNE
T A 1E 79 18.42% % 1 &
REE AR EREE
A B #862,121,000 7T °
REE—T_—_F+=-A
=+—HBLEFE X%
B BB R A RS S E R
ERME EERAR
B M EREFRE &
THEABNE » KRER B
BRER BRI ER
2-RZE_=F+=A4
=+—H ' AEERBIT
EIEB0.70% (=& = —
F:727%) & #E(E &
ARAIREEEEARE
34,329,0007t(= & = =
F: A K % 348,856,000
TL) M AR ERE P RE
BReHBE-ZTZ-_WF+=
A=+—HLFEE &%
BRETENRRT.07% K
B(ZZEZ=F:07%)
(2 ARKEKR@EE
A R * :69,187,0007C
(ZZE—=Z=F: AR
34,329,000 7T )) i& 7K 4 BF
ERERRR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued)

(b-2) (Continued)
8,075,745 shares of Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying
amount of RMB47,062,000 held by the Group were auctioned
for the period from 19 September 2024 to 20 September
2024 and transferred to the buyer on 25 September 2024 at a
consideration of RMB28,838,000, resulting in a loss on disposal
of RMB18,224,000. The proceeds of RMB28,838,000 was
used to settle the debts from the lenders. Upon completion,
the Group's interest in Qianjiang Biochemical decreased from
20.24% to 19.31%. Although the Company’s shareholding in
Qianjiang Biochemical decreased from 20.24% to 19.31%, the
Company has significant influence over Qianjiang Biochemical
as it still has directors appointed to Qianjiang Biochemical
according to the articles of association of Qianjiang Biochemical.
Therefore, Qianjiang Biochemical continuously accounted for as

an associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's 12.24%
(2023: Nil) equity interests in Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying
value of investment in associates of RMB119,781,000 (2023: Nil)
has been pledged.

(b-3) The Group disposed of its subsidiary, Gongyi Water Resources
Co., Ltd together with its associates Henan LiWei Biophama Co.,
Ltd. Huaghe Branch on 12 July 2024. The disposal of subsidiary
was completed on 25 October 2024 with a gain on disposal of
RMB30,831,000.
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16. LEREARNKRE (&)

(b) REEEQTNRE(HE)

(b-2)

(b-3)

(%)

—ENENATAEES
T NFEH A -+ BEEA
SEREENEABAARE
47,062,0007C #78,075,745
BRET AL EWIAE - I
RZTEZWFENAA=+AHHA
ERBFE REAARK
28,838,000 7T + BB I & /&
18 A R %18,224,0007T ° Fff
15 FUE A K #5 28,838,000 7T
THARMERAGEER
BETERKE - ANEBERET
HALEHERS R 20.24% TRRE
19.31% ° BEARA RIEEIT
ELBFFAREE B 20.24% T
[%7419.31% ' {B2BIRET
EEMRRIER - AR
REETELREES - K
ARIBETHELAEBEEAY
2 BB ARYEREE A
aj °

HE-_ZT_WMWF+=A
=+t—HLEEE £A5H
A BETEN12.24%
(ZZE-_=F: B)HNK
o BENRRERAE
AR #119,781,000 t(=
To=F )G

AREBR-_Z-_WELA
+TZALENBRAIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UHEZEZAERNKRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued) (b) REENTRMNIRE (&)
(b-4) The table below provide summarised financial information for (b-4) TREF|HERANHE
associates. B 75 &k o
2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETTT
Carrying amount of equity ERREREEE
investments 1,055,939 1,076,083
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ~ ALES(EA T SEH L
share of:
— Profit from continuing operations ~ — 2 [ 3 48 45 & 2 15 10 )% F 36,890 30,284
— Total comprehensive income — kRGN B TR 36,890 30,284
Share of
Disposal/  result of the
partial associates
1January  disposal of during the  Declaration 31 December
2024 investments year  of dividends 2024
HE/ EihFR
ZBCQE BAME BENT e 1}:3
Investee entities BREER -B-H HRE S ERRE t=B=t-H
Beijing Collihigh LRRA 22,088 = (3,575) = 18,513
Qianjiang Biochemical BI4 991,202 (47,062) 39,901 (5,438) 978,603
Henan Liwei ArAE 4,534 (4,534) — — —
Langfang Yunxin BsSh ERT 58,259 = 564 = 58,823
Total At 1,076,083 (51,596) 36,890 (5,438) 1,055,939
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —F—pF+=-A=1+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

188

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates (Continued)

16. AESEARNIRE (&)
(b) REEELQTNRE(H)

Share of

result of the

associates
1January  duringthe  Declaration 31 December
2023 year  of dividends 2023

o EEER
“E=2F peas —g-zf
Investee entities BEYREENER -A-H BEZ ERRE T=A=t-8H
Beijing Collihigh LRER 30,356 (8,268) - 22,088
Qianjiang Biochemical RILEA 970,840 38,256 (17894 991,202
Langfang Yunxin B5h E3T 57,963 2% — 58,259
Henan Liwei AEFIE 4,534 — — 4,534
Total = 1,063,693 30,284 (17,894) 1,076,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BER _—FE_pyFE+— H=+—HIFFF

17. Y% - BERRHE

Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment Construction
buildings  Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Total
BRE
BEREF e nE RE A EEIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-B-=E+-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 1,238,401 1,362,026 681 110,840 1,496,639 4,208,587
Additions HE 1,352 9,498 1,929 7,902 241,277 261,958
Transferred from construction in progress BREAKEIR 256,509 506,021 2,675 (765,205) —
Disposals HE (37) (2,378) 272) (52) — (2,739)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF = = 3) (7) - (10)
Transferred to disposal group ERZREEEM 23,644 19,408 35 438 209 43,734
Depreciation charge (note 9) FERZ (Mz9) (70,866)  (154,424) (2,291 (26,782) —  (254,363)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 1,449,003 1,740,151 79 95,014 972,920 4,257,167
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%+=B=+-H
Cost AR 1,914,311 2,901,616 87,820 275,663 972,920 6,152,330
Accumulated depreciation 2itTE (465,308)  (1,161,465) (87,741) (180,649) —  (1,895,163)
Net book amount EHFE 1,449,003 1,740,151 79 95,014 972,920 4,257,167
Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment Construction
buildings ~ Machinery vehicles and others in progress Total
BETRE
BERER HE RE Rt EEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETrn ARETR AR¥TR AR%TZR
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-B-MET-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BUREFE 1,449,003 1,740,151 79 95,014 972,920 4,257,167
Additions AE 36,537 107,367 1,196 26,237 16,020 187,357
Transferred from construction in progress BREOERTRE 873 - — 33 (906) -
Disposals HE (25) (99,444) (102) (59) - (99,630)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HER B A (i 38) (80) (2,958) (528) (4,772) - (8,338)
Depreciation charge (note 9) &R (f5E9) (158,273)  (144,025) (464)  (53,286) — (356,048
Impairment losses (note 9) HEEE(EI) = (1,960) = = = (1,960)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 1,328,035 1,599,131 181 63,167 988,034 3,978,548
At 31 December 2024 R=B-mE+=A=+-AH
Cost KA 1,951,171 2,868,876 83689 293,733 988,034 6,185,503
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE (623,136)  (1,267,785) (83,508)  (230,566) —  (2,204,995)
Accumulated impairment losses ZHRERR — (1,960) — — — (1,960)
Net book amount REFE 1,328,035 1,599,131 181 63,167 988,034 3,978,548
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B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

17.

18.

190

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation was charged to profit or loss accounts under the following
caption:

17. 9% - BERRE(E

FrE TR AT IR B R R IR ¢

2024 2023

—E-ME —E_=F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARETIT

Cost of sales $HE P AR 334,209 229,017
Administrative expenses TR 21,357 24,813
Selling expenses HE R X 482 533
356,048 254,363

(@)  As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for borrowings are RMB940,290,000
(2023: RMB984,532,000).

(b) As at 31 December 2024, the Group is in the process of obtaining
the certificates of ownership in respect of certain land and buildings
of the Group with carrying amounts of RMB256,520,000 (2023:
RMB245,768,000) from the relevant government authorities.

(c) On 31 December 2024, Yunnan OriginWater Membrane Technology
Co., Ltd. stopped working and underwent a business transformation.
An impairment of RMB1,960,000 has been provided for its existing
machines and equipment that were no longer in operation.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

RZZTE-_WEF+=ZA=+—
B fEXBEEEARE
940,290,000 T(ZZE =4 : A
R #984,532,0007C ) K 4 % -
[R5 Ko R R R o

RZE-_WNE+=A=+—H "
7N &5 B IE 1E 18 AR B BT M R
SIREE A AR 256,520,000
T(Z T Z = F: AR ¥
245,768,000 70) B A T i &
EFNHEEREE -

RZE-_WNE+=A=+—H "
EEWBEEKRERZER AR
DEAEIRE  REBBRES
HA . HAERERBEEILE
o BRTEEEER - BEtE
R EARE 1,960,000 T °

18. REWXE

2024 2023

—EB-NF —EC=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKET T

Balance at 1 January R—HA—BH&Ee 22,182 22,270
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  EE B %% « BE MR E — 3,015
Disposal BE (5,855) —
Depreciation charge WERX (891) (845)
Impairment losses B g8 = (2,258)
Balance at 31 December Rt+tZ=B=+—BHW&&H 15,436 22,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B=E

—FE_mEFA=1—HILFE

18. REWX(H)

2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARET T

At 31 December R+t=HA=+—~H
Cost PR 29,864 37,977
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (14,428) (13,537)
Impairment losses EAEEEES = (2,258)
Net book amount ARERE 15,436 22,182

(a)

The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance as at 31 December 2024 (2023: same).

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties were
performed by independent third party valuers to determine the
fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2024.
The fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December
2024 as assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method were
approximately RMB41,595,000 (2023: RMB48,792,000).

Lease arrangement — as lessor

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants for a term ranging
from 1 to 9 years (2023: 1 to 10 years). The leases provide the lessees
with option to renew the leases upon expiry. Monthly rental charges
consist of fixed payments. The tenants also bear the management fees.
Properties under leases are subject to residual value risk. The lease
contracts, as a result, include a provision based on which the Group
has the right to charge the tenants for any damage to the investment
properties at the end of the leases.

R-_ZE_WM&E+_A=+—H -
AEBTEBEBEERGEELSD
EE(ZZ2_=%:R) -

AEEREMEHBIYFE =1
BEEETBYGE  AEERE
%%F_v_ﬂliﬂ— A=+—

MRTE ZEREVERZ
:E¢+:H =+—BHAF

BEREGERMAEE L EAT R
# B AN R #41,595,0007C(=
—=%: AR ¥48,792,000
)o

oA

MERPE—EAREEA

ETREMEDLEEATER - H

HNFI1EIF (T =5 1
=104)  HEMRAMEARER
HERMrEENER - §AHE

B R BEEENK - P K
BEEE HEMERAZFHRE
BERER - At HEAHNEE —
BRI Bl AEBEEREE
ERERIREMEZ EFHRER
HERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2PoF

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

18. REWX(H)

19. LEASES

192

2024 2023
—E-NF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
The first year F—F 2,956 2,022
The second year F_F 2,724 2,926
The third year B=F 2,774 2,724
The fourth year Eues 2,844 2,774
The fifth year EFERF 2,842 2,844
Over five years HBRA 6,891 8,317
21,031 21,607
19. HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. AT REEAASE SEEANEE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REMEEEBERERN
sheet &8
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating ENEEABERISUATEGER
to right-of-use assets. BEERRANSHE -
Land use Offices and
rights warehouses Total
=+ 3 55 A 4 RAEREE et
RMB'000® RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTO ARBTT ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE=-=
+=H=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HR A BR 254,073 36,279 290,352
Additions NE 799 19,323 20,122
Disposal BE — (1,783) (1,783)
Transfer from assets held for sale ERABEHEESE 22,084 — 22,084
Depreciation charge wERX (3,252) (8,016) (11,268)
Currency translation differences BEEBmE =R 70 — 70
Closing net book amount HARBREFE 273,774 45,803 319,577
At 31 December 2023 R=ZT==
+=H=+-—H
Cost B A 340,093 64,460 404,553
Accumulated depreciation REtiTE (66,319) (18,657) (84,976)
Net book amount REFE 273,774 45,803 319,577

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K% 1& & D AR XA Annual Report 2024 FE#HE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. LEASES (Continued)

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

19. HE (&)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REHEEEBEXRERN
sheet (Continued) SE(E)
Land use Offices and
rights @ warehouses Total
T fERRE® MAERAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT R AR TR
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-MF
+T-—A=+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount B ERTE FHE 273,774 45,803 319,577
Additions ANE 5,951 5,362 11,313
Project termination (note (ii)) REIEB (MEE i) = (425) (425)
Depreciation charge TERX (16,466) (12,216) (28,682)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 263,259 38,524 301,783
At 31 December 2024 R-TE-_mEF
+=ZA=+-—H
Cost BCAR 338,380 68,091 406,471
Accumulated depreciation E (75,121) (29,567) (104,688)
Net book amount REEE 263,259 38,524 301,783

0) The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China and

Indonesia government for fixed periods of 20 to 50 years.

(ii) In August 2024, Guangdong Yunshui Environmental Service
Management Co., Ltd.* (BEREKIRBRIEEEEGMR A F), the
Group's subsidiary, as leasee, and Guangzhou Huan Cheng
Real Estate Development Company Limited* (/M & %3
EEBRAR], as lessor, has terminated the office lease expired

on 15 November 2025. The difference derived from the early

termination has been credited to profit or loss accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
P _E_mEF =1 —HIFE

19. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

19. & (&)
(b) RESHESERE

R & W

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income mREANEH
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income aftiE s REMEES K KRR
shows the following amounts relating to leases: LATE@*EE%E@E’U@%E :
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKET T
Depreciation charge of FEHEEERERX
right-of-use assets
Offices and warehouses PREREE 12,216 8,016
Land use rights + s R A 16,466 3,252
28,682 11,268

The Group leases land use rights and various offices and warehouses.

Rental contracts of offices and warehouses are typically made for fixed

periods of 1 to 10 years (2023:1 to 10 years).

() As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of land use rights

pledged as security for borrowings are RMB21,885,000 (2023:

RMB2,401,000).

K%lfﬁ 38 AR IA K2 %

1Z210%)

FIAERRE - WAERA Fﬁﬁ’]
EAHBERIZI0OR(Z
=&

E’\JIEHHFE

() R=TE-_WMFE+=A=+—80"

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect

to the Group’s service concession arrangements:

20.

ERMEREEARE 21,885,000
TR L AR IR (=2 ==
£ AR#2,401,0007T) °

RIS EERHETHE

WA

EARERBREALELHEENDE

BEMAREBD

(RFBESFFEELBETH

FERFIR) B R T

2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBETTT

Receivables under service R 755 45 B 45 i 2 BE TS B FE UL 5K TE
concession arrangements 7,950,970 7,469,014
Less: provision for impairment losses B REEBEE (157,514) (108,891)
7,793,456 7,360,123
Portion classified as current assets DER/RRBEENE D (261,991) (190,597)
Non-current portion JEREF 7,531,465 7,169,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The movement of the Group's provision for impairment of receivables under

service concession arrangements is as follows:

20.

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

W?ﬁﬁ@%?ﬁ?%@
U FRIE (&

75 6 W ) FR T S S A S R B T R PRI
TEREREEEIT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023

—ZE-MmE ZT=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREET T

Opening balance at 1 January R— R — BRI B4 108,891 46,274
Impairment provision B 64,664 62,617
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR (16,041) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+TZA=+—HHREH 157,514 108,891

(@) In respect of the Group's receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group’s projects
operated in different locations of Mainland China. The collection
of receivables under services concession arrangements is closely
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the

(@) BMAEERRBEARERHET
BMEYHIAM S - EERRER
SERHERETR M EEZR
B - AR EEEYIASH
MEMEERR - REFFLL

receivables. ZHE TN R M B R W B 18 R %
BN EEE o

2024 2023
—E-MEF —FEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Yunnan Province EME 2,000,897 1,854,678
Shandong Province IS 1,182,450 1,095,416
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region FegERaRRE 651,795 663,849
Jiangsu Province LERAE 33,360 540,450
Hebei Province B =) 515,697 443,068
Henan Province AEE 559,909 375,131
Anhui Province ZHE 1,066,186 1,086,412
Tianjin City RAED 126,748 143,276
Fujian Province BEA 714,420 282,817
Guangdong Province BERE 397,617 266,331
Chongging City BEM 101,101 102,682
Liaoning Province HEE 41,325 41,720
Guizhou Province EMAE 559,465 573,184
7,950,970 7,469,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. R4S SE BT HE

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) WRRIR (4E
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under service (b) BRIESFFHFLLELHET B EKFKIA
concession arrangements is as follows: TR R R R AT
2024 2023
—E-ME —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTIT
Within one year —FURA 267,017 190,744
One to two years —E—4F 228,012 264,578
Two to five years —ERF 361,846 992,732
X s
Over five years b Rakad 7,094,095 6,020,960
7,950,970 7,469,014
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEEE

Unfulfilled Technical

Goodwill  Development Operating contract know-how
(note b)  expenditure concessions rights Licenses  and software Total

BE KET EEHMR
(Ki&Eb) EE R BT RERE BRER R g4 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBF T AR®T T AR®T R ARBT R ARBT T AR®F T ARBF T

For the year ended BE-%-=%
31 December 2023 +-A=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount BNREFE 200,579 14,490 10,782,248 — 414,076 50,005 11,461,398
Additions RE — 710 153,092 — — 910 154,712
Currency translation differences EMHERE 2,744 — (37,804) — — (6) (35,066)
Disposals HE = (2,251) (278,227) — — — (280,478)
Transferred to disposal of assets group EEREENEAESR — — 19,045 9,458 — — 28,503
Amortisation charge (note 9) RS (M) — — (452,250) — (19,073) (4,428) (475,751)
Impairment losses (note 9) RERBE (M) (14,248) — (2,645) — — — (16,893)
Closing net book amount HRREEE 189,075 12,949 10,183,459 9,458 395,003 46,481 10,836,425
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZH
+=A=+-8
Cost BRA 374,311 15,200 12,877,424 52,301 657,487 144,291 14,121,014
Accumulated depreciation ZitiheE — (2,251) (2,426,460) (41,080) (136,211) (33,477) (2,639,479)
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHRERE (185,236) — (267,505) (1,763) (126,273) (64,333) (645,110)
Net book amount REFE 189,075 12,949 10,183,459 9,458 395,003 46,481 10,836,425
For the year ended Bz-2-—m%
31 December 2024 tTZA=+-RLEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 189,075 12,949 10,183,459 9,458 395,003 46,481 10,836,425
Additions RE 722 2,937 75,143 - — 543 79,345
Currency translation differences ERBEEE = = (15,729) = = - (15,729)
Disposals RE — — (510) — — - (510)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR — — (476,585) - - — (476,585)
Transferred to disposal of assets group ~ EEZREEEM — — - - - — —
Amortisation charge (note 9) BERAX (M) — — (194,824) - (58,310) (1,439) (254,573)
Impairment losses (note 9) REERE ) (189,797) — (3,086) - - — (192,883)
Closing net book amount BAREFE — 15,886 9,567,868 9,458 336,693 45,585 9,975,490
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-mE
H=H=F=IH

Cost KA 375,033 18,137 12,159,986 52,301 657,487 144,834 13,407,778
Accumulated depreciation RitiE — (2,251) (2,321,527) (41,080) (194,521) (34,916) (2,594,295)
Accumulated impairment losses ZPREER (375,033) — (270,591) (1,763) (126,273) (64,333) (837,993)
Net book amount REFE - 15,886 9,567,868 9,458 336,693 45,585 9,975,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(@) Amortisation was charged to the profit or loss

21. BILEE (&)
(a) BBEERBREEATHT

accounts under the following caption: 518 B kR :
2024 2023
—E-NF —EB-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Cost of sales HEKA 244,139 458,290
Administrative expenses THRAXZ 10,399 17,419
Selling expenses HEMX 35 42
254,573 475,751

(@) As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of operating (a)

(b)

(c)

concessions pledged as security for borrowings are
RMB283,750,000 (2023: RMB272,365,000).

In 2024, a provision for impairment losses of RMB3,086,000
(2023: Nil) was made for the damaged idle equipment against
Hyflux NewSpring (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

The book values of the intangible asset, the operating concession
of Yuxi Clean Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Company, amounted to RMB479,181,000,
which is amortised using the straight-line method with a
remaining amortisation period of 314 months.

(b)

(c)

RZZTE_WMFE+=ZA
=+—HB ERERE
ROBHLEEEBERERBR
B & A R %283,750,000
(T _=F: AR
272,365,000 7T) °

E-Z_EHIBEHR
KB(ESH ) BR DA B
HhHRNRERER
AR EBEERARK
3,086,000 (=T =4
) o

AR E M B AR EZEE
MIRRB B BR QA EF
BERTEEERAME
B A AR ®A479,181,000
L REESAEHE R
BMREHER A314EA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2PoF

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

198  YunNA

Impairment test for goodwiill

Before impairment test for goodwill, in 2024, the Group has
recognised goodwill with total amounts of RMB189,075,000 (2023:
RMB200,579,000), which arose from acquisition of subsidiaries in
prior years. For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill
was allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined by a value-in-use calculation. The
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the projection period based on their past experience and
expectation for the market development and is consistent with their
business plan. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates.

(i) A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented

21.

BRVEE(A)
(b) BHEREMH

FETHERERN  R=ZT=N
F AEEEERA[ELBAA
R # 189,075,000 (= & — =
F: AR #200,579,0007T ) °
F ZRE L ATFE WM E A A i
Ef - -BRENANS  BEH
RERSCEASBM([BEELSE
fir]) o BEEEBMNHAIKE
SHEIBBRERBEEBE - T8
FRAARSHEED - KEE
BEMZORFHMBRESE - &
BEERANEEHREENER
AEMBALHRREUMBERE
WA BEFESMEETE—
W BBARATHEAMNESRED
FEABIERERES -

() T2 EBDBEZD A

below: EEHE :
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR®ETTT
Solid waste treatment [ fB% fR 32 — 16,542
Water supply #HoK — 105,590
Wastewater treatment 57K B 12 — 66,943
—_ 189,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. B EE (&)
(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (b) BHERERE(E)
(i) Key assumptions used for recoverable amount of each CGU were (i) BEBSELSBMAER
in the range as follows: WEeBENEZRINE
BT :

As at 31 December 2024
R-Z-ME+=-A=t-H

Construction

Solid waste Water  Wastewater  and sales of
treatment supply treatment equipment
BER
EERE itk EKEE REHE
Average annual growth rate of W ga 3 38 R 3K (i)
revenue (iii) 2% —35% 0% —12% 0%-12% N/A REA
Long-term growth rate (iv) REPERE (jv) - 2%-5% 1%-3% N/AREHA
Discount rate (v) BRI R (v) 9.27%-11%  9.24%-11%  8.55%-11% N/A RiEA
As at 31 December 2023
RZZBZ=5+-A=+-H
Construction
Solid waste Wastewater and sales of
treatment  Water supply treatment equipment
Bk
(& R e 38 ik AREE REHE
Average annual growth rate of W g T3 G 38 R 3K (i)
revenue (iii) 2%—35% 0%—12% 0%—12% N/A T iE R
Long-term growth rate (iv) REPERE (jv) 0% 3% 3% N/A N F
Discount rate (v) BEIRE (v) 9.27%  1%—14% 11%—14% N/A FEF
(i) Management determined average annual growth rate of revenue (i) BEBEABTDREBBERXRR
based on past performance and its expectations for each market RESHMSERATEDE
development. EWAFHFERE -
(iv)  The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts (iv) FTRARHEBREMEITER
included in each industry report. ERTETEA -5 -
(v)  The discount rate used is discount rate applied to the cash flow (v FTRAMBAXARERERE
projections which reflects specific risks relating to each business. RIFTERA MBI E AR

R S22 75 5 B B e E R
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2PoF

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(9]

Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2024, management has performed an assessment
of the CGU. The carrying value of the CGU is compared against the
recoverable amount. Based on the assessment, recoverable amounts
of the CGUs are determined by value-in-use calculation based on
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
and financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

In performing the impairment assessment, key assumptions and input
data adopted by the management include forecast prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and capital expenditures
and discount rates. Management determined (1) the forecast water
price based on the management expectations and also local policies; (2)
the forecast production volumes based on management’s production
plan and forecast production volume for the remaining concession
periods as set out in the reserve reports; (3) the forecast operating
costs and capital expenditures based on its financial budget and
business plan; and (4) the pre-tax discount rate reflected specific risks
relating to the relevant business.

Based on the above impairment assessment, the Group recognised
impairment losses on goodwill and other intangible assets of
RMB189,797,000 and RMB3,086,000 respectively for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: RMB 14,248,000 and RMB2,645,000).

22. INVENTORIES

200

21.

BREE(H)

(c)

RERE B

RZZE_ME+=-_A=+—H"
EREHHECELEEMEITT
T BEESEABNNEEE
BRI E S FEEITHE - RIRET
- REELEBEMHIKRESE
DIRBEFEREEETE £AEE
TEERBEHVBEES LN
CHERAIREEEHZNAS
HBA B E o

FEEITREREE - BEEMK
RH B RE BB EEERE
Bl BRES  RAEZKA KR
BEXHARMBRE - EEER
BATEATR - () ERERE
B R E M BER ATRRIKE © (2)
BAEENERFERSET 27
H e FIgR & R /O & 38 A E 5T 3
RIBAEE  QREEPBEA
Ro 376 51 B I 5] T8ORI 38 & AR A Je
Ao RABAMBEREXAR
PR L S TS AR R 0 15 E LB o

EREMREFTGE BEZZ
“OE+-—A=t—HILEFE"
AEEHEEEREMERLEE
2 RIFER T AR 189,797,000 7T
X AR5 3,086,000 7T HY I (B K518
T =% : AR 14,248,000
TR AR#E 2,645,0007T) °

22. 78

2024 2023

—E-NF —E-=%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Raw materials R R 77,122 65,101
Work in progress T2 — 30,465
Finished goods 2K M 36,653 30,729
113,775 126,295

There was no provisions made for inventories for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. BEZRH#MEWKFTIERTE

PREPAYMENTS NESE
2024 2023
—EB-F —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR®T T ARBTT
Trade receivables B 5 FE W RI8
— Related parties — B 2,155,014 2,305,099
— Local governments — b 75 B 2,407,629 2,057,067
— Third parties =E=75 2,631,054 2,574,026
Less: provision for impairment losses B ORE S B (1,741,302) (1,167,620)
5,452,395 5,768,572
Other receivables H th JE W kI8
— Related parties — BEEE 40,365 64,945
— Third parties —F= 1,907,540 1,911,544
Less: provision for impairment losses W REEBEE (173,441) (164,204)
1,774,464 1,812,285
Total trade and other receivables B 5 & E M EBGR BT 7,226,859 7,580,857
Less: non-current portion of o E FEBGR A FE BN EAEL 5
other receivables (185,382) (285,516)
Current portion of trade and other receivables & 5 K H i fig & 7k 49 BN HA 50 > 7,041,477 7,295,341
Prepayments TE T AR
— Related parties —EaE 193,674 171,110
— Third parties =E=7 1,290,241 1,301,193
Less: provision for impairment losses B ORE B EE (58,004) (41,961)
1,425,911 1,430,342
Less: non-current portion of prepayments W T BRI SERNERED (1,193,712) (1,119,352)
Current portion of prepayments TR BRFREY BN ER B 95 232,199 310,990

Note:

BaE -

The trade and other receivables and prepayment of RMB7,273,676,000 (2023:
RMB7,606,331,000) are expected to be recovered within one year.

BSREMBERRIRARBHERARE
7,273,676,000c(= T = = F£: A R &
7,606,331,000 7T ) T8 B A — F U [E] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

202

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables

Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including amounts due from
related parties of trading in nature) at the respective balance sheet
dates, based on the invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows:

23.

B RHMEBWRIERE

NRRIE (&)

(a) BEZEWFRE
REHEBEERABRA DK
A R P R A (B B R
1 0 R BRRG 5 HOR) K R AR

AT -
2024 2023
—E-mF —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARETTT
Within one year —F A 1,193,866 1,372,186
One to two years =Z= 919,793 750,644
Two to three years —E=4F 330,022 375,271
Over three years =FHE 4,750,016 4,438,091
7,193,697 6,936,192

The Group have different credit policies for various products and
services, depending on the requirements of different business
segments and the contractual agreements with different customers.

Movement of the Group's provision for impairment losses of trade

AEBEEBREMERBHE TR
ZIEERE  |RFTREBEM
M ER R ENFEF S #
e e

AEEE 5 EYGRIAN R EEE

receivables are as follows: BE2EHWT -
2024 2023
—EIWE —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R AREFT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHHBNE: 1,167,620 911,312
Provision for impairment losses AR B 576,270 258,743
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) & KB A |l (T sk 38) (2,588) (17)
Transfer from/(to) assets held for sale HEE (2)RBEHEAE — 236

Write off impairment losses on WiH e R EERERE

financial assets — (2,654)
Closing balance at 31 December R+-ZB=+—BHERE&EER 1,741,302 1,167,620
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other receivables

(9]

(d)

Movement of the Group's provision for impairment losses of other

23.

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

B RHMEBWRERE
NRRIE (&)
(b) EAthfEWFRIE

74 S5 [ A R OB B 1 S 0B

receivables are as follows: BEB2EHAT -
2024 2023
—E-EF —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBTT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHD&e 164,204 171,388
Provision for impairment losses AR B 21,981 4,431
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HE KB A F) (i 3E 38) (12,744) —
Reversal due to collection ] it 1] 1y 48 [2) — (11,622)
Transfer from/(to) assets held for sale e (R)RFELEEE = 7
Closing balance at 31 December RT-—A=+-—HHBREH 173,441 164,204
Prepayments () FANRE

The Group’'s prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods and
services, acquisition of land use rights, and acquisition of equity
interests.

Movement of the Group's provision for impairment losses of

AEENENRBEIEZRBEES
o M AR A% - (R AR UL e Ak
TEUHE

A& BN FIRRE R R E

prepayments are as follows: BEHIONT
2024 2023
—E-IF —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHHDEeR 41,961 41,961
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) o 65 B 38 A & (BT 3% 38) (5,145) —
Provision for impairment losses REEBEE 21,188 —
Closing balance at 31 December Rt+-B=+—BHHKRE 58,004 41,961

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

(d) ruspBEHSSEERR
AL EBERERIENREE
REEN EFHEFMBERDER
PER
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N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

24. ZREARE
REZTZWF+=—A=+—H ' ZBRH
ReXZORERBENRES  ®
AESPIREN TR REMER(ZE
—EF XRAREeFTEREERIEE
B IRTE & R BE PRGN ER)

24. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2024, the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee
deposits for construction of projects, deposits under judicial freeze and
wealth management products (2023: comprised of guarantee deposits for
construction of projects and deposits under judicial freeze).

2024 2023
—E-E T =
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR T ARKET T
Guarantee deposits for construction EREENRIES
of projects 42,616 41,484
Deposits under judicial freeze #HRE B PTR A TE R 66,282 93,623
Suspension of Credit Supervision EEEEFPEBRE
Account Operations 61 =
108,959 135,107
As at 31 December 2024, lenders of certain overdue borrowings had taken RZZFE-_MFE+=—A=+—H &F@

HERNERADFKIRLAZFIEL
HERDEHR  BEREAEEERT
HIE S AR® 66,282,000 (=T - =

judicial measures for property preservation, which included freezing of the
Group cash in banks of RMB66,282,000 (2023: RMB93,623,000).

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERREEEY
2024 2023
—E-lmE —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR®T T ARET T
Cash at bank and in hand (note a) WITERRFEF S (KMiEa) 1,008,079 899,244
(@) As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are (@) RZE-_WF+=—A=+—H"
denominated in: AEENRERREEEBWUT
P E’EETHE -
2024 2023
—E_ME —ZEF-=
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBETTT
RMB AR 908,709 839,878
IDR EjeE 5,997 6,000
HKD BIT 31,360 4,545
usD ETT 4,613 19,590
SGD N T 453 840
THB B 56,947 28,391
1,008,079 899,244
The conversion of the RMB denominated balances maintained in the HSER BIE AR AR
PRC into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of BRRRFE LR BINE - HE<Fh
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. B IR R4 B NP B R AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

26. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 26. U AEBETEEHET

PROFIT OR LOSS FABENEREE
2024 2023
—E-ME —Eo=4F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARET T ARBETT
Treasury investments and others BT E & HAh 50,000 —
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. RA&
Number of
shares Share capital
ROEE [
(thousand) RMB’000
(F8&) AR® T
As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, RZZEZ=F—H—HK
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 —E-=F+-_A=+—8"
—EMFE-A—AK
—E-_NMFE+=A=+—8H 1,193,213 1,193,213
28. OTHER RESERVES 28. Hithf#E
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
R E EEREE REREE wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTR AR%¥TR AR%¥TxR
(note a) (note b) (note c)

(FizEa) (F#zED) (Bt EE )

Balance at 1 January 2023 R=-ZB-_=%—H—H

B 45 85 2,123,160 684,473 (246,662) 2,560,971
Currency translation differences BEinE = — — (69,514) (69,514)
Transfer to statutory reserve HERTFEREE — 54,555 — 54,555
Closing net book amount BRAREFE 2,123,160 739,028 (316,176) 2,546,012
For the year ended BE-Z-MF

31 December 2024 tTZA=+—-HLEE

Opening net book amount B AR FE 2,123,160 739,028 (316,176) 2,546,012
Currency translation differences B mE — — 62,703 62,703
Transfer to statutory reserve EREERE — 31,643 — 31,643
Closing net book amount BCRARTE A 2,123,160 770,671 (253,473) 2,640,358
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

28.

29.

206

OTHER RESERVES (Continued)
(a) Capital reserve

The difference between the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company and the actual raised fund and the difference between
the considerations of acquisition or disposal of equity interests from/
to non-controlling equity owners and the carrying amount of the
proportionate net assets.

(b) Statutory reserve

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except
for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies are
required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated under
PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward from previous
years or to increase capital of the respective companies.

(c) Translation reserve

The translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

PERPETUAL SECURITIES INTERESTS

The perpetual securities interests were issued without maturity date and
extended by the Company at its sole discretion. If the Company decides to
declare a dividend to its ordinary shareholders, it shall make a distribution
to the holders of the perpetual securities interest at the rate stated in the
subscription agreement

28.

29.

Hit (&)

(a) MAf#fE
ARARATEREREEES
MR - AR IS SRR
3155 N IR 1R 1 B2 3 b )
AEFEOREAENEE -

(b) EEfRHE

BRI EAEERAER - R
SMEBRESN  RATEARY
ARRED SRR RER
HERRBREMA 10% EREX
Tt HERAESHERE
ZHFAMEARE50% "1k < JEE
R AKBRHEALE T/
RERHEEFEAENEEN
ENBEARNENR -

() BERE
AEEREHERFRESN
EBMBRRELNAEENZ
®e

KBEEREER
MEFEEEBLHIGE - BARAH
BIESE M 2 AR B A 3 2 B AR
EERE - AARAARREHHERT
2 5IEE KBRS B ALEL D
R -

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=F

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

ARBT R ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—A— B = =
Controlling shareholder’s debts 7 % R R i ok AR

converted into perpetual securities interests Bk 9,891,670 —

Balance at 31 December RT+-—A=+—HH&: 9,891,670 _

On 31 December 2024, the Company entered into the Perpetual Securities
Agreement with the controlling shareholders of the Company (namely,
YHTH and YEPI), pursuant to which YHTH and YEPI agreed to convert their
respective ordinary debts of the Company into perpetual securities. As of 30
June 2024, YHTH held ordinary debts of Yunnan Water with principal and
interest totaling RMB9,202,490,000, and YEPI held ordinary debts of Yunnan
Water with principal and interest totaling RMB689,180,000. Therefore,
a total of RMB9,891,670,000 of debts will be converted into perpetual
securities.
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A KERERE BEZT-WF A
=10 EERKEEHEFEABEES
REAFTAARY9,202,490,000 7T HJ
TEERE  EEACRREEHEEK
BEEAREAF /AR 689,180,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRAHS R R B A

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

30. BORROWINGS 30. B
2024 2023
—E-NF =
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current IR E
Long-term bank borrowings RHIRITEK 15,468,327 16,712,426
Corporate bonds and other borrowings N AMfEF R EAE R 2,979,091 12,472,164
18,447,418 29,184,590
Current B
Short-term bank borrowings EERITER — 78,937
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings RERITIERA R B Z D 1,124,718 135,403
Current portion of corporate bonds NElfEHREMEROREE D
and other borrowings 1,797,334 1,583,511
2,922,052 1,797,851
21,369,470 30,982,441

The Group’s borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of
3.93% (2023: 3.04%) per annum for the year ended 31 December
2024.

As at 31 December 2024, other borrowings from related parties is
depicted in note 39(h)&(>)&()&(k)&()&(m).

As at 31 December 2024, borrowings of RMB14,063,161,000
(2023: RMB12,863,131,000) were secured by pledge of the Group's
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets,
right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and the Company's investments in subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2024, the net asset value of subsidiaries
pledged as security for borrowings are RMB2,171,261,000 (2023:
RMB2,049,643,000).

HE-_ZT-_mMFE+=-A=+—A"H
LtEE AEEERMNEFES
FERRAB393% (—F - =4 :
3.04%) °

RZZTE_WMFE+=_A=+—H -
REBBINEMEREHER
B 3E 39(h) &> &) &(K)&(1)&(m) ©

RZE-_WNE+=A=+—H "
f& ;X A R #14,063,161,000
T Z B = = F: AR ¥
12,863,131,000 7T ) B 7 & @ ARk
B EERHREBHKIE - &4

E -FRBEEE- V¥ BE

BEARERAERARRR
P A R BB R B o

RZZTE-_WMFE+=_A=+—H
BRENBRREEFEARE
2,171,261,000 (=T == :
AFR#2,049,643,000 7T ) & i 1{E
A o
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B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(d) As at 31 December 2024, the Group's borrowings were repayable as

30. 1B (&)

(d)

RZZTE—_WmME+=—_A=+—H "

follows: REBBEFRNEZBERET
2024 2023
—E-NE —E_=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARET T
Within one year or on demand —FLAREIER 2,922,052 1,797,851
One to two years —ZE =& 511,089 7,508,683
Two to five years —ERF 11,260,771 14,637,746
Qver five years HBARF 6,675,558 7,038,161
21,369,470 30,982,441

(e)  The Group's borrowings were denominated in:

(e)

REBEFATIIERHE

2024 2023
—E_ME e

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBETT

RMB AR 21,355,820 29,975,395

usD e — 991,305

EUR BL T 13,650 15,741

21,369,470 30,982,441

(f)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into
legally binding loan agreements with the banks to revise and extend
the repayment schedules for bank borrowings with aggregate amounts
of RMB3,295,651,000. The maturity dates of the bank borrowings
were renewed from range of 1 year to 3 years to range of 1 year to
10 years, and the interest rates of the bank borrowings were renewed
from range of 2% to 7.3% per annum to range of 1.48% to 4% per

annum.

(g)  During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has not entered
into any additional legally binding loan agreements with the banks to
revise and extend the repayment schedules for bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(h)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group reached an
agreement with the bank to extend renew loans with principal amount
of RMB3,747,777,000 to from 2027 to 2039 at a change of interest
rate of 2%. Other than that, the terms were the same as the original

loan agreement signed in previous years.

As at 31 December 2023, the management of the Group considers
that the terms of the revised loan agreements with aggregate principal
amounts of RMB2,634,484,000 are not substantially different from the
original loan agreements as the discounted present values of the cash
flows under the revised terms discounted using the original effective
interest rates are different from the discounted present values of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liabilities by less than 10
per cent. Accordingly, such modifications of terms were accounted for
as non-substantial modifications, and the aggregate adjustments of
approximately RMB77,256,000 to the carrying amounts of the financial
liabilities were recognised as other income as set out in note 6 in 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the management of the Group considers
that the terms of the revised loan agreements with aggregate
principal amounts of RMB661,167,000 are substantially different as
the discounted present values of the cash flows under the new terms
discounted using the original effective interest rates are different
from the discounted present values of the remaining cash flows of
the original financial liabilities by more than 10 per cent. Accordingly,
such modifications of terms were accounted for as extinguishment of
the original financial liabilities and the recognition of new financial
liabilities. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original borrowings
of RMB661,167,000 outstanding, and recognised new borrowings
measured at fair values amounting to RMB607,552,000 in aggregate
as at the respective dates of extinguishment. The differences between
the aforesaid carrying amounts of the borrowings derecognised and
the aforesaid fair values of the new borrowings recognised amounting
to approximately RMB53,615,000 in aggregate are recognised as other
income in 2023.

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

30. 1B (&)

(h)

BE-_Z-_N&+=—A=+—
HIEFE  AEERIRITERK
E B EREAEAREK
3,747,777,000c & & = &
TEFEE_TZNF FIREHR
R2% ° BRI 2o IRFRE T F
EENFRIBER B HEAER -

RZE-_=F+=-R=+—H -
AEBEERERE  ASBEA
AR 2,634,484,000 7T K & (&
R B R IBE 2GR ERE R E
TEEGEZE  HALETIK
SRIE T E R R BB F AR 65
CREMRBERRSBREER
HREERENERBFERZET
B10% ° Ft  ZFIE&KERT
WRAFEEEEE] HEmAa
EREAEMNRTABNARE
77,256,000 LI =T = = F 1 fE
RAEM 6 FrEk 2 il A o

RZE_=F+=ZA=+—H"
AEBEREBRE  ASHBEA
AR 661,167,000 IT B &8 & 5T

EXMEZ GREFEERESR
B 7 8 P R B B A1) =R B3R A0 7 16

RTIHEESREURREERARS
MEEFHNBESRENHIREE
HEBBHI0% - Bt & FE
HHEEGEACEERESRA
ERERTcHEME Bt © K
SERIIBERREENRERR
AR¥661,167,0007T ' N&H
EBERHBRAANRALEFEZH
e @A AR 607,552,000
o EMKRIIBERERNER
BEREAEERFEROAF
BEZERHNEZEBAFHNAARE
53,615,0007C - RZZE_=F#
ERABEMUIA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30

(h)  (continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of investment in
subsidiaries of the Company pledged as security for borrowings are
approximately RMB2,171,261,000 (2023: RMB2,049,643,000). The
subsidiaries involved in the security are Yunnan Zhengxiao Investment
Co., Ltd, Jinghong Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd, Xinjiang Yunshui
Environmental Industry Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Lufeng
Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd., Mile Water Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd., Zhenxiong Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd., Wenshan Water
Industry Investment Co., Ltd., Honghe Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.
and Qingyuan Yunshui Environmental Protection Company Limited.

(k) The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

. B (&)

(h)
(i)

(%)

R-ZE-—mE&E+=-A=+—
B EBEXBEEEEAARE
2,171,261,000 T K) A2 B Bt /8
ARIMHEERERR (=T ==
£ AR¥2,049,643,0007T) °
FREFANHB AR AEHEIERE
BEBRMDBR AR - SEMHE
KEREEAR - FBEKERR
REBRAA - FLEKIBESE
KREBRAR - BHMKIBEZE
BREBRRAA - EEFKIBESE
BEBRDAA - XWMABEEEE
BEBRDA - LA A EZE
REBR R A RBEEMEKIRR
BRATE -

AEBBATRERRE :

2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBT T AR¥ET T
RMB facilities ARERIE 3,207,884 4,577,991
31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. EZ R EMENRKIE
2024 2023
“E-QNEF —Eo=F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBT T ARKET T
Trade payables (note a): B RENERR(MEa) ¢
— Related parties (note 39(g)) — @@ 5 (M5E39(g)) 1,722,281 1,617,926
— Third parties —$= 5,579,239 5,719,801
7,301,520 7,337,727
Other payables: H fth FE T3R8
— Related parties (note 39(g)) — BA5E 75 (Bt 3E 39(g)) 244,768 321,131
— Third parties —£=75 1,433,494 1,426,311
Staff welfare benefit payable T B TR A 93,009 107,451
Other taxes payable H A fE 18 140,834 277,042
Dividend payables FERAR S 64,420 64,792
9,278,045 9,534,454
Less: non-current portion B IEMBE D (139,557) (44,641)
Current portion mEnE o 9,138,488 9,489,813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 31. ESRHEMENREE)
(a) Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with (a) EBIHENFIAREREEERE
suppliers. GRS E -
(b) At 31 December 2024, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based (b) R=ZF-_HmE+=-A=+—8"
on invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows: RBEERB B E QO RRIEL D

B2 ENFIENKREDTAT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E_=fF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Within one year —F AR 554,646 334,165
One to two years —E_F 306,494 900,901
Two to three years —E=F 803,760 1,473,969
Over three years =FHE 5,636,620 4,628,692
7,301,520 7,337,727
32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. EEW s
Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental EE W a5 = A B A R B S KR I R
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment Mo~ HEKERDE - E R RE YD BE HE R DA I R
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the AR I R 75 2 TS 3 R B BT
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as B) o IRFEW S E BT
below:
Government
grants
BT 5 B
RMB’000
AR TR
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 R-B-_=F—F—BHNHUE 814,430
Additions NE 77,663
Credited to profit or loss accounts T AE= R (48,431)
Credited to construction in progress (note 17) FTAERIR(HEE17) (9,316)
Closing balance at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—HREKREH 834,346
Opening balance at 1 January 2024 R-B-NFE—A—BHWHDNERR 834,346
Additions ~nE 70,896
Credited to profit or loss accounts T AE=R (39,055)
Transferred to construction in progress (note 17) SFAERTIR(ME17) (176,207)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB AR (6,241)
Closing balance at 31 December 2024 R-CB-WNE+-A=1+—-—HHNPLRER 683,739

Annual Report 2024 FE#H% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K E KRB HR A 7 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

33. DEFERRED TAX
(a) Deferred tax assets

33. B IE
(a) EEBREE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARET T ARETT
The balance comprises temporary RERETEERER
differences attributable to:
Deferred income IR W 25 1,018 61,496
Tax losses RIEEE 129,673 190,861
Accrued expenses and impairment provision FERT R X MOm BB R 109,314 71,412
Total deferred income tax assets BEFTB M EEMLTE 240,005 323,769
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities BWIHELEMSHAE (50,291) (106,113)
Net deferred income tax assets FIREFTEHERE 189,714 217,656
Accrued
expenses and
Deferred impairment
income Tax losses provision Total
EEtBAX R
Movements BE ERE Wz BIEEE RERE gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR ARBTR ARMET T
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 R=-ZE-=#%
—B—AHBNEE 118,672 357,812 108,490 584,974
Credited to profit or loss AR (57,176) (166,951) (37,078) (261,205)
Closing balance at 31 December 2023 R=Z==4%
+=ZA=+—-8#%
e 61,496 190,861 71,412 323,769
Opening balance at 1 January 2024 R-ZE-\F
—B— BB Ee 61,496 190,861 71,412 323,769
Credited to profit or loss FTARR (60,478) (61,188) 37,902 (83,764)
Closing balance at 31 December 2024 R=Z =M%
+=B=t+-H
MR &R 1,018 129,673 109,314 240,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 33. IEEHIR(A)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (b) EZEHEEE
2024 2023
—E-NF —T=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBTT
The balance comprises temporary AR EEERER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains N E RS (384,606) (456,446)
Service concession receivables PR 75 45 57 FE U 5k 1E (364,376) (334,856)
Debt restructuring B EA (15,161) (22,742)
Others Hb (19,129) (60,616)
Total deferred income tax liabilities REFTBH A EBTE (783,272) (874,660)
Set-off of deferred income tax assets WHELEMSHEE 50,291 106,113
Net deferred income tax liabilities FEEMGHEE (732,981) (768,547)
Service Debt
Fair value concession  Restructuring
gains receivables gains Others Total
PR 15T BEEL
Movements £8 LS EWFHE WEANE 1t @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR NS AR%ET R AR®ETR AR®T R
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 RZB-=f-F-H
HEANELR (496,216) (511,275) — (52,838) (1,060,329)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REZPEA/ (1K) 47,647 174,733 (22,742) (7,778) 191,860
Transferred from liabilities associated EREENBABEL
with assets classified as held EEERANER
for sale (7,877) — — — (7,877)
Disposal of subsidiaries(note 38) HER B AR (Fi38) — 1,686 — - 1,686
Closing balance at 31 December 2023 i ——d
T-A=t—-8f
e (456,446) (334,856) (22,742) (60,616) (874,660)
Opening balance at 1 January 2024 RZZZEF-A—BH
B (456,446) (334,856) (22,742) (60,616) (874,660)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss REZEFA/ (M) 71,840 (29,520) 7,581 41,487 91,388
Closing balance at 31 December 2024 R-Z-I&
TZA=T-BHNBRER (384,606) (364,376) (15,161) (19,129) (783,272)

Annual Report 2024 FE#4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED 2 @7k 3% & i85 5 1R 2 7

213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

34. PROVISIONS

214

34. &1

Maintenance

costs Others Total
RERA Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
Opening balance at 1 January 2023 R=ZE=-=F—-H—H
HYHA #D 4 B 521,443 5,678 527,121
Additions NE 33,313 = 33,313
Utilisation £ (82,288) (3,837) (86,125)
Transferred from liabilities associated HEAESHEARE
with assets classified as held HEEERENAE
for sale 1,608 = 1,608
Closing balance at 31 December 2023 RZ-ZE_-=%
+=ZBA=+—H®
MR R 474,076 1,841 475,917
Opening balance at 1 January 2024 R-ZB-_mOE—F—HKB
B R 474,076 1,841 475,917
Additions NE 32,755 49,344 82,099
Utilisation £/ (15,771) — (15,771)
Disposal RE (26,126) — (26,126)
Closing balance at 31 December 2024 A=Z_[F
+=-—A=+—0#K
B G588 464,934 51,185 516,119

(a)  Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified condition before they are handed over to the
Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except for any upgrade
elements, are recognised and measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

35. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS 35. Bt REMBRME
STATEMENT
(@) Cash generated from operation (a) BEFERS
2024 2023
—E-E —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Loss before income tax FTiSTiRIE 18 (2,138,500) (814,669)
Adjustments for: BATHIEEL R
— Impairment losses on financial assets —EMAEERMEEIS 751,619 335,073
— Impairment losses on inventories —EFEREERE (13) —
— Impairment losses on intangible assets —EBREEREERE 192,883 16,893
— Impairment losses on prepayments —TBNRIBREEE 21,188 —
— Impairment losses on property, —M% - BERZEREEE
plant and equipment 1,960 =
— Depreciation of property, — ¥ BERRERE
plant and equipment 356,048 254,363
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —EREEENE 28,682 11,268
— Depreciation of investment properties —REMERE 891 845
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EREEEE 254,573 475,751
— Share of profit of investments —EREARKELIRE R T
accounted for using
the equity method (36,784) (30,216)
— Other (gains)/losses - net —Hib (k) B8 F 5 138,327 (60,258)
— Finance costs - net — BB AR 1,130,837 951,239
— Gains on modification of borrowings — B R W = — (130,871)
Change in working capital: HEESEL
— Inventories —-FE 7,725 3,619
— Contract assets —BHEE 61,170 (373,336)
— Trade and other receivables and — & 5 K& H At FEWGRIE A &
receivables under FEFF A & 228 T B9 FE W R IR
concession arrangements (627,622) (896,414)
— Prepayments — AR RIE (14,089) 29,491
— Trade and other payables — 8 5 & E b &~ 508 439,060 726,306
— Contract liabilities —GHAE 8,042 24,919
— Deferred income —iEE N = 31,841 19,916
Cash generated from operations REMBES 607,838 543,919
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

35. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS 35. 6Ot REMEKRME(EF)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EHFELHER
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBETTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 1,008,079 899,244
Borrowings & (21,369,470) (30,982,441)
Lease liabilities HEAE (44,155) (50,426)
Net debt (U (20,405,546) (30,133,623)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED 1,008,079 899,244
Gross debt - fixed interest rates B 4858 — [ E 7 = (3,685,884) (13,150,535)
Gross debt - floating interest rates B4 — e F|x (17,727,741) (17,882,332)
Net debt BT HE (20,405,546) (30,133,623)
Cash and
cash Lease
equivalents Borrowing liabilities Total
HeER
BeZEY B HEAE et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%—-H—H
ko323 600,642 (30,132,635) (39,008) (29,571,001)
Cash flows RERE 299,381 (115,562) 6,144 189,963
Gains on modification B
of borrowings — 130,871 — 130,871
Transferred to disposal group EREREEEM 1,508 (89,567) — (88,059)
Other changes Hibh 28 — (759,446) (17,562) (777,008)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEHT E SR (2,287) (16,102) — (18,389)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R=-B==
+TZA=t+—HW&ER 899,244  (30,982,441) (50,426)  (30,133,623)
Cash flows HemneE 108,654 97,005 — 205,659
Other changes Hih &g = (375,704) 6,271 (369,433)
Shareholder’s debts converted % R (B K
into perpetual securities interests &S 9,891,670 9,891,670
Foreign exchange adjustments HNESTE 181 — 181
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-Z-WmF
+TZA=+—HWEs 1,008,079 (21,369,470) (44,155) (20,405,546)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 December

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_F_MFEF—A=1—HILFF

36. EARKIE

BE-_Z-_NWF+=-_A=+—HERIH

2024 is as follows: BERREENEARZHAT :
2024 2023
—E-E —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Property, plant and equipment, concession Wz - BB RS - FIrRET
projects and construction projects K3EFRIER 6,959,021 7,027,218
Equity investments EHIRE 240,298 240,298
7,199,319 7,267,516
37. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 37. BBER
2024 2023
—E-E —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARKET T
Provided financial guarantee for the METE &R A KB E R AERREAER
borrowings granted to a joint venture and B IS AR (Bt 3E 39(0))
an associate (note 39(0)) 85,260 191,345

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of 75% equity interest in Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment
Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company a”), 100% equity interest in Wuxi Ehu
Yunshui Water Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company b”) and
100% equity interest in Wuxi Yunshui Water Investment Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company c”)

On 24 June 2024, the Company and Purchaser A entered into the
equity transaction agreement in relation to the disposal of the Target
Company a, the Target Company b and the Target Company c,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and Purchaser A agreed
to acquire, 75% equity interest in the Target Company a, 100%
equity interest in the Target Company b, and 100% equity interest
in the Target Company ¢, at the consideration of RMB95,900,000,
RMB 18,440,000, and RMB57,046,000, respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the considerations have been fully settled. The
transfer of control over the Target Company a, the Target Company b
and the Target Company ¢ was completed on 11 July 2024.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24
June 2024 and the Company’s circular dated 26 July 2024.

38. HEKMEAHE
(a) HERSFEABREERAR
(B 2 Fal) 75% B - 45
BHREKABREERA T (12
# A FbJ)100% M1 « M43
AKEREERA A (BEOAA

cl1) 100% Rk

R-_E-_WFENA=-_+IH-"
AARHEEFAHEHHERZ®N
Adla: ZHRAEb ZHA A
CHIVERRSER  ARAIR
EHEHEAAREUREA
R #95,900,000T E EZ 8 2
Alam75% Bl #E - UK EB AR
¥ 18,440,000 & E 2 1 A A
bEI100% A% 1 « MR B ARE
57,046,000 T K B8 B AZ ) A Al c
H)100% X #E - BE T 4
+—A=+—BLEE KEE
2T - B Fla IZHAF]
b ZEMARcHIEFIEERER
—E_NFE+A+—HREMK °
BHFE  #2HARAHAHA
—E_MENAZTEOBENAE
EARARBHA-_ZT_MNFELA
—+NHAEK e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMHB AT (&)

(b)  Disposal of 75% equity interest in Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment (b) HEEHFEKEEEGRAA
Co., Ltd. (the "Target Company a") ([EBRFal) B 75% iR iE

218

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & & /K # % & &7 AR A 7

2024
—ZE_MF
RMB’'000
AREFT
Consideration RE
Cash Be 95,900
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREGEDN
Non-current assets KRB EE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 1,930
Receivables under service concession arrangements PR7S FrRF 48 & L HE TN W R U 5K IE 93,188
Intangible assets B EE 146,179
241,297
Current assets HEEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements BR 7S5 5T 48 & 2o B T B JE W 5k I8 2,991
Inventories EE 56
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A fEGRIE 106,776
Prepayments TENT FRIE 1,781
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 545
112,149
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Provision B 2,168
2,168
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 kHE M ER FRIE 192,694
Current income tax liabilities BEAFTS B B & 13,670
206,364
Net assets disposed of HEHBEEEFE 144,914
25% of net assets disposed of (non-controlling interests) HEIEE EEFELAI25%
(GEPERR#E=R) 36,228
75% of net assets disposed of (controlling interests) HEBEEAEFELGI75% (ERER) 108,686
Costs of disposal REEA 165
Loss on disposal HEEE (12,951)
Total consideration BRE 95,900
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZREFRA
Cash consideration received BUHRERE 95,900
Less: costs of disposal W REER 165
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HERERASEEY 545
95,190
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMHEB AT (&

() Disposal of 100% equity interest in Wuxi Ehu Yunshui Water (0 HEESHBHZEKKBEEEERR
Investment Co., Ltd.* (the “Target Company b") AA(EZERAFD]) A 100% %
1
2024
—ZE_MF
RMB'000
ARETTT
Consideration RE
Cash b 18,440
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREGEDIN
Non-current assets KRB EE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB KK 276
Receivables under service concession arrangements ARIG FF AT A8 & B T B JE U SR IE 23,844
24,120
Current assets B EE
Receivables under service concession arrangements PR7S R R 48 & 2 HE T W B U SR IB 3,542
Inventories 7& 4
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A fEWGRIE 19,622
Prepayments B RIE 109
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEYD 691
23,968
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Borrowing B 11,460
Provision B 1,059
12,519
Current liabilities TEHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 MhEMENFRIE 17,445
Current income tax liabilities BEiASHi B & (1,450)
15,995
Net assets disposed of HEHBEEEEFE 19,574
Loss on disposal HEEE (1,134)
Total consideration BRE 18,440
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZRESFRA
Cash consideration received BUERERE 18,440
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEReRREFEY 691
17,749
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMHEB AT (&

(d)  Disposal of 100% equity interest in Wuxi Yunshui Water Investment (d) HEEHEKRKKBEEREGRAA
Co., Ltd.* (the “Target Company c”) ([ R F]cl) 100% AR HE

220  YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K& 1% & B 17 A B 2 7

2024
—ZEMF
RMB’'000
AREFT
Consideration KE
Cash B 57,046
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREBESW
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E e 712
Receivables under service concession arrangements  ARFS4F FFAE & 22 HE T 89 UL KB 58,605
59,317
Current assets HEEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements AR 7% 5 48 & 2 BE T Y R IRGRIB 7,206
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H R GRIA 56,417
Prepayments TE A 5RIE 74
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEED 1,928
65,625
Non-current liabilities E =4
Borrowing & 31,897
Provision B 3,311
35,208
Current liabilities HEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E A fE R 5RIE 41,260
Current income tax liabilities BVEAFTS T AR 3,631
44,891
Net assets disposed of HEBEBEETE 44,843
Costs of disposal EEEA 150
Gain on disposal HE WS 12,053
Total consideration BRE 57,046
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZREFRA
Cash consideration received BERRESRE 57,046
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEReRBESEEY 1,928
Less: costs of disposal W REER 150
54,968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(e)

Disposal of 89.995% equity interest in Gongyi Water Resources Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Target Company d”)

On 12 July 2024, the Company and Purchaser B entered into the
equity transaction agreement in relation to the Target Company d,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and Purchaser B to
acquire 89.995% equity interest in the Target Company d, at the
consideration of RMB67,374,000. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the consideration has been fully settled. The transfer of control
over the Target Company d was completed on 25 October 2024.

For details, please refer to the Company's announcement dated 12 July
2024 and the Company's circular dated 25 October 2024.

Disposal of 89.995% equity interest in Gongyi Water Resources Co.,
Ltd. (the “Target Company d”).

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B=E

—FE_mEFA=1—HILFE

 HENE LR (E)

(e)

HEZEEMKEER QA REKH
BAR([ZHARI])89.995%
g

F:* mELRA+=B" K

NEIEE HBE HIZM AR dET
VEERZER  ARARE
HEBEEABREUREARK
67,374,000 T8 EE A9 A B d 8
89.995% itk - HE—T U
+ A=+—HLEFE KREE

EAEE o 2 A B d /Y IE SR
E%EFfoE¢+H +A
H5ERK °

EAFHE F2HARRBHA
—TWHFEELA+-HANAER

AARBHA=-_Z-_MFE+A
Z+tRHE/REE

HEEEMKBEARAR([FH
RAd])89.995% Mk
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38. HEMB AT (&)
HEEZMAKBEERA R REHK
BAR([ZHARI])89.995%

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(e)  Disposal of 89.995% equity interest in Gongyi Water Resources Co., (e)

222

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & & /K # % & &7 AR A 7

Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Target Company d”) (Continued)

AeiE (42)
2024
—ZE_MF
RMB’'000
AREFT
Consideration RE
Cash Be 67,374
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREGEDN
Non-current assets KRB EE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB K& 4,187
Contract assets EHEE 731
Intangible assets B EE 62,736
Investments accounted for using the equity method ARE A A BRA IR & 4,534
72,188
Current assets HEEE
Inventories EE 4,180
Contract assets EHEE 432
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H MR FRIE 3,606
Prepayments TE T RRIB 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 7,631
15,855
Non-current liabilities HKnBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENRIE 5,984
5,984
Current liabilities REBAE
Contract liabilities EHAaE 9,613
Trade and other payables B 5 & EH M E FRIE 29,136
Current income tax liabilities BVERFTS B B fE 2,704
41,453
Net assets disposed of LEHE EEFE 40,606
10.005% of net assets disposed of HEIEE EEFELH]10.005%

(non-controlling interests) (FEIERHE ) 4,063
89.995% of net assets disposed of HEIEE EEFEL$]89.995% 36,543
Costs of disposal BEEEH —
Gain on disposal o e 30,831
Total consideration B (E 67,374
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZREFRA
Cash consideration received BIRERE 67,374
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEReRREFED 7,631

59,743
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

)

Disposal of 65% equity interest in Hunan Lizhou Water Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company e”)

On 14 June 2024, the Company and Purchaser C entered into the
equity transaction agreement in relation to the Target Company
e, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and Purchaser
C to acquire 65% equity interest in the Target Company e, at the
consideration of RMB80,589.000. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the consideration has been fully settled. The transfer of control
over the Target Company e was completed on 30 July 2024.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24
June 2024 and the Company's circular dated 26 July 2024.

Disposal of 65% equity interest in Hunan Lizhou Water Co., Ltd. (the
“Target Company e”).

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B=E

—FE_mEFA=1—HILFE

 HENE LR (E)

()

HERREEBNIKBERA R ([F

B el)65% iiE
RZZ-_WERXA+TEA S K
ANEIEE S CHHEFEHR A e

VERRZAER  ARARE
HEEEACRABEAREBARYE
80,589.000 THEEEM A Aler
65% kM - HE_T_F+=
R=+—HIEFE REE2
05 o 2R A e oY 12 1 B iR
ERZT-_NFELA=Z+HRE
X o

BHFE F2HARRBEHR
ZE_MERNRAZTHEBENASE
NARRBHA-ZE_WNFLH
ZHNHBRE K

HERERBMKBERA R ([EF
B RaElel)65% MHE -
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2PoF

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

()

224 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E R K& 1% & B 17 A B A 7

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

38. LWEKMEAR (&)

Disposal of 65% equity interest in Hunan Lizhou Water Co., Ltd. (the (f) HEHEZMNKEERAR(Z
“Target Company e") (Continued) BWAaElel)65% Pt (E
2024
—ZTMF
RMB'000
ARETT
Consideration RE
Cash Re 80,589
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREBEDIM
Non-current assets KRB EE
Property, plant and equipment M BB & 1,193
Intangible assets B EE 146,405
147,598
Current assets HEEE
Inventories ENS 468
Trade and other receivables E 5 Rk HE M U RIE 6,025
Prepayments TET TR IE 507
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 43
7,043
Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Provision B 11,896
11,896
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M ER FRIE 26,979
26,979
Net assets disposed of LEHE EEFE 115,766
35% of net assets disposed of (non-controlling interests) HEIEE EEFELGI35%
(FEfERR#ER) 39,662
65% of net assets disposed of HEIEE EEFELAI65% 76,104
Costs of disposal and debt collection BB B A Rk EiE 13,404
Loss on disposal s EE (8,919)
Total consideration BRE 80,589
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZREFRA
Cash consideration received BHRRERE 80,589
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEReRREFED 43
Less: costs of disposal W RBEER 143
Less: debt collection o e (A 14,116
66,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(9)

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co.,
Ltd. (the “Target Company f")

On 12 November 2024, the Company and Purchaser D entered into
the equity transaction agreement in relation to the Target Company
f, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and Purchaser D
to acquire 100% equity interest in the Target Company f, at the
consideration of RMB248,140,000. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the consideration has been fully settled. The transfer of control
over the Target Company f was completed on 31 December 2024.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 12
November 2024 and the Company’s circular dated 27 November 2024.

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co.,
Ltd. (the “Target Company f").

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B=E

—FE_mEFA=1—HILFE

 HENE LR (E)

(9)

HEBFRARKCER)ER
Aa) ([ AFEf]) 100% K #E

RZE-WNFE+—A+=ZH ' K
AREEFDHEIZHARE]
VEEXRSER ARARE
LEBEEFDREUREBARE
248,140,000 i EZ ) R~ &l f
B 100% kg - BZE —T — P04
+ ﬂ +—HILEFE K&

B4508 o fEH) A Al f /4%
%E“EW_Y_E$+ A
:+7E|7TEﬁX°

BRAEE  F2REAARASA
—T-mFE+—A+-ARNAE
ERAABIRSAT_ME+—
A=+t HM®E K

HEINBRMRARKOEZ)BR
~a)) ([ZERAET])100% B -
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2PoF

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

226

(9)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & & /K # % & &7 AR A 7

FEF+—H="+—HIFFZ

38. HEKMRAR (&

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co., (9)

Ltd. (the “Target Company f") (Continued)

HEINEFRERKOER) AR
AR (TZHART])100% % #
(&

2024
—ENF
RMB’000
AREFT
Consideration RE
Cash Re 248,140
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed HEEEREBEDIM
Non-current assets KRB EE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BE RE 40
Receivables under service concession arrangements PR 75 5 57 48 &8 R BE T B FE MR IB 246,093
Intangible assets EREE 121,265
367,398
Current assets HEEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements B 75 57 57 48 &8 R BE T B FE MR IB 4,458
Inventories 7E 100
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H MR FRIE 160,682
Prepayments T8 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 729
165,969
Non-current liabilities HKnBEE
Provision B 7,693
7,693
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities EHEE 551
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMERKIE 179,436
Current income tax liabilities BENEAFR SR B & 18,907
198,894
Net assets disposed of HEHE EEFE 326,780
Tax payments XN EE 27,079
Loss on disposal s e (105,719)
Total consideration BERE 248,140
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZRESFRA
Cash consideration received BWERERE 248,140
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEReRREFED 729
247,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(h)

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Shuifu Water Industry Investment
Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company g”)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the board of directors
passed a resolution to dispose certain subsidiaries of the Group by way
of public tender through the YNEX. In November 2022, the process of
the public tender in relation to the disposal of the Target Company g
has been completed and purchaser was located.

On 27 February 2023, the Company and Purchaser E entered into
the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser to acquire 100% equity interest in
the Target Company g, at the consideration of RMB28,300,000. The
consideration has been settled by the deposit received in 2021. As
at 31 December 2022, the Target Company g has been classified as
Assets and Liabilities classified as held for sale. The disposal has been
completed on 6 April 2023.

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

38. LWEKMEAR (&)

(h)

HEKEZKEEEREARA
Al (MZM2 R gl)HI 100% A%

REE=ZZ=—F+=-A=+—
BIEFE EFSRBT —ER
FOBBZEERSMARBEL
EREENETHBRAR - R=
To_F+—A  BHEZEHA
RlgM A AHABERFETK ' B
FERE -

RZTEZ=F=-_fA=++tH"
AREIEHEFEFTY—HDEER
Zo B ARRIAEHERE
FREWREZRNAAgH 100%
Bt - REA AR 28,300,000
T RBER-ZE-—FUEK
ReE NR-_T=-Z=_F+=A
=+—H EMNARIIEHS
BRFELEEERBE KT
—=FMANBEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE
38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMBAT(A)
(h)  Disposal of 100% equity interest in Shuifu Water Industry Investment (hy HEKSBEKBEXEEBRAQ
Co., Ltd. (the "Target Company g") (Continued) (B2 Agl) A 100% AR 4
(%)
2023
—E-=F
RMB'000
ARKET T
Consideration RE
Cash B 28,300
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 10
Receivables under service concession arrangements  ARF4S SRS & 22 HE T 8O e UL k0B 5,462
Inventories FE8 6
Trade and other receivables 25 R H M E W FRIE 15,154
Restricted cash ZRERE 10
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 221
Assets classified as disposal group held for sale SEARKELREZHEMAREE 40,863
Liabilities =R
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & 1686
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E A fE R RIE 9,935
Current income tax liabilities EHFREHAR 942
Liabilities directly associated with assets SEARENEZEENEZEBAE
classified as held for sale 12,563
Net assets directly associated with disposal group AT EFHEREEEARNEERBNEEFE
after fair value adjustment 28,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZREFRA
Cash consideration received BEWRSRE 28,300
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W HEReRBECEEY (221)
28,079
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(9]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

Major shareholders

The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company

30. TEFEB ARG
(@) FERXK

Name Place of incorporation Ownership interests (%)
=L YNGR SiS: FRE R (%)
2024 2023
—EF —EF-=
Yunnan Green EFEZERR PRC
Environmental Protection EXSEERAA F
Industry Group Co., (TEm&e
Ltd. (“YEPI") RREER]) 30.07 30.07
Beijing OriginWater L REKRBHL PRC
Technology Co., IR B R A Al A
Ltd. (“Beijing OriginWater”)  ([dEmZEKIR ) 24.02 24.02
Subsidiaries (b) KMIERAE
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15. FEME QA E R = &M
15 °
Name and relationship with other major related (c) BEEANEBREEME
parties ZRAN S B
Name Relationship
=r 2RES
YHTH Controlling shareholder of YEPI
= 7 R R 5 g ERREENZERRR
Caiyun International Investment Limited Fellow subsidiary
(“Caiyun Investment”)
FEBRKREGERAR(THERE D) BN PNG|
Yunnan Investment Group State-owned enterprise
EREH BlA k%
Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group State-owned enterprise
Co., Ltd. ("YCIH")
ETHERERREERERFRAR([EEEKRER]) BB k%
YNDAMC State-owned enterprise
EHEEEER BB
Yunnan Chengtou Health Industry Investment Co., Ltd State-owned enterprise
(“Health Industry”)
ERAREREEXREROBRAB(REESE]) Bl SEE S
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2=F

FE+—A=1+—HIFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Key management personnel compensation

(e)

230  YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & /K % 1% &

Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

30. TE@EB RS (F)

(d)

EEEEASEHM
EZEBAEBBRENTES -
ETRBENSIENEZEEEA
EMFMIT -

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKET T

Short-term employee benefits REBTREA 3,575 5,078

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has following transactions and balances with

related parties:

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by the

PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises
including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services

and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business on terms comparable to those with other entities that are
not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing strategy and
approval process for purchase and sales of products and services.
Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently applied
regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or not.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions
are material significant related party transactions that require separate
disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

AR A7 Annual Report 2024 4 [E &

(e)
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BB ¥ R D AR
RAREEMMHE S -

AEEEEBALETENQ
EREREEES RRE =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. S E@EB AR S (&)
(Continued)

(f) Significant transactions with related parties (f) HBEBEINEERS
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial B & OF B7 765 i 2= EL 4t 35 60 BT B2 BB
statement, during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the EHN REBEE_Z_NER=F
Group had the following significant transactions with related entities =+ ZA=t+—RILEE"
which are carried out on terms agreed with the counterparties in the NEEHEREREEFINIE
ordinary course of business: BEBBERHENGITETT
INTEARS :
2024 2023
—E-E —To=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Sales and purchases of goods and HERBEEMERRS
services
— Sales of goods and services to YCIH —HEEREBRBE TEEERER — 38,885
— Purchase of construction services from —REEEEEEEEZERE
YCIH 49,899 251,826
— Purchase of construction services from —EERRBEERERS
Haiyun Environmental Protection = 4,586
— Purchase of goods from —RIERBKNREEEm
Beijing OriginWater 8,589 =
— Purchase of equipment from —RItREmEERE
Beijing Collihigh — 625
— Purchase of goods from YHTH —REERKREREEER = 1,184
Finance costs of borrowings (interests) ERAEERK A (FIE)
— Caiyun Investment —RERE 38,311 88,597
- YHTH —EERKREE 149,274 83,953
— YEPI —EEHZCIRREE 36,438 64,577
— Yunnan Investment Group —EREH 39,093 19,482
— Yunnan Dianzi Herong Investment —EMEENAKREERERAA
Development Co., Ltd. (“YDHI") (TEmEEMA ] — 180,269
— Health Industry —fREREZE 1,042 2,152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. S E@EB AR S (&)
(Continued)

(g9) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ () HEEE BEERNRE
purchases of goods and services EENEREMHNEELS
53
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting VAT 75 B B R Bt 75 32 5 B AR R Y
period in relation to transactions with related parties: WMEBAREARERN
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Trade receivables for sales of goods HEEmERRBHE Z EKFKIB
and services
- YCIH —EEEREE 2,140,241 2,290,250
— Haiyun Environmental Protection —BEIRR 2,876 2,876
— Other related parties — H {ib A% 5 11,897 11,973
2,155,014 2,305,099
The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are HEEmMERBHE S EWGRIE
mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in WEREZEAAREE  £E
accordance with agreed terms with related parties. 28 RIBEEBHELNE

BV RTRAEE o

2024 2023

—E-NE —To=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R AR¥ET T

Prepayments for purchase of goods BEEmRRE 2 EMNRIE

and services

~ YCIH —EEEREE 188,769 166,205

— Beijing OriginWater — It REKIR 4,905 4,905

193,674 171,110
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/

(h)

& O I B R I 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

39. TBEBME RS (&

() HSHE BEERRERE

purchases of goods and services (Continued) EENEREMNEES
BR(4&)
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Trade and other payables for purchase BEEMARBZE S KM
of goods and services FE A~ K38
- YCIH —EEEREE 1,858,236 1,828,051
— A joint venture and an associate ——REERA R —KEE QA 76,611 41,720
— Other related parties — H M B 5 32,202 69,286
1,967,049 1,939,057

The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and

services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are

settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties.

Borrowings from a related party - Caiyun

BEERMERBZESREME

NHBEAARKETHE - EIEH -
® B RARE BB T K M5
A -

(h) AFEBATER-FERE

Investment
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREETTT
Opening balance at 1 January R— B —BWENEe 991,305 975,203
Receipts &N (6,351) —
Currency translation differences e = 21,589 16,102
Closing balance at 31 December RT-ZBA=+—BHNHKRE 1,006,543 991,305

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated

in USD, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with

agreed terms with Caiyun investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2=F

FE+—A=1+—HIFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. FEFEBAERS (&)
(Continued)
(i) Borrowings from a related party - YHTH (i) OEBEBLSER - EREER
&8
2024 2023
—E-NE —E_=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKET T
Opening balance at 1 January A—B—BWHAERR 1,464,767 1,227,221
Receipts Wk 461,054 514,935
Repayments B (312,568) (269,476)
Transferred from YDHI EFEENAEA 8,889,641 —
Principal converted into perpetual securities ## Ak B EEE RN A S
interest (8,889,641) —
Debt restructuring BEEA — (7,913)
Closing balance at 31 December RT-ZA=1+—BWNREH 1,613,253 1,464,767
The borrowings granted from YHTH are denominated in RMB, EEREEER THERRAAR
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed BorE mER R XA

()
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terms with YHTH. As at 31 December 2024, interest and other financial
charges payable to YHTH amounted to RMB269,938,676 (2023:
RMB198,157,000).

Borrowings from a related party - YEPI

()

*E%F,\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%liﬁma‘w*
HEZE -R=_T-_mOFE+=A
=+—H ENEEEREKEEKN
MERHEMHBEARARK
269,938,676 IL(ZZT = =4F : A
R# 198,157,000 7T) °

MBS ER -EEKe
RR&EE

2024 2023

—E-NE —Eo=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHNED & 894,031 937,344
Repayments B (164,956) (10,538)

Principal converted into perpetual securities ## Ak B BRI A S

interest (634,000) —
Debt restructuring B EA — (32,775)

Closing balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HHHREH 95,075 894,031

The borrowings granted from YEPI are denominated in RMB, EEHZEREFERR THEKIA
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed AREEE  BER - 58 1

terms with YEPI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(k) Borrowings from a related party - YDHI

)

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

39. XEBM LIRS (&)

(k) BEEBGER-ERER

s

2024 2023

—E-NE —T_=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T AREETIT

Opening balance at 1 January A—A—BHHAEER 8,889,641 8,891,026
Repayments BN — (1,385)
Transferred to YHTH A EmEREE (8,889,641) —
Closing balance at 31 December RT-ZA=+—HBHNHRER — 8,889,641

The borrowings granted from YDHI are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed
terms with YDHI.

Borrowings from a related party - Yunnan
Investment Group

U]

EFBEEMBR FTHERAAR
BErtE - BEW - FHE - LAR
1% B 5R B R B M A K 5E A IR B

FIBE S R - BR %M

2024 2023

—E-NE —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKET T

Opening balance at 1 January R—A— BB &ES 500,000 500,000
Closing balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HWNHREEH 500,000 500,000

The borrowings granted from Yunnan Investment Group are
denominated in RMB, pledged by solid waste treatment subsidiaries
and bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed terms
with Yunnan Investment Group. As at 31 December 2024, interest
and other financial charges payable to Yunnan Investment Group
amounted to RMB21,350,000 (2023: RMB19,482,000 ).

EREERTABGBRAARES
B HEERENBARERR
B UEREBEEEREEMOT
MIEREE - RZT-_mE+=
A=+—H8 ENELEEERHN
MEREMHBEERAARE
21,350,000 C( =B - =4 : A
R#19,482,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B OF BF 15 R I 5
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —F—pF+=-A=1+—HILFE

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39. XEBM LIRS (&)

(Continued)

(m) Borrowings from a joint venture and an associate (m) AEE QAT REBE N TE

E
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Opening balance at 1 January R— A - BN 38,370 51,670
Repayments B (1,000) (13,300)
Closing balance at 31 December RT=A=+— BN HRAER 37,370 38,370

The borrowings granted from a joint venture and an associate are =

denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear interest and repayable on

demand.

(n) Funds due from/to related parties

(i)  Funds due from Beijing OriginWater

N A RS QR TR SR
IARBFE EER  FER
JEIRERIEE -

(n) EREBLHNESER
(i) FBRIEREKFHEE

2024 2023

—E_ME —E-=4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Opening balance at 1 January R— A — BN & 24,980 25,233
Payment 3% — (253)
Closing balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HBMEREH 24,980 24,980

(ii)) Funds due to Health Industry

(i) BNREEXENEZ

2024 2023

—EB-ME —TE-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Opening balance at 1 January R—HB—BHNEBA&EH 76,300 76,300
Closing balance at 31 December RtTtZ=B=+—HWHREER 76,300 76,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(n) Funds due from/to related parties (Continued)

(iii) Receivables due from (to) other related parties

B 0 B 15 R BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-F-mEf=A=f—AIFEE

=

39. XEBM LIRS (&)

(n) EEBLINESERGE)

(i) FEWR (1) R B 75 19

-
2024 2023
—E-NFE —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARKET T
Opening balance at 1 January R—HA—-BHNBA&ER 39,965 13,143
Payment BN (40,606) (13,143)
Receipt R 16,025 39,965
Closing balance at 31 December RT-—A=+—H0HHREH 15,384 39,965

The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

A B Bk T R R B & 15 A
ARKE E&EHF 2
BREREREE -

(0) Guarantee (o) ER
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARKET T
Guarantee provided by YHTH in respect of =& ik 5 [E 51 A 5 B & R A
the borrowings of the Group ER 3,222,450 4,405,000
Guarantee provided by YEPI in respect of EHABRREERALEER
the borrowings of the Group R ER 2,802,342 2,892,923
Guarantee provided by Yunnan RongZzhi THmMEREERA AR ([RE])
Capital Management Co., RAE B EFIRHEAER
Ltd. (“Rongzhi”) in respect of
the borrowings of the Group 200,000 200,122
Guarantee provided to related parties in A& QA R E AR ER
respect of the borrowing of a joint A) [ Bk 77 B O R AR
venture and an associate 85,260 191,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E_EmEf —HA=1—HIFE

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

238

40. ARBREEEB/R

2024 2023
—E-NF =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Assets EE
Non-current assets EMENE E
Property, plant and equipment Yz - WS MR 145,189 153,105
Receivables under service concession R 7 4 A A 8 2 BE T 9 FE UK IE
arrangements 68,558 60,834
Investments in subsidiaries KB A R KR E 8,884,594 9,090,286
Contract assets BHEE 42,358 40,211
Intangible assets BEAE 32,603 32,719
Investments accounted for using the LARE R ABRRIIR A
equity method 1,024,017 1,040,298
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A fEUGRIE — 1,193
Prepayments TEfT I8 428,606 428,606
Financial asset at fair value through AAFEFEBEZESHTAEM
other comprehensive income FEWEN R EE 76 76
10,626,001 10,847,328
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EAS 77 75
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At fEWGRIE 825,959 1,626,789
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Uk B BB A R 3R 1B 11,922,817 11,087,434
Prepayments TR I8 5,753 5,341
Restricted cash ZREIR S 36,949 70,015
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMESEEY 33,537 2,266
Receivables under service R 75 45 5T 45 i 2 BE TS B R UK IR
concession arrangements 1,978 =
12,827,070 12,791,920
Total assets naeE 23,453,071 23,639,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE T _mFEF+—A=+—HIFFZ

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 40. A PRIEEEEBR(E)

2024 2023
“EBE-MF ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Equity s
Equity attributable to ordinary AAREBERRREGESR
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) H i (Miza) 2,365,076 2,365,076
Accumulated losses (note a) S GEE)) (2,004,857) (1,609,112)
1,553,432 1,949,177
Perpetual securities interests KB EERE R 9,891,670 —
Total equity MR 11,445,102 1,949,177
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings & ;R 7,991,255 16,490,553
7,991,255 16,490,553
Current liabilities g A=K
Borrowings (EEA 333,219 1,247,941
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M e RIE 3,682,931 3,951,013
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFR S Hi B & 564 564
4,016,714 5,199,518
Total liabilities BEE 12,007,969 21,690,071
Total equity and liabilities EEkAEEE 23,453,071 23,639,248

ARBEBEERBERALARAESTEN
ZEoRF=A-+N\BHELHTIA

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company on 28 March 2025 and was signed on its behalf.

TRAEE -
Director Director
E=2 E5ZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B —F—pF+=-A=1+—HILFE

40. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

240

(a) Movement of other reserves and accumulated

losses

40. ARREEEEBR(A
(a) Hftf#ERRTHBIREEH

Capital Statutory Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
R A 15 EERE ZitEE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T ARETT ARET T
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-ZBZ=F
— B —HE&ER 2,195,657 169,419 (814,534) 1,550,542
Loss for the year FAEE = = (794,578) (794,578)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R=-ZT=-=%
+T=ZA=+—HH®W
g2 2,195,657 169,419  (1,609,112) 755,964
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-ZEBE-_mE
—B—HW&E 2,195,657 169,419 (1,609,112) 755,964
Loss for the year FRNEE — — (395,745) (395,745)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R=-ZT=[gfF
+=ZA=+—H®#®
=323 2,195,657 169,419 (2,004,857) 360,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HEe—Z—pFf —A=+—HIFZF
41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND 41. EENEEEILER

SUPERVISORS

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREENME
REBEN FEFARABEAE
EREENES 25T ¢

The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company
paid/payable by the Group are presented as below:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2024 (i) BZ-_ZF—-_mE+=AH
=1+ —HIEFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Name of directors/supervisors B3 /EBfE Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
393 EEEHKE
ne e Wi HitR7 BE 55 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%TR ARBTR AR%TR AR¥TT ARBTR
Executive Directors: HEs:
Mr. Liu Jianjun (Vice-Chairman) 2RESE(AESR) - 298 - 23 16 337
Mr. Zheng Guangfeng (Chief executive BESBEE(THRAR) (BTES
officer) (appointed as executive Director BEERE-Z-ME ARARE
and Vice-Chairman with effect from A TRARN-Z-NEF
5 June 2024, and chief executive officer =R+t B#ER)
with effect from 27 March 2024) - 168 — Al 50 289
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (resigned as executive AEEEE(BZS=NE
Director on 27 December 2024) TRt tRRTHER
BTEZ) — 543 - 25 17 585
Mr. Liu Hui 2k = 579 = 59 4 679
Ms. Wang Rui (appointed as gL+ (B=B=mE
executive Director with effect A=t tRREANTES)
from 27 December 2024) — — — — — —
Non-executive Directors: FNTES
Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman) BEEE(EER) - - - - - -
Mr. Dai Richeng BAKEE - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Yong REEE = = = = = =
Supervisors: Ex:
Mr. Long Limin BRIREE - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Zhen KiREE = — — — _ _
Mr. Huang Yi (resigned as employee ERALE(BZTomE
representative Supervisor on —A=+-BRTEEEET
31 January 2024) REES) - 515 - 61 4 617
Ms. Tang Shuang ERat — 216 — 40 33 289
Mr. Tan Hairui BEEE 36 - - - - 36
Ms. Zhang Ling KRAL 36 - - - - 36
Mr. Mo Wenyi (with effect from EXREE(BZZ-NE
31 January 2024) —A=t—BRER) = 214 = 43 35 292
Independent non-executive Directors: ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BLx4E 200 - - - - 200
Mr. Zhong Wei EREE 100 - — - - 100
Mr. Zhou Beihai [Et 854 100 — — — - 100
472 2,533 = 322 233 3,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N RE ek

For the year ended 31 December 2024
B ENEf — A= —HIFFEE

41. %%&%%Eﬂm&é
(a) EEREENME (&)
(iVBEZE=—=FE=-=fF+=H

41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2023

=1+ —HILEFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Name of directors/supervisors B2/ BENS Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
R EERKS
e ok A H b rEE R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTn ARBTT ARETT ARETE
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Mr. Liu Jianjun (Vice-Chairman) AREEE(RIERR)
(appointed on 30 June 2023) (R=2==F<A=1H
EZ) = 253 = 34 19 306
Mr. Yu Long (Vice-chairman) FEEE(BIESR)
(resigned as executive Director and (R=B==F/ A=tHEHE
Vice-Chairman on 30 june 2023) WITEFRAEER) — 463 — 23 13 499
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (b = 297 = 23 11 331
Mr. Liu Hui (appointed on 30 June 2023) ZIBEA(R-T-=%
NAZTBEZEE) — 252 — 28 13 293
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Mei Wei (Chairman) BREE(EER) = = = = = =
Mr. Dai Richeng BAREE = = = = = =
Mr. Chen Yong RELE — — — — — —
Mr. Liu Hui (resigned on 30 June 2023)  ZIBE4(R=ZT==%
NAZTBEHE) = = = = = =
Supervisors: EE: = = = = = =
Mr. Long Limin REFREE = = = = = =
Mr. Zhu Zhen RiRFEE — — — — — —
Mr. Huang Yi (Resigned as supervisor BEHEE(RZZ-mE
on 31 January 2024) —A=t—R&IES) - 252 — 34 17 303
Mr. Mo Wenyi (Appointed as supervisor ~ EXREAE(R=F =M%
on 31 January 2024) —A=+-REZREARES) — — — — — —
Ms. Tang Shuang - en — 191 — 28 17 236
Mr. Tan Hairui EEHEE 36 — — — — 36
Ms. Zhang Ling RERE 36 = = = — 36
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHTES = = = = = =
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRLEE 181 = = = — 181
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEAE 100 — — — — 100
Mr. Zhou Beihai [ELE & 100 — — — — 100
453 1,708 = 170 90 2,421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE—F-—mF+=—A=1+—HIFZE

41. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and supervisors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors and supervisors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: none).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ and supervisors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ and
supervisors’ services (2023: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors and supervisors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors and supervisors

As at 31 December 2024, there are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors and supervisors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors and
supervisors (2023: nil).

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in respect
of their services as directors of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 were RMB400,000 (2023: RMB381,000). The
aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in respect
of their other services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
RMB1,890,000 (2023: RMB1,429,000).

4. EEREETANRES

(&

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

EERESHNERENR
BRETER
BHE-_Z-_NWF+=-A=+—H
IEFE BEEEREEE KRR
S % U5 ER A AT 3R K 4 ) =k ek Bk AR
AMZZZ=F M|) -

MENESRESREM
mME=FRENKE
HE-_Z-_NWFE+=-A=+—H
IEFE AEEBYEGENRES
RESRBRERME=FZHR
B(ZZ_=4F :#)o

EBUESRES  EX
RESNZEHEERE
EERBASTEANER -
EERREMRZHER
R=ZZT-_MFE+=A=+—8"
MENEERES ESRES
MZEHEBREERE AT
ARNER EERREMRZZ
(=% :#\)o

EERHEEREBEE_T-_NF
+ZA=+—RALEFEEEEAR
A E = O sk e Uk 8 B
# % B AR 400,000C(=F
—=%: AR¥381,0007T) °
BEERBESERNEEZE_ZT_MF
T+ A=t—BLEEHEEAR
ARAEHRENEMREEEX
HREROFHEEAEARKE
1,890,000 L (ZE=-=4 : AR
#1,429,0007T) °
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFHFERE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EomE —ET-=F —ET-— —To—F —Z-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETr ARBTT ARETFET
Revenue Wz 2,798,209 3,116,539 3,789,322 5,280,743 8,396,630
Gross profit EAH 453,733 655,113 753,848 1,316,564 2,096,132
Profit before income tax Fr iS55t Bl & A (2,138,500) (814,669) (982,359) (1,030,933) 502,624
(Loss)/profit for the year EN(ER),HF (2,166,241)  (994,606)  (1,158,349)  (1,055,254) 341,311
(Loss)/profit for the year MNTRALTEGEFEA
attributable to: (E518),/ &
Ordinary shareholders of AR REBRARER
the Company (1,739,385) (688,068) (1,060,342) (1,001,876) 223,095
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FRERE (%),
income for the year g 25 48 KR (2,103,578) (1,062,175) (1,390,172) (1,077,401) 353,320
Total comprehensive (expense)/ A~ ATEIHEZE
income attributable to: (FX), Wt
Ordinary shareholders of AR FEBRARER
the Company (1,676,682) (757,582) (1,270,446) (1,024,023) 235,104
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EomE —T-=% —ET-— —To—F —E_THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRr ARETT ARETr ARBTT ARETET
Assets EE
Total non-current assets EREEEMAE 35,491,652 37,709,705 38,158,878 40,462,391 36,676,593
Total current assets MBNEERLR 8,977,082 9,134,762 8,509,626 7,963,229 10,576,221
Total assets BELARE 44,468,734 46,844,467 46,668,504 48,425,620 47,252,814
Equity and liabilities EakaE
Equity attributable to: AT FEfE#E R -
Ordinary shareholders of RATEBRIRR
the Company 309,717 1,986,174 2,743,756 4,014,202 5,175,361
Perpetual securities interests KB EEE S 9,891,670 — — 1,622,300 500,000
Non-controlling interests FE 2 iR 2 959,935 1,465,281 1,744,560 1,961,636 1,932,201
Total equity s A RE 11,161,322 3,451,455 4,488,316 7,598,138 7,607,562
Non-current liabilities ERB AR 20,562,484 31,351,166 28,971,386 13,504,638 26,292,531
Current liabilities MENAE 12,744,928 12,041,846 13,208,802 27,322,844 13,352,721
Total liabilities BELRE 33,307,412 43,393,012 42,180,188 40,827,482 39,645,252
Total equity and liabilities Hwm R B EEE 44,468,734 46,844,467 46,668,504 48,425,620 47,252,814
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE PROFILE

Yunnan Water, as one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in the PRC, not only adheres to a mode of
“massive water” that covers all areas such as raw water supply, tap water supply,
sewage treatment, reclaimed water utilization, black and odorous water treatment,
and river comprehensive treatment, but also actively expands its solid waste
business, including industrial hazardous waste treatment, medical waste treatment,
kitchen waste disposal, waste incineration and power generation, carbonisation
and resource utilisation of sludge, and pyrolysis carbonisation of organic waste.
Meanwhile, the Group provides all-round services ranging from design, investment,
and construction to operation and maintenance, comprehensive solutions, and

even core technology system integration.

The Group fully leverages its own advantages, closely aligns with the actual
situation of Yunnan Province, focuses on the strategic goal of developing a
green economy promising province, an ethnic culture promising province and a
bridgehead for the PRC’s opening to the southwest, firmly grasps the opportunity
from the implementation of the national “Belt and Road"” strategy, adheres to
its enterprise culture of reverence, thankfulness, self-confidence, keeps careful,
professional, rigorous working attitude, and fully builds an “Internet of Things +
Internet” digital intelligent environmental protection enterprise. Yunnan Water
is committed to becoming an urban environmental integrated services provider
based in Yunnan Province, serving the whole country and moving towards South
Asia and Southeast Asia, with core technologies, strong investment and financing
capabilities, core competitiveness and broad social influence.

Amid the fierce tides of business competition, Yunnan Water has garnered the
following social honors during the Reporting Period, each a testament to countless
efforts and hard work, marking a journey filled with hardship and striving.

o Honored as an “Outstanding Enterprise for High-Quality Development” in
Qingzhou City, Shandong Province for 2023.

° Awarded the title of “Advanced Collective of 2023"” in Zunyi City, Guizhou

Province.

o The “Yunnan Water Internet of Things + Internet Smart Environmental
Operation System” was selected as a typical case for the digital

transformation of provincial enterprises in Yunnan Province.

In order to enable stakeholders to understand its policies, measures and
performance of environmental, social and governance (the "ESG"), the Group has
prepared and published the ESG report (the “Report”).
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Reporting Period

The Report covers the ESG policies, measures and performances of the Group
during the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (“2024").

Reporting Scope

The scope of the Report is determined by the management of the Group after
considering the importance of the impact of different projects on the Group's
policies and financial performance, and whether the Group has direct control over
the project.

The environmental data disclosed in the Report covers over 200 water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment projects in operation of the Group in the
PRC during 2024. The social data covers operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and overseas regions in 2024. After the Group's data collection system becomes
more mature and the work of sustainable development deepens, the Group will

continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the future.

Reporting Framework

The Report was prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix C2 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and based on the reporting principles of materiality,

guantitative, balance, and consistency outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide.

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify the material issues
in 2024 and the identified material issues were then adopted as the focus for the
preparation of this Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed
by the Board and Designated Personnel. Please refer to the sections headed

“Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the calculation of the key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) in the Report and the applicable assumptions have
been supplemented in notes. All the figures have been rounded up to 2 decimal

places. The Group has also set environmental targets to reduce related impacts.

Balance: The Report was prepared based on an objective and impartial manner to
ensure that the information disclosed faithfully reflects the overall ESG performance
of the Group.
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Consistency: The preparation methodologies applied to the Report were
substantially consistent with the year ended 31 December 2023 (“2023") for
comparison purposes. Explanations will be provided for data that was affected by
changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

The corporate governance practices of the Group have been published in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of the Annual Report.

CONTACT THE GROUP

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders. You
can provide valuable advice on the Report or its performance in sustainable
development, and contact the Group through the following ways:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

ESG MANAGEMENT
Board’s Statement on ESG Governance

The Board of Directors of the Group is the highest authority and decision-
making body for ESG matters, bearing ultimate responsibility for the Company's
ESG strategy and reporting. It oversees ESG-related issues that may impact the
Company’s business or operations, as well as Shareholders and other stakeholders.
The relevant designated personnel (“Designated Personnel”) of the Board are
responsible for identifying and assessing ESG risks relevant to the Group. They
ensure the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems within the Group, report progress on related ESG goals to
the Board, and conduct reviews accordingly. Please refer to the section headed “"ESG
Governance Structure” for details.

The Group values the suggestions and opinions of all stakeholders, ensuring
adequate channels for communication and engagement with key stakeholders, to
discuss and identify the Group's key ESG issues and potential ESG risks, leading to
continuous improvement of ESG-related strategies and policy systems. The Board
has reviewed material ESG issues for the year, in a bid to ensure the timeliness and
rationality of the material issues. Please refer to the section headed “Materiality

Analysis” for details.

The Group has established an ESG target management structure related to
indicators such as carbon emission, pollutant emissions, energy consumption,
and water resources management. The Board reviews the progress of target
achievement and reviews any necessary adjustments or improvements on an
annual basis to ensure that the Group continues to make progress in achieving ESG
targets. Please refer to the section headed “A. ENVIRONMENTAL" for details.
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The Board and all Directors warrant that there are no false representations or
misleading statements contained in, or material omissions from, the Report, and
accept responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the Report.
The Report provides detailed disclosure of the progress and achievements of the
Group's ESG work in 2024, and was considered and approved by the Board on 30
April 2025.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group places great importance on environmental and social responsibility,
deeply embedding it into its business operations and decision-making processes to
achieve a high degree of alignment between sustainable development governance
and business strategy. The Board fully fulfills its supervision and guidance
responsibilities in this process and assumes overall responsibility for decision-
making and reporting on environmental and social responsibility work. The Board
carefully selects qualified members with appropriate skills, extensive experience,

professional expertise, and diverse perspectives based on ESG-related matters.

Terms of reference of the Board include formulating the ESG management policy
and strategy of the Group. The Board holds a meeting at least once a year with the
assistance of the relevant designated personnel to specifically discuss and review
the performance of the Group’s major ESG issues and its related targets, while
evaluating the Group's risks related to ESG, so as to ensure the establishment
of an effective and appropriate risk management and internal control system. In
addition, the Board regularly reviews and evaluates the implementation of the
Group's environmental and social responsibility system and the progress of ESG-
related targets, so as to supervise the Group's fulfilment of its corporate social
responsibility, safeguard the long-term growth potential of the enterprise, and is

responsible for approving the information disclosed in the Report.

The Designated Personnel are composed of core members from different
departments who possess solid professional knowledge across all aspects of
ESG, and their main responsibility is to assist the Board in overseeing ESG-related
matters. Designated Personnel are required to arrange meetings at least once a
year to assist in evaluating the effectiveness of the ESG system, identifying and
evaluating the ESG risks faced by the Group, and ensuring the Group's strict
compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations. The Designated Personnel
will also engage an independent third party to conduct an annual materiality
assessment to evaluate, prioritise, and manage material ESG-related issues, as well
as prepare ESG reports. By collecting and analysing ESG-related data, Designated
Personnel assist in regularly reviewing the progress of ESG-related targets, and are
required to report their investigation results, decisions, and recommendations to
the Board at least once a year.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group attaches great importance to all stakeholders, including investors and
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and subcontractors, regulatory and
government authorities, communities, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs")
and the media, and fully respects their opinions on the Group’s business and ESG-
related matters. In order to gain an in-depth understanding and properly respond to
the concerns of stakeholders, the Group maintains close and good communication
with major stakeholders at all times. In formulating the operation strategy and
ESG-related measures, the Group will take into account the expectations of the
stakeholders. Through mutual collaboration, the Group is able to continuously
improve its performance and create greater value for society.

Through different stakeholders’ engagement and communication channels, the
Group will bring stakeholders’ expectations into the Group’s operational and ESG
strategy. The communication channels and expectations of stakeholders are as

follows:

Major stakeholders
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Main Communication Channels

IREBRE

Shareholders and investors Compliance operation
Information transparency
Protection of rights and interests and the fair treatment
of shareholders

Return on investment
Risk management
Corporate governance
AL

EREHE

REER MREA TS
REDR

B E R

TEER

BRRERESE

Regulatory and Compliance operation

government authorities Policy implementation

Pay taxes
EERB#E AREE
HITHR
BWBR
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Annual general meeting and other shareholder meetings
Financial reports

The Group's website and e-mail

News reports, announcements and circulars

Conference and teleconference

Site inspection

RERBAFAERAMREAE
P ]S

AEBRERED
HER - REEK
SENETEEE

RHEHR

On site investigation, supervision and inspection and visit
reception

Financial reports

Progress report

Telephone and e-mail contact
Information disclosure

Daily communication report
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication channels
TEFHE BEHEER TEBBRE
Customers Products and services quality Customer support hotline and e-mail
Customer privacy protection Customer satisfaction survey
Business integrity and morality Visit and meetings
®F EmEREEE EEXHARLED
RIEE BT EPMEERE
BXEERER Gk
Employees Career development opportunities Training, seminars and briefing
Health and safety Performance appraisal and performance
Remuneration and benefits evaluation meetings
Working environment Culture, public welfare and sports activities
Protection of employees’ rights and interests Working meeting and special meeting
Staff care Face-to-face talks, e-mail contact and teleconference
Staff communication Career development communication mechanism
8T ES 39504 B R eRENE
BEAZE BHEGRRBGAEE R
HEEER Xt AEREEED
T{ERE IhezREESR
ETRHRRE EEEN ERMEREFESE
BETWE BELRERE
BETER

Suppliers/subcontractors

HER/ HEH

Stakeholders
TEHNE

Long-term cooperation
Business ethics and reputation
Fair tendering

RHIA (EMIE
EESGELE
AFRE

Expectations and concerns

MERER

Business meetings, e-mail and telephone
Review and assessment

Procurement and tender meetings
Opinion survey

EHAS - EBRE;

EZ T

REARE

ERHAE

Communication channels

TEBBRE

The community/non-
governmental

organisations/media

e FBHE, R

Giving back to society
Environmental protection
Social welfare

Health and safety

mEEE
RGRE
HEREA
fEmaErs

ESG reports

Project visit and site assessment
Public hearing

Public welfare activities

News reports and announcements
Management interview

ESG &
ERAZ2BRBSER

N

NEEE

FERRAE

ERERD
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group adheres to the principle of materiality reporting and provides a detailed
disclosure of the process and criteria for identifying material ESG issues of Yunnan
Water. During the year, Yunnan Water's business operations remained stable with
no significant changes. At the same time, there were no significant changes in
the status of interactions between the Group and its stakeholders. In light of this, HBE
the Group carried forward the results of the materiality assessment in 2023. After
being reviewed and verified by the management, the results of the materiality
assessment for the year were summarised and ultimately considered and confirmed

by the Board.

The results of the materiality assessment reviewed for the year are as follows:

High Importance

BERMEER
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Medium Importance

BERMEEFS

Low Importance

EENERERE

Service Quality and Standard
Emissions Control

Corporate Social Responsibility
Water Consumption

Anti-corruption

Energy Consumption

Waste Management

Employees’ Health and Safety
Prevention of Child or Forced Labour
Climate Change Risk Management

Employee Development and Training
Employment Practices
Supply Chain Management
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Materiality Matrix
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Emissions Control

Energy Consumption e
Waste Management
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| Employee Development and Training
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Water Consumption
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Employment Practices
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Supply Chain Management
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Climate Change Risk Management
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The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective management

policies and control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed

contents comply with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

A.

252

ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental Targets

The Group firmly believes that it is crucial to comply with relevant
environmental laws, regulations and policies for the long-term, steady
development and success of its business. Therefore, the Group consistently
keeps a close watch on industry policy trends, conducts in-depth analysis of
the latest applicable environmental laws, regulations, and policy provisions,
as well as the best practices from domestic and international peers, and
accordingly, promptly optimizes its environmental management systems to
ensure that the Group's environmental management is in line with the latest
standards and continuously improves.

To effectively promote a sustainable business operation model, the Group
has established multiple environmental targets based on its own development
direction and strategic policy. At the same time, the Group ensured the
smooth progress of these targets through rigorous monitoring and regular
reviews. Relevant data, year-on-year comparative analysis, and various
environmental protection measures will be discussed in detail in subsequent
sections. In 2024, the Group continued to follow the 2023 environmental
targets. The following table summarises the Group's environmental targets
for 2024, the progress of these targets for the current year, and the
environmental targets set for 2025:

AEBERERESCFERIABRERN
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REBE

AEBERE BTHBREERE AR
RHEE  UREBREKHRBEERERE
HEAMEREE - ER it - AEBEBK
BT EBRER  RATITRT
BRAMRREEER  BURIKES R
EERINRIENSBERER WKL
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SEEMRETEI(REREE  BEx
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Levels 2024 targets Progress 2025 targets
B “E-MERE ER g 5 =P -
Greenhouse gas ("GHG") ~ Post energy-saving signs every year to remind employees ~ Completed Follow the 2024
emissions to save energy and reduce GHG emissions. environmental targets.
RERRE BERUTEEARESISNERER WAL RER EBEXK AT MERREAE
(DREREBHR B
Solid waste Issue notices regarding the principles of reducing, reusing ~ Completed Follow the 2024
treatment business and recycling to employees every year to reduce waste environmental targets.
generation.
ElREREER BEMEIRLAEL BARKBARRUNEN A BExK HAZZ-MERSEAR -
BMOBERMMESE -
Energy consumption Environmental protection activities are held every year to  Completed Follow the 2024
improve employees’ awareness of energy conservation. environmental targets.
BRERE BEBERERELY  URABIHMEED - B RS ZMEREAE
Water consumption Maintain the percentage of recycled water consumption ~ Completed Follow the 2024
to enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation. environmental targets.
KRB ERBEKEREAN L WRABIHHAKEH - B HAZE-_MEREAR -
Carry out activities and post water conservation signs to  Completed Follow the 2024
remind all employees to save water. environmental targets.
HRED  RUGORKEASHAREZBETIHNA BxK HAZE-MEREAEE -
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Emissions

The Group manages its subsidiaries with high standards and strict
requirements, ensuring full compliance with the Group's internal
environmental management system and all relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution and the applicable pollutant emission standards
issued by local governments. As of 2024, following a comprehensive
inspection, the Group was not aware of any incidents of material
non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to air and GHG
emissions, discharge of pollutants into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that would have a significant
adverse impact on the Group's operations.

EXHAUST GAS EMISSIONS

The Group always upholds a strong sense of responsibility towards
environmental protection, continuously increasing investment in
research and development, actively innovating pollution treatment
technologies, and improving its production management system
from multiple dimensions such as process optimization and resource
integration.

In the wastewater treatment process, the Group has meticulously
planned and implemented a series of comprehensive and effective
solutions to address the challenging odor issues during the treatment
process. On the one hand, in the areas surrounding the odor
generation sources, the Group has selected plant species with strong
adsorption and purification capabilities based on scientific greening
plans, and planted greenbelts in an orderly manner, so as to minimize
the diffusion of odors to the outside environment through the natural
physiological characteristics of these plants. On the other hand, the
Group has introduced the cutting-edge odor collection system from
the industry, which rapidly and comprehensively collects emitted odors
through precise pipeline layouts and efficient extraction equipment.
These collected odors are then directed into specially designed
biotreatment devices, where harmful components in the odors are
deeply purified through microbial degradation and transformation
processes, ensuring that all indicators of the final emitted gases meet
or even exceed the stringent national emission standards.
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In terms of solid waste treatment, the Group has actively kept abreast
of international standards by introducing international advanced
technologies and continuously upgrading and innovating the flue gas
treatment equipment to address the hazardous gas generated during
the treatment process. By utilizing high-precision filtration materials,
advanced catalysts, and intelligent control systems, the Group ensures
that various harmful components contained in the flue gas have been

effectively removed and emissions meet stringent national standards.

In addition, the Group recognizes the importance of standardized
management in environmental protection, and has therefore
formulated a completed job post system and detailed operating
procedures. In the whole process of exhaust gas treatment, the Group
has strengthened management and monitoring efforts, assigned
professional personnel to closely monitor changes in operating
conditions, strictly controlled the exhaust gas collection process from
the source, precisely adjusted parameters during the treatment process,
and promptly identified and solved any issues that arose during
operation, so as to ensure that all exhaust gas treatment equipment
remains in a stable, efficient, and normal operating condition at all

times.

Through the aforementioned series of solid and effective measures,
the Group has effectively helped operation project sites achieve their
established annual emission reduction targets in an efficient and stable
manner. Its outstanding environmental protection achievements have
set a good example within the industry, earning full recognition and
high praise from governments at all levels.

Due to the combined effects of difference in the composition and the
disposal volume of solid waste, as well as the fluctuation in operating
conditions of the flue gas purification system, the Group's overall
exhaust gas emissions decreased in 2024 as compared to 2023. The
overview of the Group's exhaust gas emissions is as follows:
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Type of exhaust gases' Unit 2024 2023
BRER" =R —EBE-NE =RB==
Particulate matter (“PM") tonnes 14.20 14.98
gar(TPM]) i

Sulphur oxides (“SO_") tonnes 63.91 76.07
m%ﬂ:%(FSO 1 o

Nitrogen oxides (“NO, ") tonnes 420.94 443.73
A&L®(TNO, 1) i
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GHG EMISSIONS

The Group’s GHG emissions arise mainly from the purchased
consumption of electricity. The Group has implemented various energy
conservation measures to minimise GHG emissions. Please refer to
the section headed "ENERGY CONSUMPTION" below for details. In
addition to setting emission targets, the Group and several entities
jointly signed the “carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality” strategic
cooperation agreement in 2021. Taking this as an opportunity, the
Group will strengthen technology research and development, resource
integration business expansion, and actively assist in serving the goal
of “carbon emission peak by 2030, carbon neutrality by 2060".

The Group’s total GHG emissions decreased in 2024 as compared
to 2023 due to the increase in the number of wastewater treatment
projects. However, the total Group’s GHG emission intensity in 2024
remained at a consistent level as compared to 2023. The Group’'s GHG
emissions are summarised as follows:
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Type of GHG emissions' Unit 2024 2023
BERBHERER" B —EZNF ZE=F
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)? tonnes of carbon dioxide

equivalent ("tC0OLe") 8.87 N/A
HEAERBEYR(EE)? —akiEE((H_EatikEE 3
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 255,692.19 276,535.06
BEREERE RS (EE2) WAk iE
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 255,701.06 276,535.06
BERBHERAS WM_S{tHRESE
Total GHG emissions intensity? tCO,e/m? 0.05 0.05
RERBHREERE? WA e g THK
SOLID WASTE TREATMENT BUSINESS 2] JBE fim PR S 7

In the field of solid waste treatment, the Group always adheres to
its original intention of providing customers with high-quality solid
waste treatment services. It closely monitors various issues arising
during the solid waste treatment process, continuously developing and
innovating solid waste treatment technologies, and actively promoting
the recycling and reuse of resources. The Group is committed to
playing a leading role in the industry by raising industry standards,
improving relevant systems, and fostering a positive interaction among
technologies, standards, and systems for mutual promotion and
coordinated development, all while dedicating full efforts to protecting
the ecological environment.
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In strict compliance with relevant national regulations, the Group
installs high-performance monitoring equipment and ensures its
efficient and stable operation to accurately monitor the discharge
of pollutants in real time, proactively disclose the data of pollution
discharge to the public on a regular basis, and consciously accept
the public supervision. The Group assigns dedicated professionals to
supervise the specific implementation of solid waste treatment and
disposal measures throughout the entire process, and to ensure the
timely collection, safe transportation, and professional treatment of
solid waste in strict compliance with regulatory requirements and
established disposal plans, striving to completely eliminate potential
pollution risks at the source. In addition, the Group conducts regular
testing for the content of hazardous substances such as heavy metals
in the solid waste, closely tracks information related to comprehensive
utilisation of solid waste, and actively explores and expands more
diversified approaches to comprehensive utilization. For hazardous
waste, the Group strictly follows the hazardous waste treatment
and disposal plan, ensuring standardized operations throughout the
entire process from collection, storage and transportation, to disposal,
thereby effectively preventing secondary pollution.

In terms of medical waste treatment, the Group also upholds a
strong sense of social responsibility by conducting the collection,
transportation, and disposal of medical waste in a rapid, orderly,
efficient, and harmless manner. Through a series of effective measures,
such as formulating comprehensive emergency plans and adopting
advanced sealed packaging technology, the Group rigorously prevents
the loss, leakage, or spread of medical waste, thereby ensuring
its proper disposal. Notably, the Group’s medical waste treatment
process is highly environmentally friendly, producing only a minimal
amount of non-toxic, sterile residue, with no wastewater discharged
throughout the entire process, thus truly achieving the disposal goals
of harmlessness and reduction.
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Through years of technical research and development and engineering
application, the Group has successfully and independently developed
low temperature pyrolysis carbonisation technology. The technology is
applied to the disposal of various types of organic solid wastes, such as
sludge, domestic waste, kitchen waste and excrement. The technology
has the following features:

U Flexible treatment scale: it is especially suitable for the reduction,
harmlessness and resource utilisation treatment of organic solid
waste in counties, towns and villages which cannot be covered
by waste incineration power plants, filling the gap in the organic
solid waste treatment market in this region;

2. Wide range of application: the requirements on the heat value,
classification and particle size of the organic solid waste are not
strict;

3. Solving dioxin disposal problems at source: the low temperature
and anaerobic environment in the pyrolysis machine can
eliminate the conditions required for the synthesis of dioxin
by metal oxide catalysts, making the dioxin content in flue gas
meet discharge standards without the need for activated carbon
injection system in flue gas purification system;

4. Solid biochar products are stable in nature, and the
concentrations of their heavy metal leaching toxicity, chlorine
and other pollutants comply with the national Class Il soil use
specifications, so they can be used as carbon-based fertilizer for
flowers, trees and other plants; and
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5. Recyclable products, such as iron, copper, aluminium, glass,
sand and gravel, are effectively recovered, achieving resource
utilisation, reduction and harmlessness of the domestic waste.

5. AIAXMEWE - e W
BEODAOHNEERLELE
W BRTERIRNE
R BB MEE(L -

Type of solid wastes Unit 2024 2023
EEEE By —E-ME —T=F
Domestic wastes tonnes 976,477.58 915,695.50
A EBIIR 7
Medical wastes tonnes 23,729.11 22,066.90
BEEEY i
Hazardous wastes tonnes

(excluding medical waste) 0.00 26.58
e EY (BREEEY) Mg
HAZARDOUS WASTES BEZEEY

The medical wastes and other hazardous wastes treated by the
Group have been listed in the section of “SOLID WASTE TREATMENT
BUSINESS”, and the operation of the Group does not produce a
significant amount of hazardous waste.

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

In its daily business operations, the Group also generates non-
hazardous wastes, mainly including dewatering sludge generated in
the process of its sewage treatment and water supply and slag and fly
ash generated in the process of its solid waste treatment. In addressing
these wastes derived from its operations, the Group upholds a strong
environmental awareness and has a comprehensive and rigorous
management system in place. Based on national discharge standards,
the Group actively adopts effective measures to minimize emissions
and ensure proper disposal.

The Group only owns a small number of motor vehicles, and its fuel consumption is not
significant. Therefore, the Group did not disclose the amount of exhaust gas and GHG
emissions from vehicle fuel consumption in 2023. The Group will disclose these data during
the Reporting Period.
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For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval for the projects to
meticulously establish comprehensive production management system
and process control system. From the measurement of solid waste
to its transportation and final disposal, it implements standardized
management across the entire process to prevent secondary pollution.
Notably, the Group possesses advanced membrane technology in
the industry and continues to increase investment in research and
development in order to significantly reduce solid wastes generated
during the production and operation process. At the same time, it
actively applies sludge carbonisation technology to transform the
produced sludge into usable resources, achieving the recycling of
resources.

For slag and fly ash generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment methods
including classified storage or sealed storage in strict compliance
with national policies and industry standards to achieve the goals
of harmless and recycling treatment. It sets up eye-catching safety
warning signs in storage areas according to regulatory requirements
to constantly remind relevant personnel to pay attention to safety. All
disposals of such wastes are carried out in an orderly manner in strict
compliance with national policies and regulations and requirements
of government-approved environmental impact assessment report,

effectively fulfilling its environmental responsibilities.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent with reference to,
but not limited to, the Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards issued by the World Resources Research Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, How to prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange and the Notice on Implementing the
Management of GHG Emission Reports for Power Generation Industry Enterprises from 2023 to
2025 published by Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

The Group only owns a small number of motor vehicles, and its fuel consumption is not
significant. Therefore, the Group did not disclose the amount of exhaust gas and GHG
emissions from vehicle fuel consumption in 2023. The Group will disclose these data during
the Reporting Period.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group's gross floor area is approximately 5,495,789.01 m? (As
of 31 December 2023: approximately 5,581,922.79 m?). This data will also be used to calculate
other intensity data.
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For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts into
promoting paperless office and using office automation (“OA") system
and video meeting system. By interconnecting various departments
of the Group via the OA platform, it effectively reduces resource
waste arising from document circulation. The Group exercises strict
control over the purchase of stationery such as paper, implements a
strict registration system in respect of the collection of office supplies
and actively encourages employees to adopt double-sided printing to
significantly reduce waste of paper.

The Group also actively promotes the reuse of office stationery such
as envelopes and folders. Besides, the Group encourages zero use of
disposable tableware such as paper cups in the office, while advocating
the purchase of rechargeable office equipment to reduce the usage of
disposable batteries. In 2024, the Group only used a minimal amount
of paper, so it did not disclose the data related to the amount of paper
disposal.

In 2024, the Group's total non-hazardous waste disposal intensity
remained at a consistent level as compared to 2023. The non-
hazardous waste disposals of the Group are summarised as follows:
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Type of non-hazardous wastes Unit 2024 2023
BEBRZEDESR B —E-NF —===
Slag tonnes 182,769.97 177,492.56
BE T8
Fly ash tonnes 25,572.72 23,757.47
FRIX M8
Sludge tonnes 352,233.78 357,563.12
B Mg
Total disposal of tonnes

non-hazardous wastes 560,576.47 558,813.15
BEREYEELS 7]
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes/m?

disposal intensity 0.10 0.10
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Case Study: Carry Out World Environment Day Campaign
ERHR : HRUEAREAED

5 June is World Environment Day each year. In 2024, its theme was set as “Advancing the Beautiful China Initiative in All
Respects”. The core objective is to guide the whole society to firmly establish and earnestly put into practice the concept
that “lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets”, and to actively mobilize all sectors to participate in the grand
endeavour of building a Beautiful China and achieving modernization characterized by harmonious coexistence between
humanity and nature.

ANALARBFNHERRER _ZE_NFHITECRAIZEMEEZRTEER | - EROVENESI 2 HSRE/M LI )
BERTIAKELURSS LR IE— B BEHELERARINERZETE  ERAEGAMBRERK O RE
BEEzH o

Yunnan Water has always adhered to the development concept that “lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable
assets”. Over the years, the Company has continuously focused on the protection of the ecological environment. On this
special occasion of World Environment Day, each of our employees consciously acts as a “guardian” and “practitioner” of
the ecological environment.
ERRBRERREKBURESLBIL NBERES - 2K RAFETINERREREIE  EHRBFEHE—
BHRBE & ZME-—NEIHEEBRARERRENTEE INETE] -

Ruili Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd. actively organized the “5 June Environment Day: Ruili (China) - Muse (Myanmar)
Exchange and Mutual Learning & Public Open Day for Environmental Protection Facilities”. On the day of the event, led by
the Dehong Prefecture Ecology and Environment Bureau, more than 60 people in total, including community residents of
Ruili City, environmental volunteers, and international representatives from Muse, Myanmar, were organized to visit the
Second Sewage Treatment Plant of Ruili Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd.. The visitors witnessed the entire sewage
treatment process up close and gained a genuine appreciation of the effort behind every drop of clean water, which
offered the public a more intuitive and profound understanding of sewage treatment and ecological protection.
HEMHIKBRAFERENR N e ARFER |TEKE - AN EEBRRREORARFABZRLEED - 58
BH BHEZMNEERRERER @B THEBETHLRER RETMEUARAGREABRBRRAL - #6088 A —RE
EHRBETHRIOKERAFAEISRKEERLE - 2BE0ERRE T KEENERE  BURRIE B FKRER
NG ERARETKEBEMNERREE TERES  RANRH -

The volunteer service team of Guizhou Renhuai Yunshui Environmental Industry Co., Ltd, in collaboration with Zunyi
Environmental Protection Association and Moutai Institute, jointly carried out a river patrol volunteer activity. The
event aimed to significantly raise public awareness of environmental protection and encourage more people to serve as
“guardians” and “ambassadors” of their local clean waters. Adhering to the three principles of “reverence, thankfulness
and self-confidence”, the team has dedicated themselves to environmental protection efforts in the Chishui River Basin of
Renhuai City, contributing the strength of the water sector to the advancement of ecological civilization.
EMNCEEKRBREERAAEBEREEHEEETERRERERE  FAERARRARERICTES - ZEBEEKRS
HERFTORRRESHR BRHEZANR—FEKBRROTES INEEE] - hMBRKRBFIHBL - BEL - BE
SIZLRA 2FORAZCETRKTRENRERERRD  SHDERXARRKEMEBRKBITENNE -

Looking ahead, Yunnan Water remains steadfast as a dedicated “practitioner” of green development. The Company will
actively fulfill its social responsibilities, fully demonstrate the accountability of a state-owned enterprise, continuously
pioneer new approaches to advancing ecological civilization, and strive to compose a new chapter in the high-quality
development of Yunnan Water.

RERK  ERABRBREMSZCERAOLEIRITE]  ARKBEEBRTHEET  RHOZBEECEE - TERMAI L&
XHERFEE  2ARBRKEanBEERNGFTHRE -
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WASTEWATER DISCHARGE AND TREATMENT

Wastewater generated from the operation of the sewage treatment
and water supply facilities mainly contains a small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and is discharged after being
processed by the sewage treatment facilities in the plant of the Group
and meeting the required standards. Wastewater generated from the
operation of the Group’s solid waste treatment facilities is recycled
or discharged into the municipal pipe network after being processed
by dedicated sewage treatment facilities in the plant and meeting
the required standards, striving to achieve “zero discharge”. In 2024,
after being processed by the Group's sewage treatment facilities, the
Group’s emissions of chemical oxygen demand (“COD"”) and ammonia
nitrogen (“NH,-N") were reduced by approximately 116,458.71 tonnes
and 14,989.15 tonnes respectively (2023: reduced by approximately
112,217.62 tonnes and 14,877.11 tonnes, respectively). The Group's

wastewater pollutants emissions are summarised as follows:
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Type of wastewater pollutants Unit 2024 2023
FXFRYEE B —E-lmE —TZ=F
CcOD tonnes 10,385.39 11,274.15
M
NH,-N tonnes 336.30 670.13
U]
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A2. Use of Resources

As one of the leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in the PRC, the
Group always takes ESG impact into consideration in its core operating
practices and strictly controls the resource consumption of each project
according to the principle of economic operation as well as strives to
enhance resource utilisation efficiency and strengthen the operation

skills of staff to maximise the energy utilisation.

The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for
each operating project to accurately understand the consumption
of energy, water resources and raw materials. Based on this, it
formulates indicators for energy consumption, water consumption
and raw materials consumption, and carries out strict supervision and
evaluation of each project accordingly. In addition to complying with
relevant national laws and regulations, the Group has a comprehensive
set of internal monitoring, management and assessment systems in
place, which set the control targets for total energy consumption.
Once a production project with excessively rapid growth in total energy
consumption is detected, an early warning will be issued immediately,
and fine-tuning will be implemented to ensure that the Group can
make effective and reasonable use of resources while maintaining
high-standard operation. The Group always adheres to the concept of
creating maximum benefit for customers and the environment with
minimal resource consumption, and actively promotes sustainable
resource and energy utilization, continuously exploring and advancing
in practice.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

In 2024, the energy consumption of the Group was mainly purchased
electricity. The Group rigorously promotes the concept of electricity
conservation to all employees during the production process and office
work, and arranges cleaners to conduct inspections during the non-
office hours to ensure that the electric devices such as lighting and
other electrical equipment have been switched-off, thereby effectively
implementing energy-saving measures.
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In terms of energy consumption control in solid waste treatment,
the Group focuses on improving the methods of waste stacking and
fermentation to increase the heat utilisation ratio. For high-power
motors, it adopts variable frequency control technology to reduce
self-consumed electricity and increase the on-grid electricity output.
Waste-to-energy incineration, as an important means to achieve
“reduction, recycling and harmlessness”, efficiently converts thermal
energy from incineration into electricity, effectively avoiding wastage
of resources. The Group adopts advanced operating technology during
the incineration process, enhances the thermal insulation performance
of the equipment and significantly improves energy reuse efficiency
through secondary thermal energy recovery technology. Moreover,
precise metering devices for electricity and water are installed at the
energy supply accesses to accurately measure the resources used,

enabling precise control of consumption and minimization of waste.

For energy consumption in the wastewater treatment process, in
order to improve energy utilization efficiency, the Group focuses on
technological upgrading and transformation of core equipment with
high energy consumption and low efficiency, such as lifting pumps,
air blowers and sludge dewatering systems, to enhance their energy
utilization levels. In addition, the Group continues to invest in research
and development and actively promotes new green technologies,
aiming at reducing energy consumption across the entire process.
In the process of water supply, the Group continues to innovate
production technology and improve the production management
system to increase energy efficiency and water production rate,
thereby achieving efficient operation and optimal energy allocation in
its water supply business.
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The total energy consumption intensity of the Group decreased in
2024 as compared to 2023 due to the decrease in the number of
wastewater treatment projects. The Group’s energy consumption

performance is summarised as follows:

HEREAEE

MR KEEIER MBERD
AEBE T _NFHRRER
HEREML T _=FFMT
P o A& B H AL RIEFE R E B
wr

Type of energy Unit 2024 2023
BERER B “E-NEF —ZT-=
Direct energy consumption

BERRER

Petrol kWh 32,306.50 N/A
b FRE AN

Indirect energy consumption

s IR B

Electricity kWh 476,504,262.26  484,894,018.39
BN TR

Total energy consumption kWh 476,504,262.26  484,894,018.39
BERHEAER FEE

Total energy consumption intensity kWh/m? 86.71 86.87
EREREERE TR, FHK

WATER CONSUMPTION KB EFE

The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply
problems and provides them with healthy and sufficient tap water. As
the Group's water supply business diverts water from natural water
bodies after obtaining approval from the local government, there is no
problem in obtaining suitable water sources. In 2024, the volume of
water sold by the Group amounted to approximately 222,135,133.00
m?3 and the volume of wastewater treated by the Group amounted
to approximately 636,412,181.00 m? (2023: the volume of water
sold by the Group amounted to approximately 254,118,800.00 m?
and the volume of wastewater treated by the Group amounted to
approximately 662,480,599.00 m?). The Group requires all its operating
projects to use reclaimed water for flushing and cooling equipment if
permitted and to use reclaimed water for all greenery in factories and
office areas, so as to reduce water consumption during the production
process. To further reduce water consumption, the Group strives to
maximize water recycling in its wastewater treatment facilities, and

uses reclaimed water as flushing water in some toilets.

REBEPTRAMENRBBR
KERHHEABEE  BRITIEH
REE - ZHOBERK - BAEER
MK E S S BT R BE
BRI BARKEES|IK - FIEATER
BEAKREAGFERE - A&
ER-_ZTZ_MFEFNEKELNA
222,135,133.0032 75K » M52k
BB 8% 5636,412,181.003
FR(ZEZZ=ZF: EKEHNA
254,118,800.00 37 J5 3K » 357K
B2 8 4 £662,480,599.00 3L
FoRK) e AEEEKREZEBEEAE
FHEESEAFEEANEABRL
IEREEITPEFZ A B2
R AEEERKEBEABE
Ko ABEREEBRREFHKER
HFE - BiE— R AKE - K
EESKEEREAKESHR
BIRAA - W5 5 AR
IKERFABAEK o
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A3.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & 7K 7 % %

The total water consumption intensity of the Group in 2024 was
basically the same as in 2023. The water consumption performance of

the Group is summarised as follows:

AEBRE=ZZ=

MENFEKEE

BEBAL T _=ZFEAFF-
NS B e KRR T

Type of water Unit 2024 2023
AXKER B —EZNF —E=F
Reclaimed water m?3 13,017,481.82 13,268,224.37
BAERK 3K

Tap water m3 18,571,648.32 17,782,144.23
SRV 7K

Total water consumption m3 31,589,130.14 31,050,368.60
BEkAE K

Water consumption intensity m3/m? 5.75 5.56
FRBE SRS TR

USE OF PACKAGING MATERIALS BEHBEH

As an environmental-friendly water service enterprise, the Group does
not use packaging materials during the daily course of its business

operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT MANAGEMENT

The construction of environmental protection projects will inevitably
have a certain degree of impact on the environment and natural
resources. In view of this, the Group considers such impact as one
of the key factors when making investment decisions. The Group
performs evaluations of the environmental impact on all construction
projects according to relevant laws and regulations. The Group applies
for environmental “three simultaneous” acceptance checks after the
project has been put into operation to ensure that the construction
and operation of all projects meet the requirements of the relevant
laws, regulations and policies. Besides, the Group has also developed
comprehensive systems and procedures to monitor and manage the
environmental impact of all construction projects in an all-round
manner in order to effectively avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources, and to minimise the negative impact of the Group's business
operation on the environment, thus achieving sustainable development
and creating long-term value for the Group's stakeholders and
communities.

& R% 5 A R A7 Annual Report 2024 F[E #&
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In terms of the wastewater treatment business, as the treated
wastewater will be ultimately discharged to the natural environment,
the Group strictly adheres to the processing requirements during
project operation to guarantee the stable quality of treated water
which meets the standard and minimise the impact of wastewater
on the environment. Meanwhile, the Group has strengthened the
maintenance and repair of drainage pipelines and wastewater
treatment equipment to ensure the integrity and normal operation of
pipelines and equipment and to eliminate accidental discharge. Once
abnormal problems are found, the Group will promptly contact and
report to the environmental protection department truthfully.

The Group also attaches great importance to the treatment of
pollutants including flue gas, liquid waste, odour and equipment noise
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes a series of
effective control measures for various pollutants. These measures have
not only successfully eliminated the environmental pollution caused
by solid wastes, but also played a positive role in protecting water and

soil. The specific treatment measures are as follows:

1. In addition to fly ash, flue gas also contains harmful substances
including NO,, sulphur dioxide (“SO,"), hydrogen chloride
("HCI"), heavy metals and dioxins. The major and seriously
harmful substances are organic substances including dioxins,
which are primarily controlled with the economical and efficient
"3T+E"” technology.

2. After being treated by the professional wastewater treatment
system specifically set up in the plant, the liquid waste will
be reused as reclaimed water for purposes such as greening
irrigation and road cleaning.

3. For odour, the Group adopts effective measures, including using
it as combustion-supporting gas, or adsorbing and filtering it
with activated carbon adsorption devices, to ensure compliance
with relevant air quality standards.

RIE A MEIRARE
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REERMPFRERREZHE
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IKE BRI R 2 RE 8
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BERET  HEBEHEHMN -
—BERAFTHBE  AEEETL
BIERRALPIEVS B BRI I B [E
i -

AEE RS EEREREREBIE
MEEZER  EBR  REER
BRBESRMBETIE I
HYEBIBLYRET — RHTT
ZEBHRIBEE - BEEBET
ERIER T EIRERMEIRE
ZaH - TREKEE R IR RE
BT EBNEEER - AR
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A4,

For the thermal pollution generated the during production process,
the Group has adopted advanced thermal insulation material within
the reporting scope to provide the heat generation equipment with
thermal insulation treatment in order to ensure that the heat source
point meets the requirements of the operation standard.

For the noise pollution generated during the production process, the
Group has installed blimps for the noise-generating equipment and
fully utilised the sound-absorbing and noise-reducing properties of
green plants according to function zoning, so that the noise emission
can meet the relevant standards. The Group has also formulated
a completed job post system and detailed operating procedures,
strengthened the maintenance and management of noisy equipment,
paid close attention to the effectiveness of equipment operation
conditions and noise reduction measures, found and solved problems
in time, and ensured the stable and normal function of noise control

measures.

Climate Change

Climate change poses escalating risks and challenges to the global
economy, which may also negatively affect the operations and
services of the Group. Therefore, the Group deeply understands the
importance of identifying and mitigating any significant impacts of
climate change. In accordance with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") established
by the Financial Stability Board, the management of the Group has
assessed and is aware of climate-related physical risks and transition
risks that have impacts on the Group’s business, and has taken
corresponding management measures. Based on the assessment
results, the Group has incorporated climate risks into internal control
processes to manage and review climate-related risks and seize related

opportunities.
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CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS

Type of risks
kil

Description of risks

LB

RE g kEnoms
AR 1658 /71 Bz

Countermeasures

&

Physical risks (acute)

Physical risks (chronic)

ERRR(EE)

Transition risks (policy
and regulations)

BRRR(BREEER)

The increasing frequency and intensity of
extreme weather events (such as extremely
cold, extremely hot, storms, heavy rains and
typhoons) may lead to interruptions or damages
in the operation of water supply and wastewater
treatment facilities, resulting in reduction in
productivity, interruption of the supply chain,
asset losses, increase in repair costs, and even
casualties.

BmRREM (NEE - B2 H% N3P
e/ 55 ) 3 A SR R BRGR T ERTIE AN - ATAR K
K BRI R S @$%i%ﬁ ERE
BE TR - fREEsEh e AERK - BERAE
m-EEABBTEER -

Climate change leads to long-term temperature
rise and changes in precipitation patterns,
affecting the stability and operating costs of
water supply business.

RIFSEEHRARET S - BRERRE
FEPKEBOREEREEMA -

In order to achieve the goals of “carbon
emission peak by 2030, carbon neutrality by
2060", the Chinese government has gradually
introduced and strengthened greenhouse gas
emission control policies and mandatory carbon
trading regulations, which may lead to an
increase in operating costs of enterprises and an
increase in compliance pressure.
FEIG RER 2030 EE - 2060k B
2 BHHARMBEERBHRESIBE -
RHTRR S EEREN AR EREESEN
REM - SREH LT o

o Develop and regularly update the
business continuity plan to ensure rapid
recovery of operations in the event of
extreme weather conditions

o Conduct regular climate resilience
assessments of assets and facilities, and
take necessary enhancement measures
(such as facility enhancements and
upgrading of disaster warning systems)

. %Eimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂ BRI
HRBREERERRRES

o TEHETEESRER mmﬁ\ﬂﬁﬁﬁ "
B Er b #EiE (R - =BAK
EEERR)

o Regularly monitor climate trends and
changes in water resources to adjust the
operation strategy

o Improve water resource management
efficiency by promoting water-saving
technologies and water recycling

solutions

o THEARRBZEKERE(L  HEL
E R

o RIVKBREEMCE - HEEEHIKEM EK
BEREMAMA S E

o Regularly monitor and analyze the trend

of changes in policies and regulations,
proactively communicate with regulatory
authorities, and respond to policy
changes in advance

o EHENYSNBIERE(BE D
HEERBRTAR  RAONERKENL
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B LB REARE

Type of risks

gl

Description of risks

LB i

Countermeasures

FEi 1 e

Transition risks (market)

B AR

Transition risks (reputation)

(h

%)

As stakeholders (such as investors and
customers) pay increasing attention to corporate
climate performance, failure to promptly
respond to market demands may affect an

enterprise’s market competitiveness.

AR (NRAE - BF)HRERRRR
AW ERERBEETSEL  Ti
YELETBEEN -

If an enterprise fails to meet the expectations
of stakeholders on climate-related issues, or
fails to comply with regulatory requirements, it
may suffer reputational damage, or even face
litigation or financial risks.

ACFARREBEERARENDER TS

2 RN EEER  THslRBRER
E EE5|BHARYBRER -

Strengthen climate-related information
disclosures to meet the relevant
requirements of the Stock Exchange’s
ESG Reporting Guide, enhancing
transparency and credibility

Raise employees’ climate awareness and
incorporate climate-related considerations
into corporate decision-making and daily

operations

nsg mARAEREEAIKE - mEBMIMESG
WMERBER  RABAFTEAEE
REEIREGEEHE BSREHEEZEMA
CEARLNATRSE

Reqularly review and strengthen

the enterprise’s internal control and
compliance mechanisms to avoid
reputational risks due to non-compliance
Maintain effective communication with
stakeholders and respond promptly to
concerns about climate-related issues
Establish a sound ESG governance
mechanism, regularly review climate-
related performance, and disclose it
publicly

TR R b (bR NI R A R
ERREFMIIHBERR

REEFZEESOEREE - REOE
SIREERE Y
RIUEEMESGREIS  THERR

R SINGE$

In addition, in order to reduce the Group’s environmental impact

and meet the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the Group has set

targets related to energy consumption and GHG emissions. The Group

will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of its actions on climate

change and enhance its capacity to address climate-related issues.
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CLIMATE-RELATED OPPORTUNITIES

Type of opportunities
HEER

Description of opportunities

BRI

IRIE -
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It“"li kv&#&n:

TR B

Countermeasures and actions

Y RRTE

Product and service

innovation
Em B R EIET

Market expansion

and business growth

mEhRERFER

Climate resilience
and adaptability

RARED 1 ELE e BE 1)

Climate change drives the transformation

of market demand, with increasing demand
for green, low-carbon products and services,
providing development space for innovative

products and services of the Group.

RIRZCESTERREL - BREERER
EERBHERBSIEN  REAEB A ER SR
R BR=ER

Under the “dual carbon” policy, governments
at all levels vigorously promote the green
transformation and upgrading of infrastructure,
bringing more market opportunities for the
Group, driving business scale expansion, and
further consolidating its market competitive
position.
[EHIBGET - SRR R NS AR
FEBHNETRLNE  REEATREZTHE
g HEEBAEREL  E—SEETSERT
L -

Climate change brings more demand for
resilience building, including disaster prevention
and mitigation facilities, as well as upgrades to
wastewater and water supply systems, providing
new business opportunities for the Group.

ﬁ@?MﬁXE%@ﬁ@&%A B SOR
KR KRR ERIARRE - AAEE
kﬁﬁ%%%%%°

Increase investment in independent
research and development to launch new
low-carbon, energy-saving, and eco-
friendly products and services

Leverage the advantages of professional
core technologies in the fields of
membrane materials, wastewater
treatment, and solid and hazardous
waste treatment to expand eco-friendly
products, services, and solutions
MABERBERA - HHER - &ae - R
R 87 8 2 G B PR 7S
BEEMH KGR - BERERERE
BHMNEERLRMED  ARRRVE
m o RIGERT R

Actively participate in government-led
green infrastructure projects to expand
business footprint

Seize market demand in South Asia and
Southeast Asia to drive international
business expansion

RER2ARFTENEEERRIERE
hEZEBIRE
MEMEMREEMSHER - HHEERE
BmshE

Launch climate-adaptive and resilience-

enhancing solutions and services, such

as disaster-resilient water supply facilities

and reinforced wastewater treatment

infrastructure

Strengthen technological innovation to

enhance the climate adaptability and

competitiveness of products and services

e e RAR B SIE R RIRE ML AR
FRERT - i KK - s&1EEK

BRIRER RS
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With the global consensus on the goals of “carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality”, the Group, as a leading integrated urban environmental
service provider, has ushered in unprecedented development
opportunities. The Group has seized the market opportunities and
new pattern, constantly explored and innovated, independently
developed a number of patents, and realised the great leap forward
development from Yunnan to the whole country. In the fields of
water supply, wastewater, membrane materials, solid waste, medical
waste and hazardous waste, the Group has also completed the whole
industrial chain layout and project reserve, and has its own competitive
advantages such as policy support, market-oriented management
team and professional core technology. The Group is committed to be
integrated environmental services provider at the municipal level based
in Yunnan, covering the nation and moving towards to South Asia and
Southeast Asia, with core technology, strong investment and financing
capacities, core competitiveness and social influence.

B. SOCIAL

272

B1.

Employment

Employees are the precious and most valuable asset of the Group
and the core of its competitive advantage. Therefore, the success of
the Group depends heavily on the ability to attract, train and retain
employees. The Group adheres to the people-oriented philosophy,
respects and protects the legitimate rights and interests of every
employee, strictly regulates labour and employment management, and

ensures employees’ occupational health and safety.

The Group has also formulated a series of personnel management
policies in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to protect the
vital interests of employees. The Group fully respects its employees and
highly values the enthusiasm and creativity of employees, aiming to
build a harmonious employment relationship, create a healthy, positive,
and sunny working atmosphere, and to guide employees to actively
integrate their personal pursuits into the long-term development goals
of the Group.
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The Group has fully complied with all laws and regulations related
to salary compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other treatment package and benefits, including
but not limited to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Labour
Security Supervision Regulations in the People’s Republic of China, and
laws and regulations of other applicable regions. In 2024, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant labour
laws and regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has a total of 4,982 (as at 31
December 2023: 5,586) employees within the reporting scope of the
Report, all of whom are full-time employees. Employees by gender,
age group and region are as follows:

RIE A MEIRARE

REBE 2 WET A S K E
L BEREN TER
#2oREY FE#E Z
SRR A B E At 55 38 B 4R B 2 0%
BRAH HPhBFEAETRRY
(REARAMBRBE)
EARAMBARIE) - (PEA
RAMB LA RE)R(SFR
FRERIEH]) - AREAMERBE
ZERRBY - RZFE_MF
AEFRTARBFENERERRS
ITHBEGRESR - BHAEE
ERBEAFEZEN -

BHE-_Z2-_mM&E+=—ZA=+—
B AEERAFEHEERNS L
4982 % EE(HEZE_T_=F
+—A=+—H8:5586%)
BEBES - EBEEMR - Fik
AR RMEHEI ST :

As at As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
BE-Z-@OF HE—T-=F
Number of employees EEA™ +=—HA=+-—H +=ZA=+—8H
By gender LU Bl &l 5
Male B 3,297 3,708
Female 4 1,685 1,878
By age group LS e 4E Bl 81
30 years old or under 30 EA T 928 1,009
31-40 years old 31 £ 405% 2,032 2,105
41-50 years old 41 ZE503% 1,394 1,554
51 years old or above 515k A £ 628 918
By region Ui E &5
The PRC G 4,615 5,204
Hong Kong B 10 8
Others HAth 357 374
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RECRUITMENT, PROMOTION, REWARD AND DISMISSAL

In terms of staff recruitment, the Group carries out open social
recruitment following the principles of fairness, equality, competition
and merit-based selection, and makes overall assessment and
recruitment on a selective basis. The Group also recruits excellent
college students through campus recruitment, and helps college
students strive hard towards their career goals under the professional
and all-round talent development mechanism. After employees are
hired, the Group enters into labour contracts with employees in strict
compliance with labour laws and regulations to effectively protect
rights and interests of employees.

The Group has established an employee performance appraisal system
that covers employee performance, competencies, attitudes, etc., and
appropriately applies the appraisal results to employee performance
pay, promotion and salary adjustments. In order to create a healthy,
diversified and inclusive working environment, all promotion, salary
review and position transfer decisions are based on the individual
performance of employees and the business conditions of the Group
for objective consideration.

In 2024, the Group’s overall turnover rate was approximately 16.00%
(2023: approximately 22.00%). The employee turnover rates by
gender, age group and region are as follows:
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Employee turnover rates’ EERAR" —EB-OF —T==
Male El 17.02% 23.71%
Female g 14.01% 18.64%
By age group? DL iR 4E Bl B 5 2
30 years old or under 30 AT 32.97% 34.39%
31-40 years old 31 = 4055 12.75% 20.43%
41-50 years old 41 E50 3% 13.92% 15.77%
51 years old or above 51 BRI £ 6.05% 22.55%
By region LAtth & & 5
The PRC e 15.77% 23.48%
Hong Kong BB 40.00% 12.50%
Others HAh 18.21% 1.60%
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REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

On the basis of evaluating the value of employees’ positions, the
Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
and benefits system based on its business strategy and with reference
to the industry level and regional level.

At the same time, the Group strictly abides by the relevant laws
and regulations of the applicable countries, continuously improves
employee benefits and reviews the working hours of employees. The
Group pays various statutory social insurances according to laws,
and ensures that employees can enjoy statutory holidays and other
benefits. In addition, employees are entitled to paid annual leave,
wedding leave, maternity leave and other holidays.

Overall turnover rate = X =~ Y X100%

X = Total number of employees leaving employment during the year
Y = Total number of employees at the end of the year

Employee turnover rate in the category = X =Y X 100%

X = Number of employees leaving employment in the category during the year
Y = Number of employees in the category at the end of the year

RIE A MEIRARE
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Case Study: The Warmth Delivery Campaign During New Year’s Day and Spring Festival
BRHE : TH  FHEXBEREE

To thoroughly put the care and concern of the Group's Party Committee for employees into practice, and actively practice
the people-oriented philosophy, the Group launched a warmth delivery campaign during the New Year’s Day and Spring
Festival in 2024, effectively extending care to the Group's grassroots units and the homes of its employees.
RANEREZEEFEZHRBRINEEEAR BRETUARANES  —ZT_HFH  FHHM  AEBEREZXR
RERES  VEMEEENEEEENBEIRF -

On 24 January 2024, the management of the Group led a care team to visit Zhenxiao Environmental, a subsidiary of
Yunnan Water, where they paid home visits and extended care to families of employees in need. The team gained detailed
insight into their working and living conditions, as well as their actual needs. During the home visits, the team learned
of an employee with a disability who, since joining the company in 2018, has remained committed to the frontlines of
medical waste collection and transportation. Especially during the three-year COVID-19 prevention and control period, the
employee safely drove collection and transportation vehicles for a total of over 300,000 kilometers, achieving a remarkable
record of “zero accidents”, “zero errors”, and “zero infections”, and demonstrating a strong sense of responsibility and
outstanding professionalism.

ZENF-AZTNHA  SEEEEXENEA—TRAZTEKEE T ERRRAR  EHHFARBEBRIRE - AR
MEMSBINIE  £ERARERT K - HHATEAPEMPEN  —FREBRITHFEER BT — \FABMUK -
BRBRTPEREEYRESE —REL FHAREEBEHE=ZFH RHAR2ERBEEREBI0ELE  AIT[EHH]
[ZEE [ TRAINREEE - KRBHSENETRMBERSR -

The care team highly praised the employee’s professionalism and dedication, presented him with holiday consolation
money and gifts, and encouraged him to maintain a positive and optimistic attitude and face challenges in life bravely.
They also urged him to reflect any needs to the Group in a timely manner. The Group will continue to pay attention to
employees’ practical needs and provide comprehensive support and assistance.
MEEAREETETZBINEXERZSMERFE X THANER S ARG  SBERBEGLEHNLE  BREHE
ERREE - WTBEIMBEERFREERYE  SESRFEMIBRINRESR R  EBHE2FUNIFEED) -

At the same time, the Campaign was also extended to another 67 employees in need across the Group, delivering
consolation money and gifts, and Spring Festival blessings, allowing employees to deeply feel the warmth of our Yunnan
Water family and ensuring a joyful and peaceful Spring Festival. The Group pays close attention to the group of employees
in need, effectively addressing their most pressing and practical concerns, continuously enhancing their sense of happiness,
fulfillment, and belonging, and fostering a warm, harmonious, and uplifting corporate atmosphere.

HPRE  AREMEHEEMEEEMe7 EREBRIRE  RbMEXEEHS  BEQMIENE  BERBIRY
REFNEEAREARE  BREIMEB AL  FNNREEEH AEETYETRSEBIHE JERABIR
Al ZBREORE THRABINZ=ED  ESBRNSBBERK - SFEARME  BERm ENCENE -
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Case Study: International Women’s Day Themed Activities
BRME : ERE B EEES

On the occasion of the 114th International Women's Day, the Group organized a variety of themed activities to
demonstrate its commitment to gender equality and employee well-being.

EEN4ERRELEHREZE  AEEASRETZHRENTREY  BURBREEHMHTSE  ETRUNEE -

The labour union of Yunnan Water Headquarters organized a handmade essential oil soap-making activity, which not only
enabled female employees to experience the joy of crafting but also enhanced communication and collaboration among
them. The labour union of Shandong Environmental hosted a hiking event on Women'’s Day, encouraging employees to
embrace the outdoors, enjoy the natural beauty of spring, and promote their physical and mental well-being through
this activity. The labour union of Yuxi Clean arranged a spring outing on Women'’s Day, allowing employees to immerse
themselves in nature, embrace the spirit of spring, and relieve work-related stress in a relaxed and enjoyable atmosphere,
thereby strengthening team cohesion. The labour unions of the Dehong-Baoshan region jointly launched an ecological
environmental protection initiative on Women'’s Day, practicing the concept on environmental protection through practical
actions and contributing to the protection of the ecological environment.

EHABABIERR TRHMEFIERERS  MEBRLMETITMERD T FIRENEE - BI0E TR 2ERRE
S WRRRARIGURERTIZNIHE LRSI ERD  FBMEIEARIN EXEZTNEARESR  LHELESRE
EIHOERE : FEMMARAIGEBNI =N\ IHFREEEHOEETIMELERER  BEFERORLE - EEEMIORTE
HMEETIERN - BREKRESN  BRRULAFBREISHARRETIZ N\ SEERRRTY  NERTHETRRESR - &
RELRRSEEMBCHNNE -
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Case Study: Diverse Activities Held by Yunnan Water’s Subsidiaries to Celebrate Dragon Boat Festival, Passing
on the Culture while Building Camaraderie
BRHE  ERABTBENSEEBERT EACHERE

During the Dragon Boat Festival, subsidiaries of Yunnan Water actively organized and carried out a series of themed
activities rich in traditional cultural characteristics. These activities aimed to promote outstanding traditional Chinese
culture, strengthen the cohesion and employees’ sense of belonging, within the enterprises and create a favorable
corporate atmosphere.

EmFEHEE SRKBEENBEAREREBZIFNRET —FRIEFERAXLFEENTIEEY - EELBTERFTERX
£ BRACEABNRENEETHRBER  SERINGENTAE -

Huize Water (Sishui) Company Limited hosted an event under the theme “Enjoying the Dragon Boat Festival and Passing on
the Culture”, where employees were invited to make zongzi and scented sachets by hand, deepening their understanding
and appreciation of traditional festival culture through hands-on experience. Shandong Environmental Protection
Industry Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (Il ERREFXZEAEEBRAF]) held diversified Dragon Boat Festival
celebrations with enthusiastic employee participation, which enhanced their understanding of the cultural significance
of the festival through the experience of traditional customs, while strengthening their recognition of corporate culture
and values. Yingde Yunshui Water Co., Ltd. (H{EBZE/KKFEBR A A]) organized a Dragon Boat Festival event titled “A
Joyful Dragon Boat Festival Filled with the Rich Aroma of Zongzi”, featuring interactive activities such as collective zongzi-
making and a Dragon Boat Festival knowledge quiz to foster communication and collaboration among employees, further
enhancing team cohesion and corporate unity. The labour union of Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. (K E XL EBR
73 A]) carried out an event themed “Embracing the Dragon Boat Festival with Affection, United by Zongzi to Celebrate the

&

Festival”, proactively distributing festive care packages to employees, reinforcing its bridging role between the enterprise
and its staff, enhancing employees’ satisfaction and sense of belonging, and effectively improving their overall well-being
and workplace happiness.

BEKBONK)BERARAI @K F - EANBIRTE  HFETHRFRERTREE  FRERIPINMCETHE
FEAXEHERERR  ILRERREERBEERERAAERNZ TR TEHEETS  ETEG2HEES - FHESR
BRMEER  RESTEIRTH VERRNRE - MREHPEVCREEBRNRR  RESKKEBERARME TS
ST RREREBINIRTES  FREEBERT HmTFAZAREZLHEA  RESIHRNRESE  E—FR
FEFBREDECEROS  KEEXEREBERAFNIGARRTIERGT 8K 0HmFTES  TBRETELH

BREYE RETITSFEACEABRT 7 HBEERNAE RABINHRERERER  AREEETRIENIBISER

Through this series of diverse Dragon Boat Festival events, the Group actively fulfilled its corporate social responsibility,
dedicated to the inheritance and promotion of traditional cultural values, strengthening team cohesion, and continuously
fostering a caring, harmonious, and inclusive corporate culture, thereby driving sustainable development.
BRBTHN RIS T  AEEERETEELSER  BMONEAEBEEESRUCEE  BRECEBRES @ #
BEEMEET  MEHARONCEUERE  UHSHARHEER -
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group has strictly complied with relevant national and local
government laws and regulations, adopted a fair, just and open
recruitment process, and formulated relevant systems to eliminate
discrimination in the recruitment process. The Group will not
discriminate against any employee due to factors such as race, gender,
colour, age, family background, national tradition, religious beliefs,
physical fitness and nationality, so that employees can enjoy fair
treatment at all stages of recruitment, salary, training, promotion,
termination of labour contracts and retirement, and we also try our
best to recruit professionals with different backgrounds to join the
Group.

The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities in all aspects
and maintaining diversity of employees, and also strongly prohibits any
unfair treatment.

Health and Safety

The Group regards employees as extremely important assets and
therefore attach great importance to occupational health and safety
management in the entire process of production and operation.
The Group has fully complied with all laws and regulations related
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards, including but not limited to the Safety
Production Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Disease, the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Special Equipment Safety Law of the People’'s Republic
of China, the Special Equipment Safety Supervision Regulations and
the Hazardous Chemicals Safety Management Regulations, and the
laws and regulations of other applicable regions. Up to now, the
Group has not been aware of any major non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to health and safety that have a significant impact
on the Group. Meanwhile, no work-related fatality accidents have been
recorded during the past three years (including 2024), and the number
of working days lost due to work-related injuries in 2024 was 135. As
of the end of the Reporting Period, all injury cases of employees have
been properly addressed.
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Year 2022 2023 2024
14 = —E=F —E-F
Fatalities 0 0 0
FTAH

Work-related injuries 1 0 1
ERCYN -

Lost workdays 598 0 135
BAIFNEH

In terms of operation management, the Group has implemented
the safe production responsibility at each level, actively carried out
hazard identification and risk assessment, and strengthened hazardous
operation management. Safety inspections are conducted regularly in
an all-out effort to eliminate hidden safety hazards at the production
site and prevent the occurrence of safety production accidents. During
the project construction stage, the Group is committed to fulfilling
the safety responsibilities of the owner, and has formulated a series
of safety measures and policies to enhance safety monitoring in order
to ensure construction safety and provide its staff with a safe working
environment.

The Group has effectively implemented the following measures to
create and maintain a safe working environment for employees:

1. Set up a safety management organisation in accordance with
relevant regulations;

2. Hire safety engineers with national registration qualifications;
3. Appoint professional safety management personnel;
4. Formulate management policies and targets covering safety,

quality and environment;

5. Establish a comprehensive safety management system and
system;
6. Compile and publish a comprehensive emergency response

and rescue plan for production safety accidents and a special
emergency response plan for safety accidents;
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7. Establish a safety production committee and hold regular
meetings to conduct in-depth research, deploy and solve
problems in the production safety management process to
ensure the effectiveness of relevant procedures.

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND QUALITY TRAINING

The Group actively promotes safety training and education for the staff
to continuously enhance the professional skills and safety awareness of
the staff. The Group distributes labour protection supplies to its staff
on time in accordance with its labour protection supplies management
system. In addition, it organises regular health checks every year for
its staff in order to prevent them from being exposed to occupational
hazards in their daily work and reduce the risk of occupational
diseases.

The Group has also formulated a series of emergency plans to deal
with emergencies, such as the Comprehensive Emergency Plan for
Production Safety Accidents and the Emergency Plan for Sudden
Environmental Incidents, etc. At the same time, it is required to
organise at least one flood prevention drill training activity every year.
The fire and earthquake prevention equipment and facilities shall
be inspected at least once a year to ensure that they are all in good
condition. We strive to improve the ability of employees to deal with
emergencies through emergency drills for production safety accidents.
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Case Study: Safety Production Work Arrangement Meeting
BRHE : R2EETHHES

At the beginning of 2024, the Group organized the Early 2024 Safety Production Work Arrangement Meeting, during
which the management of the Group put forward five requirements to ensure the effective implementation of the
Company'’s recent safety production work:

—ECNEY - AREABER T -_NMEFVNLREEIFENES  ASEEEERMARATERAT S EETFIREER
1875 &K

1. Raise awareness and thoroughly implement the work requirements of superiors.
1. ReR#E AABBEELRAIESER.
Strengthen management and earnestly enforce the safety production responsibility system.
BILER  RAZRERIEERMEN -
Learn from past accidents and enhance awareness of safety risks.
RARR BRI - ERT 2 EAREH -
4. Conduct in-depth investigations and rectification of potential hazards to promptly eliminate accident risks.

4. FARERBEHERE  REHEBREHEE -

Strengthen on-duty arrangements and strengthen emergency rescue management.

BRETEHET - BCESIBEE -

Case Study: “On Duty During May Day, Safety Never Takes a Holiday”
BRMR  [E—HERRETHR]

To ensure production safety and stable operation during the “May Day” holiday in 2024, the Group made early
arrangements and implemented multiple safety management measures, including pre-holiday safety inspections, specialized
training, enhanced emergency management, and improvements for accident prevention mechanisms, to proactively prevent
various safety risks and ensure uninterrupted public services.

RER-Z_NFII - IBRHAAENEELZ2REERT  ASERANMBLZELELEEERK  SREHNLER
T HEE - ERERRLCLEHNERITES  BRBZAR2RR I BERD KRBT HE -

All subsidiaries of the Group, based on their own business characteristics, conducted in-depth analyses of current safety
production conditions, carried out targeted safety training, and refined various emergency response plans. All units
conducted comprehensive inspections for hidden hazards in key facilities and critical areas, and implemented timely
rectification measures to nip problems in the bud. For water supply projects, the Group further intensified patrols and
maintenance efforts for water supply pipeline networks and supporting facilities, assigned dedicated personnel to inspect
key water supply equipment on a daily basis, and promptly carried out leak repair operations to reduce the water loss rate
of the water supply pipeline network, thereby ensuring the stability and reliability of regional water supply services.
SEEMBARSHAFEBREY  RAOMRZEER K - HESHENZE2FI - TACITERSIER - SEMHEH
RRE BHRNETEIERIHE - REEEBIUER - BHERKRA - fUKEBFE - SEE - FNaEHKERRE
EREHKERLEENE  THEABHKREHMKERE - URENITRKBEIEE  BHKERKEX  JERER
KBRS IR E B A] 5% o
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B3. Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the establishment of its
internal management training and development system. Through
diversified training modes such as induction training, management
training, technical training and pre-job training, we meet the different
needs of employees at all levels and types, aiming to improve their
skills so that they can continue to provide high-quality services and
assist the Group in its sustainable development, meanwhile assisting
employees in their personal growth and development.

In 2024, the Group has approximately 67.84%' (2023: approximately
74.49%) of the trained employees within the reporting scope of this
Report, and each employee completed approximately 14.04 hours?
(2023: approximately 29.69 hours) of training on average. The
distribution of trained employees?, and the average training hours
completed per employee* by gender and employee category are as
follows:
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B3.

Zi& k\Ai}i&m

BRERIEI
REBZEESEANIERIT M
HREZMEY  BBABE
A BEABEI - FITA B
ANF AT F IS Z e FIIER
RMEESRSEEINTRE
ko RABIREE  FEIESN
BEREREENRE  BEPAX
EEETAHERE  FABE
BTEAKRKRKRER -

a%(fg =% %@29.694%)
Mgl - BURIREEERE D
WEIMEEDH  URBREEE
TSI FIRE AT ¢

Unit 2024 2023
4y “E-F —E_=F
Percentage of ZIEET DL
trained employees % 67.84 74.49
By gender BRI &S
Male E5): % 66.95 64.31
Female 2 % 33.05 35.69
By employee category REEERES
Senior management BRERE % 3.99 0.17
Middle management PAREEE % 8.93 2.57
General staff —MET % 87.08 97.26
Unit 2024 2023
1V —E-NF i
Average training hours FEZHIRFE N 14.04 29.69
By gender R &85
Male Bt NS 14.70 27.57
Female it /INB 12.74 33.90
By employee category REEERE S
Senior management SRERE N 16.38 49.00
Middle management RRERE N 15.28 32.67
General staff —fRET N 13.84 29.59
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TRAINING MANAGEMENT

The Group provides induction training programs regularly for new staff
to help them integrate into the enterprise, covering corporate culture,
internal rules and regulations, etc. The Group’s staff receives different
types of regular training according to their roles and responsibilities.

In 2024, each department organized specialized training separately:
the financial center conducted accounting training. The safety
management department carried out safety education and training.
The operation center focused on training on plant operation and
process details management. The internal control department held
special lectures on corporate asset trading, investment and financing
legal affairs, and legal risk prevention and control.

The Group develops comprehensive training programmes for its
staff according to the characteristics of their positions in order to
foster employee growth and achieve mutual development between
employees and the enterprise. The Group provides professional safety
technical training for personnel in special jobs such as boiler and
pressure vessel operation. Employees need to pass the examination
of relevant departments and obtain a qualified operation certificate
before they can be allowed to operate independently within the
validity period. In addition, on-duty personnel in special types of jobs

must receive regular safety education to ensure work safety.
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Percentage of trained employees = X = Y X100%

X = Total number of trained employees for the year
Y = Total number of employees at the end of the year

Average training hours per employee = X =+ Y

X = Total number of training hours for trained employees for the year
Y = Total number of employees at the end of the year

Distribution of trained employees in the category = X =Y X 100%

X = Number of trained employees in the category for the year
Y = Total number of trained employees for the year

Average training hours in the category = X + Y

X = Number of training hours for employees in the category for the year
Y = Number of employees in the category at the end of the year
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Case Study: Specialized Training on Compensation Design and Management
BRE : HMRTEEEEEE

To systematically enhance employees’ professional capabilities and strengthen the internal governance level of the
enterprise, the Group organized a specialized training on compensation design and management during the Reporting
Period. External experts in human resource management were invited to deliver the training, with a total of 183
management personnel and key business staff from various levels of the Company participating in.

The training course was tailored to the Company’s actual needs and provided an in-depth explanation of the fundamental
principles, procedures, and methods of compensation design. Through concrete practical case studies, it analyzed common
issues and challenges encountered in the compensation management process in detail, while also proposing corresponding
solutions and measures to help employees gain a deeper understanding of the practical applications and best practices of
compensation management.

This specialized training not only enhanced employees’ professional knowledge of compensation management and
improved their relevant business skills, but also provided effective guidance and support for further standardizing and
rationalizing the enterprise’s internal compensation management.

RESGMRITETIEXE - BRIEEERIAIEKF - R|BEHAR - REBEBR T HU R RERZEIZI - BHIMDA
ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&# EXE“TTHF@W1%%AEAE&¥%E%/AEH

ARBIREEEDRERT R SHHFMRANERRE - RIBEFEFETRABR  TERBAREBREINFASITEH
MEEEREPERNOEBELKE - FSREARNFEAEZEER HHETRAERRFMEENEBEAERERR -
FPILREREY - TERECTEINFMEENZTERM  BA THEEBRE  bRCENBHFHERIIENE—F
R RAE(CRH T AERNIEGEIE -

Case Study: Short Video Production Skills Training
fERM SR : BIAE 5 HaEEF

In the context of the digital era, high-quality video content has become one of the important ways to enhance brand
image. To further improve employees’ video production capabilities, the Group organized a short video production skills
training during the Reporting Period. The training aimed to equip employees with cutting-edge video editing technologies
and core techniques, spark creative inspiration, and elevate the quality of brand promotion.

The training invited external senior experts in the field of professional visual design and production to lead the sessions.
The curriculum content comprehensively covered theoretical foundations and practical operations in short video production,
ranging from creative planning, storytelling techniques, shooting methods to post-production editing and sound design.
Participants gained in-depth knowledge of essential elements such as narrative techniques, transition designs, and sound
effects integration for videos of different styles, resulting in valuable insights and significant learning outcomes.
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Labour Standards
PREVENTION OF CHILD AND FORCED LABOUR

The Group strictly complies with all laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child labour or forced labour, including the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour in the People’s Republic of China, as well as
relevant legislation in other applicable regions. In 2024, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with child and forced
labour-related regulations that would have a significant impact on the

Group.

The Group has formulated specific policies to strictly prohibit child
labour and forced labour, and only hires employees who have reached
the legal age. New employees are required to provide true and
accurate personal information when entering employment, based on
which the Group will conduct background checks. Once any false
information is found, the applicant will not be hired. If any of these
are found to be illegal, the Group will immediately report them to the
regulatory authorities.

To eliminate child labour and forced labour, the Group conducts
regular audits and inspections across its operations. Employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis. At the same time, the Group firmly
opposes any behaviors that infringe upon employees’ rights and
interests, such as verbal abuse, corporal punishment, and sexual
harassment.
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Supply Chain Management
FAIR AND OPEN PROCUREMENT

In strict compliance with the provisions of the Tendering and Bidding
Law of the People’'s Republic of China and other relevant national
laws and regulations, as well as relevant legislation in other applicable
regions, the Group selects qualified suppliers through public bidding
on the public resource trading platform where the project is located.
The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures for Bidding
and Procurement and assigned dedicated personnel to be responsible
for procurement matters, aiming to regulate bidding and procurement
activities, improve the efficiency of fund use, and safeguard the
interests of the Group.

In accordance with the principles of unified management, legality and
comprehensive selection of the best, the Group conducts bidding for
all construction projects and procurement activities for goods, projects
and services. All personnel involved in bidding and procurement
management shall abide by the following regulations:

° Strictly implement the relevant laws and regulations of the state
and Yunnan Province on tendering and bidding management,
and adhere to the principle of “openness, fairness, justice,
honesty and credibility”;

° Strictly abide by procedures, act in accordance with regulations,
manage in accordance with the laws, and be honest and self-
disciplined;

. Comply with bidding and bid evaluation disciplines, and shall not
disclose any bidding information and materials that should be
kept confidential during the bidding and bid evaluation process;
and

° Strictly forbidden to split project and circumvent the Group's
bidding and procurement regulations.

Any violation of tendering and bidding laws and regulations and non-
compliance with bidding discipline shall be investigated, verified and
dealt with by the discipline inspection department of the Group. For
those that have not reached the bidding amount specified in the
Tendering and Bidding Law, the Group selects qualified suppliers by
bid invitation, competitive comparison or bid negotiation according to
the specific circumstances.
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Number of suppliers Unit 2024 2023
HEBEE By “E-NEF —T-=fF
The PRC Number 12 5
HE 18
Total number of suppliers Number 12 5
HEFEH 18
PROCUREMENT AND BIDDING PROCESS HRIBRIAERE
In accordance with the bidding process or comparative procurement REBZRRBRE(RE - KEEEHR
process stipulated in the Administrative Measures for Bidding and E)R BRI SR R LR R
Procurement of the Group, the Group has organised bidding or MR - REAEREEGRER
comparative procurement for those projects that have met the bidding ERAEEEEESLNERE
conditions and have been approved by the Group’'s management. THBRERLERE - IAEE
All of the major suppliers were evaluated and engaged through the THERMHORE DRERBEZ
procurement and bidding process mentioned above. The Group MIBEITRIGAER - AEEE
regularly reviews the relevant processes to ensure their effectiveness. EHEMEARE  UBRERES
Rt o
The following table sets out the simplified Bidding Flowchart of TRABZACERKBFRER
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited: BERRABBERREE)

Draw up bidding plan

BEBERR

The bidding and procurement department is responsible for providing various
approval documents required for bidding filing;

The bidding and procurement department compares and selects, entrusts a
bidding agency and a cost consulting company, and the project department
assists in reviewing the blocked bid price; and

The bidding agency prepares bidding documents, the bidding and procurement
department and the contract cost department review business documents, and
the project management centre and the technical risk control centre review
technical documents.

BERBREARHUHBERRABT IR

BERBHLE  ZRASRAEQRASEEAARR  HEANBGHHREELETE
% R

BERBARGRBEXM  BRRBALSREEREREB XY  BEEERHL
R B R A OB AR S o
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Bidding . Establish a pre-qualification assessment team to review the pre-qualification
documents under the supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;
. The assessment team issues a pre-qualification report; and
. Issue a notice of pre-qualification results.
ik o KUBREFNEF/NE HERBBEXNHETTE AREBALSNVEETEE
o  HIENABMEEREERE R
s  EHERBEHFERBH-

Bid winning . Form a bid evaluation committee to review the tendering documents under the
supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;
. The bid evaluation team issues a bid evaluation report; and
. Determine the bid winning results.
ik s HBRWERZEE® HRENMHESTTER HEERBRLAETEE
o RIERVABMEANERE R
o WMEPERER

End of bidding . The bidding and procurement department, the project management centre and
relevant departments clarify the key points of contract execution; and
. The bidding and procurement department assists the project manager of the
project department to establish a working relationship with the contractor.
BEER o BIFREN - BHAERED L REAMHERNTENETRIRE &
. BERENHEAAMEA SR EADHEY TIEHE -

The following table sets out the simplified Flowchart for Competitive Tﬁ%%ft?ﬁ:ﬁ@(ﬁﬁ$ﬁ%ﬁ’§ﬂ§

Comparison Procurement of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited: MBERR AT ML ERERE
&) :

Compare suppliers . The bidding and procurement department issues competitive comparison and

selection invitation documents to more than 3 suppliers based on the content
of the task handover form. Among them, the business conditions are drawn up
by the bidding and procurement department and the purchasing application
department, and the technical requirements are drawn up by the technology and
risk control centre or related departments; and

. The list of suppliers to be invited shall be jointly determined by the relevant
departments organised by the bidding and procurement department, reported to
the leaders in charge and the general manager for approval, and submitted to
the bidding supervision leading team for review.

HEMEH e HBEREFRBEABBRXENDTMAIRALHEmFHBFF L ERE X &
B ETSR T B B AR RS AT SRR B AE O PIHE - BT K e BT B A% L Sk AR RE
EPIHE - R

s HEB2NMNHERLEHMRERBHAGABIIIAREE  AREDEAGNE
KIEBETHE  ZBREOBEXAEREBAE/NEETES -
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Quotation and evaluation e

HERTE J
L]
L]
Contract confirmation o
SE®R .
Contract performance 3
[ ]
L]
L]
[ ]
ARHT :

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED & 7K 7 % %

After all quotations are collected, the bidding and procurement department will
organise the application department and relevant cooperation departments to
jointly open and review the bids under the supervision of the bidding supervision
leading team;

Adjust the quotation requirements, ask all parties to make the second quotation
on the same level; and

The bidding and procurement department organises the application department
and relevant cooperation departments to jointly review the second quotation
based on the same technical level, and select the top three.

ERBEER2E  BERREDEELREEBES/NMAEET - ARBF P REREE
& BPIHFEFRE R TE

AERBER - FEHER—KER DETZRRE: R

TR —HAiTKEE - ABEREHAR - RBEMPIRABME S BPIXBE —RREET
FPE TR =4

The bidding and procurement department is responsible for organising contract
negotiations, with the participation of the application department and the
assistance of the relevant cooperating departments.

RERESEEAMSRAHA - HFEPI2E - B S BPIHE

The bidding and procurement department and the contract execution
departments clarify the key points of contract execution;

The bidding and procurement department assists the project leaders of the
contract execution departments to establish working contacts with the supplier;
The bidding and procurement department tracks and urges suppliers to supply
on time and quality;

If goods return or exchange needed, the bidding and procurement department
will assist in contacting the supplier to return or exchange the goods; and

The bidding and procurement department conducts after-sales evaluation of the
supplier based on the feedback from the contract execution.
REFEDEARRTHPFAEE BRI TERETRE
BEREDHIARNTHFEEEE AGHERMEL TIEHE
BEREBRUBRHERERS  REH®HE
m%ﬂﬁﬁ'%%%ﬁ%%%%%ﬁfﬁ "me &k
BERBEDESRBSRAATHOREBL  AZHERETERTE -
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MANAGE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISKS OF THE
SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group attaches great importance to the management performance
of suppliers in the field of sustainable development. In order to
effectively identify and prevent and control the environmental and
social risks of the supply chain and maintain the stable operation
of the supply chain, the Group has formulated a strict procurement

management mechanism.

In the process of selecting suppliers, the Group will give priority to and
establish partnerships with enterprises that perform outstanding in
environmental and social responsibilities. At the same time, the Group
clearly communicates its requirements in terms of material quality and
safety as well as service to suppliers so as to ensure a steady supply of
high-quality materials and services.

The Group conducts a comprehensive assessment of its suppliers every
year. The scope of the assessment includes, but is not limited to, their
performance in environmental and social aspects, qualification level,
quality of goods or services, service adaptability, business capabilities,
and the rationality of quotations. Suppliers are scored by the relevant
service-receiving departments. Suppliers who fail to meet the required

standards will be eliminated from the supplier list.

In addition, the Group closely monitors the business activities of
suppliers and subcontractors through on-site inspections. Any
irregularities found will be reported to management immediately. The
Group will regularly review and optimize the relevant processes to

ensure the efficient operation of all processes.
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GREEN SUPPLY CHAIN

The Group is committed to integrating the concept of sustainable
development into its daily procurement practices to minimise the
environmental impact of its operations, and promotes this concept
among its business partners and suppliers. The Group expects to
improve its suppliers’ environmental protection awareness, and
promote the outstanding environmental management performance

and control measures among its business partners and suppliers.

At the supplier meetings, the Group encourages suppliers to fully
consider the risks posed by climate change to their operations and
actively reduce the adverse environmental impacts of their business
activities.

The Group will continue to monitor the environmental impact of its
supply chain and put into practice its commitment to environmental
values. The Group will regularly review and adjust the relevant

measures to ensure their effectiveness.

Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product and service quality
and corporate reputation. The Group actively ensures full control
over product quality through its internal control system and strives to

provide high-quality services that meet industry standards.

The Group strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Protecting Consumers’ Rights and Interests and the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and all other laws
and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
standard, privacy protection, and dispute remediation in relation with
products and services provided. It also fully implements regulatory
requirements in other applicable regions.

In 2024, the Group was not aware of any major non-compliance with
the laws and regulations related to product responsibility that had a
significant impact on the Group. During the period, the Group did not
receive any cases of products sold or shipped requiring recycling due
to safety and health reasons, nor did it receive any complaints about

products and services (there were no such complaints in 2023 either).
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PRODUCT QUALITY

The Group possesses the professional expertise and extensive
industry experience necessary to maintain high quality throughout
the entire process of environmental protection projects, from design
and investment to construction and operation. Taking the operation
of wastewater treatment and water supply facilities as an example,
the Group has introduced advanced online monitoring systems
to continuously monitor the quality of the treated wastewater
and supplied water. Data from the online monitoring system
for wastewater treatment will be transmitted in real time to the
government’s Integrated Pollution Source Monitoring Management
Platform to facilitate 24-hour monitoring. Adhering to the philosophy
of "quality first, prevention first”, the Group employs the Plan-Do-
Check-Act (PDCA) cycle to continuously improve process control.

The Group carries out all core businesses by strictly implementing the
relevant national or industrial standards. With regard to the wastewater
treatment business, the Group is fully committed to ensuring that the
treated wastewater meets the requirement of Discharge Standard for
Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB-18918-2002),
Environmental Quality Standard V for Surface Water or local standards.
The Group has established standardized wastewater discharge outlets
in accordance with the requirements of the environmental impact
assessment report approved by the government for designated
discharge.

With regard to the water supply business, the Group attaches great
importance to full-chain water quality control from the water source
to the end user since the safety of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including Hygienic Standard for Drinking Water
(GB-5749-2006) and Standard for Quality of Urban Water Supply (CJ/
T-206-2005). Through the establishment of strict quality management
systems, the Group conducts laboratory testing on various production
and operation indicators and real-time monitoring on the water quality
to ensure safe and reliable water supply.

With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by a number of national
standards, including Pollution Control Standard for Domestic Waste
Landfill (GB-16889-2008). The Group has established internal control
systems and set emission limits for incineration plant operations
according to strict operation conditions and technical requirements
in order to minimise the adverse impact of waste incineration on the

environment and public health.
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Case Study: Promoting “One Machine, One Code” to Develop New Quality Productive Forces through

“loT + Internet + Big Data”

BRMR : B - IRA DB+ EBRE+ KER [ BRRFEEED

Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited, a subsidiary of Yunnan Water in the East China region, has focused

on applying new quality productive forces to water supply operations. By applying its self-developed” QR Code

Management System” and” Smart Management System for Secondary Water Supply” to the management of

pumps and secondary pressurization equipment, the company has adopted a“ One Machine, One Code” approach

by equipping each piece of equipment with an” ID card”. This has enabled programmatic monitoring and data

acquisition, comparison, and analysis of non-negative pressure equipment, with initial improvements seen in the

company's refined management.

EMKBTBERRREZKB(FMEARIADAREZRNMNELENCEHRCETTHNER  BEZHEN —_ABEER
B TZTREKEBERRRIEAREREEN _NBREEES  AREELIBFORF] BT %5 BERHE

BERENRTEEMEERLLE ST - ARBACE IR AIEA -

Industry Contribution

In 2024, the group standard “Technical Specification for Low-
Temperature Anaerobic Carbonization of Organic Solid Waste”,
organized and compiled by the Yunnan Environmental Protection
Industry Association, with Yunnan Water's participation and
submission, successfully passed the final review at the final review
meeting held by the Association. The low-temperature anaerobic
carbonization technology for organic solid waste refers to a system
composed of various treatment processes in which organic solid
waste is decomposed into products such as combustible gas, fuel oil,
and biochar under operating conditions including low-temperature
(with reaction temperature typically ranging from 300 to 600° C)
and an anaerobic environment (oxygen-free, with no addition of hot
air or air to be under micro-positive pressure). Upon its subsequent
successful release, the standard will provide a fundamental basis for
the application of standards in supporting the development of related
industries both within and beyond Yunnan Province.
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PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

In 2024, the Group continued to devote substantial resources
to research and development capabilities. The Group has several
registered patents in the PRC related to wastewater treatment, water
supply, sludge treatment, membrane manufacturing and application,
and municipal waste treatment. As of the end of the Reporting Period,
the Group has 40 patents granted in the water sector, including 39
utility model patents and 1 invention patent, and has 143 patents
granted in the solid waste sector, including 123 utility model patents,
16 invention patents, and 4 software copyright patents. The Group
respects the intellectual property rights of third parties, and is
also committed to protecting its own intellectual property rights
from infringement. In the future, the Group will closely monitor
infringements in the market and crack down on any infringements

such as counterfeit trademarks.

ADVERTISING AND LABELLING

As an enterprise providing environmental protection services, the
operation of the Group does not involve major matters related to
advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the Group remains committed
to ensuring that the labels of its products conform to the actual
product conditions.

The Group strictly abides by the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China and other relevant advertising and marketing
laws and regulations, formulates and implements the advertising
and marketing supervision system. All publicly released promotional
materials and sales commitments are subject to rigorous review to
prevent promotional content from being inaccurate or misleading,

thereby fully safeguarding customers’ consumer rights and interests.

The Group requires that all external image display, event promotion,
marketing promotion and other publicity content of its units, agencies
and subordinate projects must be produced and published after the
approval of the leader in charge, to avoid any form of false publicity,
and to ensure that the content of the publicity is true and accurate.
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CUSTOMER PRIVACY PROTECTION

Due to the nature of its business, the Group requires access to a
large amount of personal and corporate information from customers
during the operation process. The Group attaches great importance
to protecting customer rights and privacy, strives to comply with strict
security and confidentiality standards, actively maintains and protects
personal data privacy, and strictly adheres to regulatory requirements
related to data privacy.

The Group has not only formulated comprehensive relevant policies
and operational guidelines, but also conducts special training from
time to time to ensure that employees handle customer personal data
with caution, thereby enhancing their awareness of the importance of
protecting customer privacy. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the relevant policies to ensure their effective implementation.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group attaches great importance to customers’ opinions, and
establishes diversified communication channels to investigate customer
satisfaction, including written questionnaires, customer forums, return
visits and telephone inquiries, etc. The Group conducts in-depth
analysis of the results of customer satisfaction surveys and takes them
as a key basis for evaluating the operational effectiveness of the quality
management system and driving system improvements.

If the Group receives complaints from customers, it will handle them
properly. All material complaints will be kept in writing for record. The
relevant responsible departments will conduct an in-depth analysis
of the complaint content, carry out comprehensive investigations,
summarize opinions from all parties, promptly provide feedback to the
complainants on the progress and outcome of the handling, and follow
up the satisfaction of the complainants with the resolution outcome.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-corruption
PREVENTING CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

The Group has established a disciplinary committee and a disciplinary
inspection and supervision office specifically responsible for
preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and other illegal acts as well
as conducting relevant investigations and handling. The Group has
established a corruption risk prevention and control system, developed
corresponding prevention and control measures, so as to implement

dynamic management of corruption risk.

To ensure unimpeded supervision channels, the Group has established
whistleblowing channels via telephone and e-mail to accept reports
relating to the violation of laws and the code of conduct. Meanwhile,
the Group also attaches importance to employee education on
corruption risk by organising corruption risk warning education
campaigns and holding special lectures on corruption prevention
to enhance the anti-corruption awareness. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the relevant procedures and measures to ensure their
effective operation.

The management and all employees of the Group strictly abide by the
Group's code of ethics and conduct and relevant laws and regulations,
including the Tendering and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Interim Provisions on the Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery. In 2024, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with any laws and regulations in relation to the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that would have a
significant impact on the Group. There were also no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees (there were no such cases in 2023 either).
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The Group provides anti-corruption training to its Directors and
employees at least once a year. In 2024, the Group’s Discipline
Inspection Office and Party Committee Office organized a total of six
anti-corruption training sessions through a variety of flexible formats,
including conducting warning education sessions and integrity-
themed lectures at the Yunnan Anti-Corruption Warning Education
Base. Senior management, middle management, and general staff all
participated, with cumulative training hours exceeding 10,000. The
training content included but not limited to how Directors undertake
and practice their anti-corruption responsibilities, relevant requirements
and regulations on anti-corruption by the laws of the PRC, and the
instance of corruption committed by the public officials of listed
companies. Through the training, Directors and employees at different
ranks are better informed of their respective roles and responsibilities
in anti-corruption and business ethics, as well as the points to note in

business compliance.

AEEBFELAREERET
RH—-—AREBEI - R=F
—mE - ARELRE  EZHR
NREBBHREIRBERE R
BEMARETHE  RERE
EREDSEEEEZHOTEAHE
BT RRREREN  SRER
B FHEREE - —REIZE
28 RFRBEEE—8/FK -
BINARBEETRRESN
MAEEEREREAE  FEE
BRHRRAEDWABREREKR
AR ETMABRBABETHE
Bl - BBERMEZY - EERTRE
BAMBTEMAR T REER
EREEFERTENBREAE
REME UREHRKRENIESE
Ig o

Case Study: Visit to the Yunnan Anti-Corruption Warning Education Base
BRHE  2HEERERBERETHEE

To further strengthen corporate integrity governance and enhance the awareness of integrity and self-discipline
among employees and management, the Group organized its employees to visit the” Yunnan Province Anti-
Corruption and Integrity Education Base” for learning in May 2024. The on-site case presentation and thematic
explanations deepened participants’ understanding of the importance and necessity of integrity and self-
discipline, reinforced their awareness of integrity, and enhanced their concept of compliance. They expressed their
commitment to fulfilling their duties with a high level of professional ethics and integrity.

RE—SRICECERZAE  HEETIRERENRZREEZEHR —T_MFRA  AEHAKMSTIHEIEHEARERE
RETHEEW | ETL2EE2E - FRABSRIIETHAEEER S2EERARBIRZEEANEELENEN - £
ZEREED RAGHEL  URTEBEASENBFEEERERTRITHRE
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Case Study: Making the Qingming Festival More “Pure and Bright”
BRHE : BBEHEFHA

On the eve of the Qingming Festival, the Group issued an integrity reminder to all employees, emphasizing strict
adherence to integrity and self-discipline norms during the holiday period. Employees were encouraged to celebrate
in a civilized, frugal, safe, and environmentally friendly manner, in order to effectively prevent the emergence of
the” Four Forms of Decadence” (formalism, bureaucratism, hedonism, and extravagance) and foster a clean and
upright corporate environment. Meanwhile, the Group required all employees to regard the Qingming Festival as
an important opportunity to deepen their awareness of integrity and cultivate the cultural concept, stressing strict
compliance with relevant disciplinary requirements, strengthening work discipline and integrity education during the
holiday period, making it a regular practice and an institutionalized requirement for Group’s conduct, and creating
a corporate culture atmosphere of integrity, honesty, and pragmatism.

BRAEA S  AEBRAZEBEIRMRRIEE ARG PHREREETRREERE  BEXH HR  TEREEDN
@Eﬁﬁit CYIERETMEIBELZE  SERERENCERE - AR AEEE2RBETHERGERASRCEREES
BEXHBENEERR  RARKRETHEHBELEAT NP EPBIIFLERERRAE  HHAEEIERERTE
£ #lEl  LEREZ - HE  BENECEULRE -

Community Investment BS. HE®XRE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY PEMEEF

Since its establishment, the Group has consistently advocated BAREBR A AR - 1R FERIE
the cultural concept centered on the combination of “reverence, HgEL - KAL - BEL]I=
thankfulness and self-confidence”. The noble virtues of the Group's DE—WEEMEES - AEE
employees, such as a strong sense of responsibility, willingness to BTBEMNAE  RHH - BF
contribute, and caring heart, fully reflect the powerful unity and AEMANRERE  ROEE
cohesion of the Group’s corporate culture. Under the guidance of this o 7 2 [ 1 S ks K AY [
concept, the Group continues to earnestly fulfill its social responsibility BERB - BE—XLESH I
as well as actively hold and participate in various social charity activities ET  AEERBERERITHE
to give back to society. During the Reporting Period, the Group made B BEEREIRER2EIEME
donations and contributions of RMB33,000 in rural revitalisation, NE@HEEES  DELE - R
which were used to support rural development projects and help HHEIA - N5 B T 4B A AR BB 4R 1
improve rural infrastructure and the quality of life of residents. BEIEMARKIZIET A

REFBNERIEE  HOKRE
ENERSEREREERE -
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With a strong sense of social responsibility, the Group actively
advocates the establishment of a learning-oriented enterprise and
regards its cooperation with universities as a far-reaching public
welfare undertaking. The Group has formulated relevant policies to
actively implement the strategy of developing the country through
science and education and reinvigorating the country through talents
development while establishing and enhancing the brand image of the
Group, thereby contributing to the building of a harmonious society.
As an environmental enterprise, the Group places great emphasis on
environmental protection and environmental education. In 2024, the
Group held a number of activities to raise the public awareness on
environmental protection and contribute to the long-term development

REBAFEBRUNESEER
HBEEAERBNLE
BRAEERE-BRAAZENR
BmEX-SEVIETHERE
RS AR TT B3 2T R[]
B BEERENHER - ATR
BIEHE - BYH M R - 1F
R—RXBRRLE  AEESEH
ITRRREMNRREHRE - = F
N KRERRZIAEY 0 R
HAZRWBRRBH  RRFERE
EXENRERRBNIE -

N

N

of environmental protection undertaking.

Case Study: “2023 Social Responsibility Contribution Award” by Phuket, Thailand
BRHRE: REEETRH-_ZS_=FELSSEERMEIRE

On 23 February 2024, the Phuket Provincial Government of Thailand held its annual award ceremony, during
which Yunnan Water PJT Technology Co., Ltd. was awarded the” 2023 Social Responsibility Contribution Award”
to recognize the company’s outstanding contributions to fulfilling its social responsibilities and promoting local
harmonious development.

“ECWEZASTEZH FEETENBRAENEEREEE  EEKBPTREEARARESESEN_Z_=FE1HE
EEEREIRE  UREQREAELSET  HPEMNEZRTEAMOREFR -

Since the municipal domestic waste-to-energy plant in Phuket, Thailand operated by Yunnan Water PJT Technology
Co., Ltd. has been put into operation, the company has consistently upheld the” reverence, thankfulness and self-
confidence” of Yunnan Water. Taking environmental protection as its mission, the company is committed to local
environmental protection efforts with high standards and strict requirements. In 2023, the company treated over
260,000 tons of waste, generated on-grid electricity of over 67.17 million kWh, saved the local government over
THB14 million (approximately RMB2.8 million) in waste treatment fees, provided over 130 job positions and paid
over THB23.5 million (approximately RMB4.7 million) in taxes. While advancing environmental protection efforts, the
company has also been committed to assuming local social responsibilities. It has organized more than 80 activities,
including environmental protection, community care, river cleaning, caring for vulnerable groups, and donations,
helping a large number of people in need and winning unanimous praise from all sectors of society.
EEKBPITHEARAGDECNREEEESMRAETNRBEEHRAEENAR  RAFCLEmKBI=ZO0XE] - UIRE
RERBCT BERE BER BHAREWBRREE - —Z_—FRAEEBENRBHE26EHE  FEEERBE7T17ETR
- REMBNRESHAONREIEERB 1400 BRK(HEARK 2808 L) - R TIEMAIEH 13018 - AT 2350
BRHKKAEARBA708TT) - AAEHERBREIENRE  BRINAEEHHLEEME  RAEERR LRHE
BOMEEE  BESPHBURBRENEED0HMA B TAEREHR  RETHES RO —BUfT -
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VOLUNTEER SERVICE ACTIVITIES BRER % B

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out diversified HREHRN  AEERETEWE
community volunteer services across its subsidiaries, including activities RAREZ Tt B ERERTS -
such as voluntary blood donation, community environmental clean-ups, BEEORM - HERRER -
inspection and maintenance of water supply pipelines and water safety fkEBRIEEAKLZ2ES -
publicity, green and environmental protection promotion campaigns, FERREERRAEZBLZEH
and safety inspection of public facilities. By employees’ hands-on EEEH BFREIHBHITS
participation in public welfare services, the Group further deepened its BAmRE  SEE—FRLET
corporate social responsibility practices and contributed to the well- TtEMEEEER  REMER
being of the community. WA -

Case Study: “National Fitness - Living with Health” Civic Practice Campaign

BRMR  [2RES - RERTIXABRES

During the Reporting Period, a subsidiary of the Group was responsible for organizing” National Fitness, Living with
Health” Civic Practice and Family Education Promotion Month event in Renhuai City. It provided comprehensive
organizational and logistical support for the event, with employees at all levels forming a service team to conduct
route planning, environmental cleaning, material preparation, and on-site guidance in advance, ensuring the safe
and orderly execution of the event.

BREHAN - AEERNBAREEARTLCENI 2RES  BRATIXNAEREREHXESEAEDY - HREHREMHT R
EHAMEESTE  SRETHRAAKRBEL - ZAETEERE  RREFR  DWEAERERSS|IBETIIE - BRE
e BFET-

Case Study: Water Supply Activities into Communities, Extending Volunteer Services

BRMR BB ELBEEHRESET

To further enhance the standards and quality of water supply services and raise residents’ awareness of safe water
usage during winter, a subsidiary of the Group organized the” Water Supply Activities into Communities, Extending
Volunteer Services” campaign during the Reporting Period.

RE—SRAMKRBEKENRE  HRBERLFAKLEEHR  BEPRAN - XEEWBRARABERERRIKES
it - EHAREEREIT ES o

During the campaign, the volunteer team set up convenient service stations in the community, such as” water
quality promotion”,” maintenance services” and” leak detection services”, to popularize the knowledge of safe
water usage among the residents, and conduct professional inspection and investigation on suspected leaking
pipelines. In addition, the volunteer team collaborated with community property management to conduct in-home
safety inspections and water usage consultations for residents. On the day of the event, the team served more than
20 households, distributed over 100 water promotional materials, and addressed more than 30 resident inquiries
regarding water usage, earning the recognition from local residents and competent authorities.
TREREEHPREERIKESTE ] [#ERKIKARRSE ISERREE  AIERERLERKME - Wi
LURKEBETERERBIEESE - I TREBTELERYESHE  RAEPETAPZERERAKGR - EBER
HERB208FER  BRAKSEERBB1007  EEERAKEHBI0GE  ESEMWERAETEEMNIET
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BHRERE

Chapter/Statement
4=

ESGIESIRBREIX

Governance Structure
BIRRE

Reporting Principles

INTRODUCTION — ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

T= —ESGIATRZRE
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

B =R R B MEER
Reporting Boundary REPORTING SCOPE
bEE 3 43 ] HEHE
Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EmE EEER EERE FRERENE
A. ENVIRONMENTAL
AR5
A1: Emissions General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with  Emissions

disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to waste gas and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, etc.

A1 BERY) — R EE EABERMREREBHN  mMAKRTHOEES EEREE HBY
ERYNEESH
a. BE Kk
b. BFHEITABEALENBBEERRIINER -
A1.1 Types of emissions and related emissions data. Emissions — EXHAUST
GAS EMISSIONS

A1.1 BERU TE 58 S A A HE BB - HERUY) — BE R BER

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse  Emissions — GHG
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity ~ EMISSIONS
(e.g., per unit of production volume, per facility).

A1.2 BEER(BEREREAZ(BE2)AERBHERE(AGTE) HFRY - BEREHN
R(#ER) mE(MASESEM - FRRXMTE) -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions —
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, HAZARDOUS WASTES
per facility). (Not applicable —

Explained)

A1.3 FEXEEEEYEE AETE) R(WER)ZE R — B EEEDY
(MAGEZEMN - BERETE) - (TEA-—BRE)

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions — NON-
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, HAZARDOUS WASTES
per facility).

Al.4 FEAEZEEYEE AR R(WER)TE Py - EEEEY
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Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EE ERES ERRR FERENE
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Environmental Targets;
achieve them. Emissions — GHG
EMISSIONS
A1.5 R PTAT L BENE B IR R R E R E L B R P ERER A 5 5 o REBRE B —
R 2= SR BB HE AR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Environmental Targets;
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and  Emissions — NON-
steps taken to achieve them. HAZARDOUS WASTE
A1.6 RAREBEERESEEMN L REAMIZORER REBT Y-
BERAEIEL R EMRINTRE - BEEEYD
A2: Use of Resources General Policies for effective use of resources (including energy, water ~ Use of Resources
disclosure and other raw materials).
A2 : BRfEA — MR BRERAER(BIEERIR - KREARME)HIBUER BIREA
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g., Use of Resources —
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in “000s) and intensity ENERGY CONSUMPTION
(e.g., per unit of production volume, per facility).
A2.1 RERDESNEER JEEER(WE - folh)BREE(L  BRER - ERERE
FEFTARFE)RFE(NAGESSEM - BERBIHE)
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g., per unit of Use of Resources —
production volume, per facility). WATER CONSUMPTION
A2.2 BEXEREE(NMNSESSEN - BERETE) - BIRER — KRB
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps  Environmental Targets;
taken to achieve them. Use of Resources —
ENERGY CONSUMPTION
A2.3 RILFRET B RER MR B BERAREIELBEFAEIRN RREF  BEREMS
TE e — BB
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  Environmental Targets;
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps  Use of Resources —
taken to achieve them. WATER CONSUMPTION
A2.4 I SKEGERKR ERI B ERME - AEAFT AR E RREE  ERER
B iR R AEDE L B IR EREEY 25 5 o —KIREFE
A2.5 Total amount (in tonnes) of packaging materials used in the  Use of Resources —
finished products and, where appropriate, the amount per USE OF PACKAGING
production unit. MATERIALS (Not
applicable — Explained)
A2.5 i mAEEMNES (UBARE) N(ER)8EESE /J?E}ﬂ BEMEH
fifh& - RN ER-BEm®E)

Annual Report 2024 FE#% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf /K E KRB B R A A 303



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - g RERARSE

Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
fEm EERS EERE FERENE
A3: Environmental and  General Policies to reduce the issuer’s significant impact on the Environmental and
Natural Resources disclosure environment and natural resources. Natural Resources
A3 : RIERAAREIR —RHE BIRBEITALIRBERRAAERENERZENEE - RIBRRABIR
A3.1 Description of the significant impact of business activities on  Environmental and
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken  Natural Resources
to manage the impact. — ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT MANAGEMENT
A3.1 HIlEBEHHRBERRAARERNEATERERRERE REKRKRER-
R BT o REVEER
A4: Climate Change General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-  Climate Change
disclosure related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
A4 - BIREL —RHE BAIREAHDERAIGESHETAEESEZENEARGER RIEE(
FEHEHABUR o
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which  Climate Change —
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and  PHYSICAL RISKS,
the actions taken to manage them. TRANSITION RISKS,
OPPORTUNITIES
A4.1 Hl B A LA GEHBITAEARENEARRGHEBEE Y SREZC-—EBER -
RIEETTE - ERER - 8
B. SOCIAL
B.3it &
B1: Employment General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with  Employment
disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
B1: (&% —REE AT RGE BEREA IEKE BRE- TEE EE
g Zalb c RBBEAREMESREF
a. BE K
b. BFHEITABERTENHEEERREANER -
B1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of employment Employment
(i.e., full-time or part-time), age group and region.
B1.1 RIER - EEER(NEBERE)  FRANRMEE S ERFE
BE#E -
B1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and region. Employment —
RECRUITMENT,
PROMOTION, REWARD
AND DISMISSAL
B1.2 B FREAIREREDHEERALE - [EfF— 85 - B -
B K RS
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Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EE ERES ERRR FERENE
B2: Health and Safety General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with Health and Safety
disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
B2 : @RHEZE — MRk FRRHEZ2TERERREREERPBELLEEN EREZ S
a. Bk &
b. BFHEITABEATZENEBERRROINER
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each  Health and Safety
of the past three years including the reporting year.
B2.1 BE=ZF(BEERFE)BFRAITHNHARRLE - RREEZE
B2.2 Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries. Health and Safety
B2.2 EIGEARTIIERE - RFEEZE
B2.3 Description of the occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, as well as related implementation and monitoring
methods.
B2.3 RPN ERRER2ERE - UREERTRERS RRERS
o
B3: Development and General Policies to improve employees’ knowledge and skills in Development and
Training disclosure performing their duties. Description of the training activities. Training
B3 : & &I — AR B R BRI EEET TEBRENME MR RBR - FHlFdl 3R RE
JEE ©
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Development and
category (e.g., senior management, middle management). Training
B3.1 RUENREERN(IMERERERE TREER)E NI BREEI
EEBDL -
B3.2 Average number of training hours completed by each Development and
employee by gender and employment category. Training
B3.2 RIERI RESEMNED - BRESTHRIIETFHEE - B3I
B4: Labour Standards General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with Labour Standards
disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child or forced labour.
B4 : BT AR — AR B R B IFETHEGIS T : & TR

a. HE: R
b. BFTHETABEAZENAMERZRRIINER -
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Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EE ERES ERERR FERENE
B4.1 Description of the measures to review recruitment practices Labour Standards —
to avoid child labour and forced labour. PREVENTION OF CHILD
AND FORCED LABOUR
B4.1 RS BB B TR e AR 2 B T Ro&HI45 T - & TR —
B 1= T Mea 4 T
B4.2 Description of the steps taken to eliminate the situation when  Labour Standards —
a violation is discovered. PREVENTION OF CHILD
AND FORCED LABOUR
B4.2 e B B AR B ERR A RIS P IRERE 2P 5] o & TR —
P12 T RMeahlgs T
B5: Supply Chain General Policies to manage the environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain
Management disclosure supply chain. Management
B5 : g E IR — MR EIRHEGENIRIE Rt g EREBUR o HREgEE R
B5.1 Number of suppliers by region. Supply Chain
Management —
FAIR AND OPEN
PROCUREMENT
B5.1 minE sl D HEREE - HEERER—
NS SN ES
B5.2 Description of the practices for engaging suppliers, the Supply Chain
number of suppliers to whom the practices are implemented, = Management —
and the implementation and monitoring methods of the PROCUREMENT AND
practices. BIDDING PROCESS
B5.2 AR RAMERNIES  MERTERENNHERSR  HEEEE -
B ARMEERITRERGE - RS RBERE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored. — MANAGE
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL RISKS OF THE
SUPPLY CHAIN
B5.3 M ERABRNHEEESERSNRR L ERRNEDN - LA HEREE -EBHE
MEERTRERTE - REHRE R g R R
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored. — MANAGE
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL RISKS OF THE
SUPPLY CHAIN
B5.4 RAEREHERRRESBRRERLRBOED - ARk  HEEEE - EEEHE

HEARTRERTE -
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Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EE ERES ERRR FERENE
B6: Product General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with Product Responsibility
Responsibility disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
B6 : EmEE — MRk FRAMREERNRENERERZS B  SHELEE EnER
HIA KRBT ED
a. BE Kk
b. BFHEITARBEALENBBEERRIINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or delivered that must be Product Responsibility
recycled for safety and health reasons.
B6.1 EESEEXEMBHETRAR T EEREHRMALKNE D EmEE
l5g @
B6.2 Number of complaints received about products and services Product Responsibility
and the handling methods.
B6.2 BN E m MRS IR FER A R B X - EmAE
B6.3 Description of the practices related to the maintenance and Product Responsibility
protection of intellectual property rights. — PROTECTION
OF INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY
B6.3 et B R RF AN B EE A NS - EmEE—
T ERERE
B6.4 Description of the quality assurance process and product Product Responsibility —
recycling procedures. PRODUCT QUALITY
B6.4 S ST RRENERBYIER - EmEfE—
mEs
B6.5 Description of the consumer data protection and privacy Product Responsibility
policies, and the related implementation and monitoring — CUSTOMER PRIVACY
methods. PROTECTION
B6.5 F O B A RUREE R AL IR - LRI RER k- EREE-
EELERE
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Index
Aspects number Index content Location in the Report
EE ERES ERERR FERENE
B7: Anti-corruption General Information on: a. the policies; and b. compliance with Anti-corruption
disclosure relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing from bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
B7 : RES — MRk B IEHE  BFR  REFEARES : R&E=
a. BE Kk
b. BFHEITARBEALENBBEERRIINER
B7.1 Number of concluded lawsuits regarding corruption brought Anti-corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting — PREVENTING
period and the results of the lawsuits. CORRUPTION AND
FRAUD
B7.1 RERBAANHBHITASHEESRESEELENETHARY R&E="—
HELE KRR o 0 IE &5 R SR
B7.2 Description of the preventive measures and reporting Anti-corruption
procedures, as well as the related implementation and — PREVENTING
monitoring methods. CORRUPTION AND
FRAUD
B7.2 i ERE R B HRIEF - UREERITRERFE ° k&S —
NI DEpSE 3
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff. — PREVENTING
CORRUPTION AND
FRAUD
B7.3 RAmMESERE TRENREGE - k&R -
DIRINCREPSE 3
B8: Community General Policies related to community participation to understand the ~ Community Investment
Investment disclosure needs of the community in which the issuer operates and to
ensure that its business activities will take into account the
interests of the community.
B8 : (@K E — AR R FEAHR2EREREEMELET2NEREREY HRKE
SEZRHRMBHEE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (such as education, environmental ~ Community Investment
issues, labour needs, health, culture, sports). — CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY
B8.1 EIER®E(MHKE BRREEE SIFK BF b HERE-
82F)- TrELGET
B8.2 Resources (such as money or time) used in the focus field. Community Investment
— CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY
B8.2 EFEIHBMBAER(NEERKRMRE) HEREE -
rETEEE
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